
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Well-Being Partnership Board 

 
 
TUESDAY, 4TH MARCH, 2008 at 19:00 HRS – CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Judy Allfrey, Tracey Baldwin (Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust), 

Councillor Gideon Bull (Haringey Council), Stephen Clarke (Homes for 
Haringey), Councillor Isidoros Diakides (Haringey Council), Councillor Dilek 
Dogus (Haringey Council), Robert Edmonds (Haringey Association of 
Voluntary and Community Organisations (HAVCO)), Christina Gradowski 
(Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust), Councillor Bob Harris (Haringey 
Council) (Vice-Chair), Cathy Herman (Haringey Teaching Primary Care 
Trust), Sue Hessel (Haringey Federation of Residents Associations), Cecilia 
Hitchen (Haringey Council), Vicky Hobart (Haringey Teaching Primary Care 
Trust), David Hooper (North Middlesex Hospital Trust), Carl Lammy (BEH 
Mental Health Trust), Narendra Makanji (Whittington Hospital Trust), Lesley 
Misrahi (Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust), John Morris (Haringey 
Council), Marion Morris (Haringey Council, DAAT), Simon O'Brien (Haringey 
Metropolitan Police Service), Mun Thong Phung (Haringey Council), Naeem 
Sheikh (HAVCO), Richard Sumray (Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust) 
(Chair) and Mary Pilgrim (Haringey Probation Service), Cathy Walsh 
(CoNEL) 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. WELCOME, APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS    
 
 To welcome those present to the meeting and receive any apologies for absence.  

 
2. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 10)  
 
 To confirm the minutes of the 13 December 2007 as a correct record of the meeting.  

 
3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 



 

2 

 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late 
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be 
dealt with under Item 13 below).    
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 Members of the Board must declare any personal and/or prejudicial interests with 

respect to agenda items and must not take part in any decision with respect to these 
items.  
 
 

5. PRIMARY CARE STRATEGY NEXT STEPS  (PAGES 11 - 26)  
 
6. WELFARE TO WORK FOR DISABLED STRATEGY 2005/15    
 
 The report will be sent to follow.   

 
7. SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS POLICY AND PROCEDURES  

(PAGES 27 - 150)  
 
8. DEVELOPMENT OF TOBACCO CONTROL STRATEGY FOR HARINGEY  

(PAGES 151 - 154)  
 
9. UPDATE ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE NEW STYLE LOCAL AREA 

AGREEMENT  (PAGES 155 - 162)  
 
10. AREA BASED GRANT    
 
 Report to follow.  

 
11. MOVE ON STRATEGY    
 
 A verbal update will be provided.  

 
12. NORTHUMBERLAND PARK UPDATE  (PAGES 163 - 168)  
 
13. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of Urgent Business admitted under Item 3.  

 
 

14. WELL BEING SCORECARD  (PAGES 169 - 186)  
 
15. NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL FUNDING UPDATE  (PAGES 187 - 192)  
 
16. COMMUNITIES FUNDING UPDATE  (PAGES 193 - 194)  
 



 

3 

17. BARNET, ENFIELD, AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY UPDATE    
 
 A verbal update will be provided.  

 
18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 To raise any items of AOB.  

 
19. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 Please note that the Council’s Calendar of meetings has yet to be finalised.  

 
Dates have been provisionally set for: 
 
10 June  
20 October 
8 December  
2 March 
 
Once dates have been confirmed the Board will be contacted.  
 

 
 
YUNIEA SEMAMBO  
Head of Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Xanthe Barker 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Tel: 020-8489 2957 
Fax: 020-8881 5218 
Email: 
xanthe.barker@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 
Present:  Richard Sumray (Chair), Councillor Isidoros Diakides, Judy Allfrey, 

Helen Brown, Tom Brown, Robert Edmonds, Cathy Herman, Vicky 
Hobart, John Morris, Mun Thong Phung, 

 
In 
Attendance:  

Helena Pugh, Andrew Wright 

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTON 
BY 

 

OBHC18.
 

WELCOME, APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 The Chair welcomed those present to the meeting and noted that 
apologies had been received from the following people: 
 
Tracey Baldwin –Helen Brown substituted 
Councillor Bob Harris 
Sue Hessel 
David Hooper 
Aiden Gibson 
Naeem Sheik 
 
 

 
 

OBHC19.
 

MINUTES  

 When asked if the minutes of the previous meeting were a correct 
record, Councillor Bevan noted that he had raised concerns regarding 
the inefficient use of space at The Laurels and that this had not been 
recorded in the minutes.  
 
Councillor Bevan also noted that he had contacted Keith Gardner at the 
PCT via email regarding this issue and that his email had not been 
responded to.  
 
In response to Councillor Bevan’s concerns, Helen Brown of the PCT 
agreed to take this issue forward and offered to arrange a visit of The 
Laurels for Councillor Bevan.  
 
The Chair reminded the Board that at the previous meeting it had been 
agreed that a meeting should be arranged between the Council and the 
PCT in order to clarify how often the Chair of the Board should be 
rotated between the bodies. He advised that Board that it had been 
agreed that this would be rotated on an annual basis. At the same 
meeting it had been agreed that the Haringey federation would have an 
observer place on the Board. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the inclusion of the above, the minutes of the meeting 
held on 22 October 2007, be confirmed as a correct record.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PCT 
(HB) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALL TO 
NOTE 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

 

OBHC20.
 

URGENT BUSINESS  

 No items of Urgent Business were raised.  
 

 
 

OBHC21.
 

MENTAL HEALTH TRUST: UPDATE ON ST ANN'S  

 The Board was provided with a verbal update on the position in relation 
to St Ann’s Hospital. 
 
An Options Appraisal for the site had been submitted to NHS London. As 
consultation exercises were still under way in relation to the PCT 
Primary Care Strategy and the BEH Clinical Strategy, the Options 
Appraisal would not be finalised until the results from these consultation 
exercises were available.  
 
In order to draw the this piece of work together the Mental Health Trust 
Board had met to appoint a project director who would oversee the 
development of an Outline Business Case.  
 
The Board was advised that the timescales around the project were 
dependent upon the results of the consultation exercises. However, it 
was envisaged that an Outline Business Case would be finalised by the 
end of 2008 and a Commercial Business Case would be compiled 
following this in early 2009.  
 
The Chair requested that, once the public consultation exercise had 
taken place, the document be brought back to the Board for discussion 
and that a presentation should be made.    
 
It was suggested that the MH Trust should meet with the Director of the 
Urban Environment and the Cabinet Portfolio holder in order to discuss 
planning issues.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
i. To note the verbal update provided. 

 
ii. That, following consultation with the public, the Mental Health 

Trust should make a presentation to the Board on how this would 
inform the Outline Business Case.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MHT 

 
 
 
MHT/ 
COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MHT 

 
 

OBHC22.
 

PRESENTATION FROM BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY 
MENTAL TRUST: APPLICATION FOR FOUNDATION TRUST 
STATUS 

 

 The Board received a presentation from Andy Wright of the Mental 
Health Trust (MHT) on its application for Foundation Trust status.  
 
The Board was advised that formal consultation on the Trusts application 
for Foundation Trust status had begun in October and as part of that 
process a number of presentations had been given to partners.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

 
Due to the large and diverse population of the area covered by the Trust, 
ways of improving links to other organisations, including the voluntary 
sector, Councils and the PCTs within the area, were being looked at.  
 
It was noted that the Trust had achieved a ‘Good’ rating for the Quality of 
Services and a ‘Fair’ rating for its Use of Resources. In addition to this 
there were ongoing improvements to the services provided to Service 
Users and Carers.  
 
The Board was advised that Foundation Trust status would allow greater 
financial freedom and would mean that the Trust was more accountable 
to local people. It would also provide greater scope for involvement and 
influence by the local community and to develop partnership working.  
 
It was noted that the consultation exercise would end in January 2008 
and in March the Secretary of State would determine whether 
Foundation Trust status should be awarded. A monitoring assessment 
would be carried out between April and July 2008 and, if approved, 
confirmation of Foundation Trust status would be given in the Autumn.  
 
It was noted that the PCT and Council had met with the MHT to discuss 
the application and at this meeting concerns had been raised over the 
Trust’s capacity to take the project forward and to address operational 
issues. These concerns had been set out in more detail in a letter to the 
MHT.  
 
The Board was advised that an Operational Director had been 
appointed, with the intention of developing a more consistent approach 
across the three Boroughs and that the Operational Director would liaise 
with each of the Local Authorities to achieve this once in post. It was 
envisaged that this appointment would also help to build better 
relationships across all the partner organisations. In addition to this the 
MHT’s existing Director for Barnet was moving across to Haringey; he 
had experience in a Borough where a similar re-organisation had taken 
place.  
 
The Chair noted that reference would need to be made to the PCT’s 
Primary Care Strategy and that full consideration should be given to this. 
It was also noted that both the Council and the PCT had expressed 
concerns regarding the MHT’s capacity to deliver both this piece of work 
and operational issues, given the changes to the its senior management 
team.  
 
There was a general consensus that it would be useful if a further 
presentation could be given to the Board following the consultation 
process. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
i. To note the presentation. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MHT 

 
 
 
MHT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

ii. That the MHT should be asked to make a further presentation to 
the Board following the conclusion of the consultation process.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 
MHT 

 

OBHC23.
 

UPDATE ON BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL 
STRATEGY 

 

 This provided under the previous item.  
 

 
 

OBHC24.
 

DEVELOPMENT OF JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT  

 The Board received a presentation on the development of Haringey’s 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA’s).  
 
The Board was advised that a JSNA was being undertaken with the aim 
of developing a more effective commissioning process. It was noted that 
there was a duty upon the Council and the PCT to carry out the 
Assessment and the new LAA and local targets for both bodies would be 
based on evidence gathered as part of the JSNA. The JSNA would 
provide the evidence and information to support the commissioning 
process.   
 
The responsibility for delivering this would rest with the jointly appointed 
Director of Public Health, in conjunction with the Council’s Directors for 
Adult and Children Services.  
 
It was noted that a scoping workshop would be held early in the new 
year and that the new Director of Public Health would be in post on 21 
January 2008.   
 
The Board was advised that a range of partner organisations had been 
invited to attend the workshop and that the voluntary sector would be 
represented by HAVCO. It was noted that consideration should be given 
to how links could be better developed with other NHS partners.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the content of the presentation.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OBHC25.
 

HARINGEY GREENEST BOROUGH STRATEGY  

 The Board received a presentation on the Greenest Borough Strategy. 
 
The Board was advised of the national and regional context within which 

 
 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

the Strategy had been formed. It was noted that the Strategy would 
address Government targets in relation to the reduction of emissions and 
the targets within the Mayor’s London Plan and supporting strategies.  
 
In addition to the broader national and regional targets, the Strategy was 
also informed by the local context, including the Sustainable Community 
Strategy, the Haringey Council Plan and the Strategic Framework for 
Improving Adults’ Well-Being 2007/10.  
 
In order to develop the Strategy, a Better Haringey Working Group and 
Stream Board had been formed and an Away Day was being held in the 
new year.  
 
In terms of linkage to the Well-Being Framework, it was noted that 
Priority 2 Improved Quality of Life and Priority 6 Economic Well-Being, 
were strongly linked to the Strategy and were addressed within it.  
 
The Board was advised that the consultation process had included a 
‘vox pop’, presentations to the Council’s Area Assemblies and to young 
people via schools and that there had been consultation with Council 
staff. It was noted that the consultation period would end on 31 January 
2008.  
 
The Council’s Cabinet would consider the Strategy in April 2008 and it 
would be submitted to Council in July 2008.  
 
The Board discussed housing issues and the need to ensure that private 
landlords were included in any drive to raise the quality of homes and to 
make homes more energy efficient. The Board was advised that there 
were strategies in place to address the need to reduce poverty and 
improve heating in homes. A thermal mapping exercise had recently 
been undertaken to identify where there was energy wastage in the 
Borough and this had been made available online to enable residents to 
see how energy efficient their home was.  
 
The Chair underlined the need to take a holistic approach and to work in 
partnership to achieve the goals contained within the Strategy. It was 
noted that at present the document referred only to the Council as the 
body responsible for delivering the Strategy and suggested that it should 
be redrafted to reflect the role of partners and to recognise that the 
Strategy would need to be ‘owned’ by all of the partner bodies in order to 
be successful.  
 
There was agreement that a letter should be sent to the PCT and the 
MHT requesting their views on the Strategy and how they might be able 
to contribute towards their achievement.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
i. To note the content of the presentation.  
 

ii. That the final version of the Strategy should be written in a way 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

that reflected the Strategy was jointly owned by all partners.  
 
iii. That a letter should be written to the PCT and MHT regarding the 

Strategy in order to ensure that their views were incorporated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL 
 

OBHC26.
 

LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT (LAA) UPDATE  

 The Board considered a report that set out progress in relation to the 
new style Local Area Agreement (LAA) and the initial work that was 
being undertaken in preparation for further negotiation with the 
Government Office for London (GoL).  
 
Prior to consideration of the report, the Board was advised of two factual 
errors within the report. 
 
Recommendation (iii) should have read as follows: 
 
‘To consider whether current Neighbourhood Renewal Funding (NRF) 
and Communities for Health funded Well-Being projects could achieve 
the outcomes of the new LAA and so be eligible for future funding.’   
 
Paragraph 4.7 of the report should have read as follows:  
 
'The Board also needs to consider whether current NRF and 
Communities for Health (CfH) projects meet the proposed priorities. By 
reviewing the list of proposed 35 priorities the Board will be able to 
ascertain whether current projects can achieve the outcomes for the new 
LAA and so be eligible for future funding.' 
 
The Board was advised that in developing and negotiating the new LAA 
the HSP and Thematic Boards were required to form a ‘Story of Place’. 
This would provide an evidence based narrative for the demonstrating 
why the indicative targets selected had been chosen.  
 
It was noted that the Government Office for London (GoL) acted as the 
link between central and Local Government and that meetings would be 
held with GoL throughout the process. At the initial meeting held 
between GoL and the Council; GoL had commented that the indicative 
targets presented formed a strong starting point and following this the 
partnership had made significant progress in forming the context for the 
final thirty-five indicators.  
 
An Editorial Group had been set up to produce the Story of Place and 
the Acting Director of Public Health and the Interim Head of Policy from 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

the Adult, Culture and Community Services team had been nominated to 
represent the Board. There would be liaison between with the Chair and 
Vice-Chair of the Board throughout the process.  
 
It was noted that the section of the narrative, which was based on the 
Well-Being Boards priorities, would be based on the Sustainable 
Community Strategy priorities and the Well-Being Strategic Framework. 
The text and prioritised targets would need to be drafted prior to 
Christmas for discussion at the HSP Performance Management Group 
(PMG) meeting on 7 January 2008.  
 
The Board discussed the targets set out in the report and there was 
agreement that prominence should be given to addressing mental health 
issues. It was noted that reference was made to this within the Children 
and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Boards indicators and that 
this would need to be taken into consideration when forming the Board’s 
indicators.  
 
It was noted that the Supporting People Programme would end next year 
and that this would have a significant impact upon many of the 
programmes the Board supported. Consideration would need to be given 
to this and the pooling of existing budgets.  
 
The Board discussed transport and whether reference should be made 
to this within the Board’s priorities. It was agreed that the use of public 
transport should be encouraged. Walking should also be promoted and 
should be referred to as part of increasing physical activity.  
 
There was agreement that the following alterations should be suggested 
to the list of Proposed Target Areas: 
 

i) Priorities 20 and 34, which belonged to the Integrated Housing 
Board and Well-Being Board respectively, should be 
combined. 

ii) A priority around Mental Health, which could be shared with 
the Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board, 
should be developed. With clarification being sought as to 
which Board would lead on this.  

iii) A local indicator should be considered in relation to 
encouraging the use of public transport and promoting walking 
as a way of increasing physical activity.  

 
It was noted that a report detailing progress on the new LAA would be 
received by the Board at its next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
i. To note the recommendations agreed at the HSP on 13 

November. 
 
ii. To note the timescales for producing a draft narrative and 

prioritised targets.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

 
iii. That the alterations to the Proposed Target Areas for the LAA be 

suggested as set out above.  
 
iv. That the Boards representatives, sitting on the Editorial Group, 

should determine whether the projects currently funded by the 
NRF and CfH would be eligible for funding under the new LAA 
and incorporate this within the Story of Place if appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OBHC27.
 

UPDATE ON RESTRUCTURING OF SUB-GROUPS  

 The Board considered a report that provided an update on the 
restructuring of the Sub-Groups that supported the Board.  
 
It was noted that the development of the Sub-Groups should include 
measures to ensure that they addressed targets effectively.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the progress made in relation to the restructuring of the Sub-
Groups.    
 

 
 

OBHC28.
 

ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 No items of Urgent Business were raised.  
 

 
 

OBHC29.
 

NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL FUNDING AND COMMUNITIES AND 
HEALTH UPDATE 

 

 The Board received an update on Neighbourhood Renewal Funding and 
Communities and Health budgets and spending.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the content of the report.  
 

 
 

OBHC30.
 

WELL-BEING BALANCED SCORECARD: SEPTEMBER 2007  

 The Board received a report that presented the balanced scorecard, 
which had been developed against the objectives of the Well-Being 
Partnership Theme Board.  
 
RESOLVED: 

 
 

Page 8



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

 
To noted the content of the report.  
 

OBHC31.
 

DRUGS: OUR COMMUNITY, YOUR SAY  

 The Board considered a report that provided an update on the Council’s 
response to the consultation document ‘Our Community, Your Say’ on 
the National Drugs Strategy.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report.  
 

 
 

OBHC32.
 

WELL LONDON/ NOEL PARK: PROGRESS REPORT  

 The Board received a verbal update on the Well London/ Noel Park 
project. 
 
It was noted that a workshop had been held in order to identify how the 
project should be taken forward. There had been good engagement at 
the meeting and a report was being pulled together based on this and a 
Programme of Actions would be completed by the end of January.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report.  
 
 
 

 
 

OBHC33.
 

FAMILIES INTO WORK NORTHUMBERLAND PARK: PROGRESS 
REPORT 

 

 The Board received a verbal update on the Families into Work 
Northumberland Park project. 
 
It was noted that an initial meeting had been held with GoL (the body 
responsible for ensuring that the work of the partners involved in the 
project was joined up) and a second meeting was currently being 
arranged where the framework for the project would be agreed.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To noted the update provided.  
 
  
 

 
 

OBHC34.
 

HEALTH INEQUALITIES AND AUDIT  

 The Board received a verbal update on the Health and Inequalities Audit. 
 
It was noted that external auditors Grant and Thornton had been 
appointed carry out the audit. The guidance issued was broad at 
present, but following initial discussion, it was likely that there would be a 

 
 

Page 9



MINUTES OF THE HARINGEY WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2007 

 

focus on deaths resulting from cardiovascular disease and reducing 
obesity.  
 
RESLOVED: 
 
To note the update provided.  
 

OBHC35.
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 None.  
 

 
 

OBHC36.
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

 The Board noted that items for the next agenda should be emailed to 
Xanthe Barker, at the address below, no later than 4 February, 2008.  
 
xanthe.barker@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 
 

OBHC37.
 

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 The Board noted that the next meeting was due to be held on 2 March 
2008, at 7pm, at the Civic Centre.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Richard Sumray  
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 10



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 1 of 16 

 
 
Well-Being Partnership Theme Board      
 
Date:  4 March 2008  

Report Title: Primary Care Strategy Next Steps  

Report of: Helen Brown, Acting Deputy Chief Executive.  
 
 

 
Summary 
 
This paper sets out the next steps for the development of the primary care 
strategy for Haringey, taking into account the outcome of the recent 
consultation and equalities impact assessment (EIA). Full reports of the 
consultation and the EIA are now available at  
http://www.haringey.nhs.uk/publications/primary_care_strategy/index.shtm 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
§ To note the report.  

 
For more information contact: 
Helen Brown 
Telephone Number: 020 8442 5400 
E-mail: helen.brown@haringey.nhs.uk 
 
 

 
Final version of primary care strategy  
 
We will be producing a final version of the primary care strategy. The full list of 
recommendations (previously circulated and attached for ease of reference at 
Appendix A) will also need to be reflected in the changes made to the final 
strategy document.  
 
Case for change  

• Restate the case for change to respond to those who during the 
consultation did not want any change, and add further reasons for 
change noted during the consultation (e.g. current problems with 
access to primary care services).  

 

Agenda Item 5Page 11



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 2 of 16 

The model of service delivery 

• Set out an adapted model of primary care service provision that will 
comprise 4 super health centres based in each of the collaborative 
areas each networked with a number of other larger general practices 
in that area as follows: 
 
North East – Lordship Lane/Tynemouth Road (plus further 
consideration of provision in Northumberland Park) 
South East – Laurels/St Ann’s 
West – Hornsey Central 
Central – Wood Green/Turnpike Lane (new development) 

 

• Proposed centres based at the Whittington and North Middlesex 
hospitals to be focused on the provision of urgent care. We will need to 
set out clearly how these hospital-based urgent care centres would 
operate differently from community based super health centres and to 
explain how they will fit into the broader context of urgent care 
provision across the borough in future. 

 

• The development of the model to be based broadly around and jointly 
led by the existing 4 PBC collaborative groups. This will include 
developing a local approach to needs assessment and engagement 
alongside the PCT-wide work on these areas. The intention remains to 
significantly reduce the number of small GP practices (ie with less than 
4,000 patients) over time and phase out sub-standard premises. Whilst 
it is recognised that some small GP practices perform well, this mode 
of service delivery will not provide a sustainable model for Haringey in 
the future. The name “super health centre” could also be reviewed.  

 

• Criteria will be developed to select the practices that will remain or 
need to be developed in addition to the super health centres, to 
include:  

• Minimum list size 

• Standard of premises 

• Standards of quality of care 

• Ability to work within networked model 

• Ability to offer extended opening hours 

• Location (ensuring appropriate geographical spread to 
assist with access and transport issues and ensure 
appropriate coverage especially in North East of the 
borough).  

 

• Greater detail to be provided of how services will be delivered in this 
new model to include for example sexual health/family planning, foot 
health, diabetes, phlebotomy, physiotherapy, dietetics.   

  
 

Page 12



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 3 of 16 

Health inequalities 

• More information to be provided on how the primary care strategy can 
help tackle health inequalities through targeting resources and 
improving access, especially in the deprived areas of Haringey.  

 
Workforce 

• Plans for developing a workforce strategy including engagement with 
staff side and clinicians. This is potentially wide-ranging as it could pick 
up on issues as diverse as GPs and PBC to extended opening hours to 
role and function of receptionists.  

 
Access 

• We should provide some detail as to how we will be taking forward the 
recommendations of the EIA in order to improve access especially for 
groups experiencing discrimination and disadvantage, and developing 
indicators for measuring how successful the strategy is at doing this.  

 
Transport 

• The final version of the strategy should provide illustrations of how 
travel time will be affected (based on real life examples/illustrative case 
studies), this will be informed by the criteria relating to location noted 
above and the detail of how services might be delivered.   

• A joint review of transport issues to be instigated, the outcome of this to 
include recommendations as to how transport difficulties can be 
minimised. 

 
Governance and engagement 

• Include options for governance arrangements of super health centres 
and principles of stakeholder engagement  

 
Pharmacy  

• Set out the parameters for developing a strategy on  the role of 
community pharmacy.  

 
Clinical quality  

• Information on how the PCT will approach monitoring and managing 
performance during transitional periods to ensure that the primary care 
strategy supports GPs to maintain good practice and over time deliver 
measurable improvements in quality.  

 
Levers for change 

• Further clarification if possible on the incentives and drivers that will 
result in independent contractors adopting the new model proposed. 

 
Table 1 below summarises the original proposals, the consultation and EIA 
outcomes and how the final strategy has taken these into account.  
 
Next steps 
 

Page 13



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 4 of 16 

Once the board has considered this paper, the final strategy will be produced, 
taking into account the outcome of Healthcare for London (consultation ends 
on 7 March) as noted above, and brought back to the board for their final 
decision in May. 
 
We are in discussion with LBH Overview and Scrutiny Committee about the 
detailed planning of services in each area and in particular engagement with 
the public, GPs and other key stakeholders and the phasing of those 
planning/engagement processes, ie should we draw up detailed plans for 
each super health centre network before engagement with stakeholders or 
would it be more appropriate to phase this so that we develop plans in one 
area and consult before moving on to the next. 
 
The TPCT will also endeavour to learn from similar developments in other 
areas throughout the next stages of the strategy development and 
implementation. 
 

Page 14



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 5 of 16 

Table 1: Brief summary of how the strategy will change in response to the consultation and EIA 
 

Primary care strategy 
consultation document – key 
points and questions posed 

Views expressed during 
consultation 

Related outcome from EIA How PCT proposes to take this 
forward 

Clear case for change: outdated 
model 

- Some wanted to see no change 
– happy with way things are 
- Some welcomed changes 
- OSC were convinced of need to 
develop and improve services.  
- Some wanted to see 
improvements in addition to 
existing services (e.g. add super 
health centres/DGH at St Ann’s 
to current provision) 

EIA highlighted existing issues re 
access e.g. current problems with 
transport to health services 

No change is not an option, 
current model not sustainable, 
some current premises not fit for 
purpose.  
However need to acknowledge 
what people currently appreciate 
about their services e.g. 
continuity of care and that some 
single handed practices do 
perform well.  

Outcome statements Support for greater access to 
promotion/prevention services 
Continuity of care important 

Suggestions for additions made 
by PHAST 

Consider amending outcome 
statements as proposed by 
PHAST1 

                                                 
1 (Add to 4.) That even if I have no regular or permanent address, I can still easily access screening programmes. 

i. (Add to 13.) In my general practice consultation, I feel comfortable and receive respect for my cultural identity. 

ii. In all services staff are aware of and sensitive to the way in which gender may affect accessing health care. 
iii. That I can receive health care with the minimum of organizational barriers, in particular without an appointment even for non-urgent care, if that 

is a barrier for me. 

iv. That general practice consultation times will be flexible to allow more time if I have difficulty understanding advice, gaps in knowledge about how 
to access services or the need to be more involved with decision making. 

v. That services will be planned mindful of the work that users of each service will need to do, to access them. 
vi. That services will seek to comply with recommendations of the Children & Young Persons and Older People NSFs, and in particular listen to and 

respect my concerns even if they seem to be inappropriate for the consultation. 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 6 of 16 

Extended opening hours  Welcomed by some  Of particular benefit to those in 
employment and welcomed by 
young people 

Aim to offer 12 hour and 
weekend opening hours (Aim to 
achieve extended opening hours 
in 2 sites during 0809) 

Bringing wider range of services 
together more locally 

Support for 1-stop-shop 
approach although concerns re 
waiting times and impersonal 
service from some 
Others welcomed idea of not 
needing to go to hospital 

Flexible appointment systems 
can improve access for different 
groups 
Language services can be 
provided more effectively  

Illustrate what services might be 
available and how organised in 
the new model  

Need to continue to improve 
quality/clinical standards 

Some satisfaction with current 
quality of care 
 

Workforce competency around 
diversity and equality needed as 
well as clinical skill 

Ongoing development of 
performance monitoring and 
management of primary care to 
ensure standards are maintained 
during transition period and 
improved as the strategy is 
implemented 

Ensuring equity of access 
including vulnerable people 

Concerns that there would be 
reduced continuity of care and 
increased travel which would 
disadvantage older and disabled 
people 
Concerns that people from 
deprived communities would not 
be served well 

Range of recommendations 
made in relation to this including 
for example develop performance 
indicators that will measure 
progress on inequalities 

Incorporate indicators around 
equalities in primary care 
strategy implementation and 
assign senior leader to oversee 
implementation of EIA 
recommendations.  

Integrating services better, co-
location and joint working e.g. 
with VCS 

Support for this especially in 
relation to mental health and 
enthusiasm from VCS 

Potential to improve access to a 
range of services 

Include VCS and other providers 
in governance and stakeholder 
engagement arrangements. 

Trade off between further to No clear consensus although Currently people experience Propose that the trade off is 

P
a

g
e
 1

6



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 7 of 16 

travel and more and better 
services  

many concerns about increased 
travel distance 

travel problems. Any worsening 
of the situation would adversely 
affect certain groups more 

worth while and take steps to 
mitigate against greatest 
difficulties around travelling 
further 

Acknowledging contribution of 
workforce 

Need to ensure workforce have 
right skills including new skills 
needed to work in new model 

As noted above competency 
around diversity needed as well 
as clinical skills, importance of 
role of receptionists and other 
non-clinical staff noted in 
promoting access to services 

Develop detailed workforce 
strategy with involvement of 
staffside, clinicians etc 

Links to other strategies VCS noted need to link with 
wellbeing strategic framework 
Also to ensure needs of specific 
groups e.g. children and young 
people, mental health and people 
with learning disabilities are 
taken into account and services 
planned in conjunction with the 
strategic work underway in these 
and other areas 

Key link needs to be between the 
primary care strategy and the 
strategic work to address health 
inequalities  

Review other related strategies to 
identify common ground and how 
the primary care strategy can 
help deliver on these 

6 super health centres proposed 
in Haringey 

Queries raised as to if 6 would be 
enough (especially given that 2 
are located outside the borough).  
Wish to retain other practices in 
addition to the new super health 
centres including concerns re 
Hornsey Central being sole 
provision in West of borough 

Need to better understand travel 
issues and to mitigate against 
any particular difficulties faced by 
different groups 

Go ahead with model of 4 super 
health centres within Haringey, 2 
hospital-based, supported by 
network of other larger practices 
meeting set of agreed criteria. 

Specific locations Generally accepted locations Need to ensure NE of borough Developments to be focused 

P
a
g
e
 1

7



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 8 of 16 

specified with proviso regarding 
coverage/transport noted above 

has sufficient provision around the 4 collaborative areas, 
with the super centres sited 
broadly as set out in the original 
strategy but with networked 
practices providing “spokes” to 
these hubs to ensure appropriate 
coverage across the borough 

Reduction to number of GP 
practices 

Mixed views, concerns re 
reduction of service and travel 

Transport issues raised  Number of single-handed GPs to 
reduce and substandard 
premises to be phased out over 
time, but retain networked 
practices as noted above 

PBC Few comments made Not covered in detail Strategy to be delivered through 
the PBC collaborative localities  

Primary care contracting Queries as to how GPs and 
pharmacists will be moved – 
concerns that they will not want 
to move and will be forced to do 
so 

Not covered in detail Further detail to be provided on 
contracting mechanisms likely to 
be used. Also further 
consideration of  local 
governance arrangements for the 
networked super health centres  

Role of community pharmacy Concerns re affect on 
businesses, and potential loss of 
local pharmacies 

 Further work with LPC/local 
pharmacists to inform a 
pharmacy strategy  

Transport Biggest single area of concern Big area of concern and will 
affect some groups more than 
others 

A transport review to be carried 
out.  

Premises Some welcomed improvements 
to premises, comments made as 
to how to improve premises e.g. 

Need to improve premises are 
not accessible. Design of new 
premises can help access 

As noted above, substandard 
premises to be phased out. New 
build to be designed to high 

P
a

g
e
 1

8



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 9 of 16 

accessibility and comfort  especially for disabled people.  standard including in terms of 
accessibility 

Financial strategy  Queries of the financial modelling 
and affordability, some concerns 
of LIFT and some opposition to 
privatisation/use of private 
providers 

Reducing unplanned variations in 
services can help address 
inequalities. The financial 
strategy wasn’t commented on in 
detail in the EIA process but the 
equity audit shows lack of link 
between need and resource 
allocation  

All options to be explored in 
terms of financing new 
developments including ongoing 
liaison with the local authority 
Consider target re resource 
distribution more closely related 
to need 

Engagement with stakeholders Desire to influence the strategy  Need to engage range of 
stakeholders 

Ongoing engagement in the 
overall strategy and in locality 
developments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 10 of 16 

 

P
a

g
e
 2

0



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 11 of 16 

Appendix A  
DRAFT 

 
Recommendations for primary care strategy from consultation report 

and equalities impact assessment 
 
This paper sets out the main themes identified in the primary care strategy 
consultation and suggests how these issues might be responded to in the 
next version of the primary care strategy or other responses that might be 
required. We have also set out below where we cannot respond in the way 
people wanted us to in the consultation and the reasons for this. 
 
1. No change – keep things as they are  
The primary care strategy clearly sets out a case for change that we feel is 
compelling, we cannot continue with the current model of service provision. 
Although we understand that there is lots of good work underway already and 
many people are satisfied with their primary care service, our current model is 
not sustainable and does not provide the opportunities for delivering improved 
services to Haringey residents.  In particular it is not possible for us to keep 
some of our current premises as they are not fit for purpose and cannot be 
developed to an acceptable level. This is not an option for us.  
 
2.  Develop a networked model of super health centres and retain 
some existing primary care premises 
The consultation documentation set out an approach focusing on six super 
health centres with a small number of additional GP practices. Concerns 
about this approach were expressed in the consultation and, although further 
work will need to be done on the financial implications to ensure it is 
affordable, a greater emphasis on a networked model is suggested.  This 
would seem to answer many of the concerns raised during the consultation, 
including those in relation to transport, and would allow the improvements in 
opening hours and range of services available that people would like to see.   
The adapted model would include the development of super health centres (in 
a phased way) at: 

• Lordship Lane and Tottenham Hale (or environs) 

• Hornsey Central 

• Wood Green/Turnpike Lane 

• St Ann’s, The Laurels and Tynemouth Road. 
 
Development of super health centres at the Whittington and North Middlesex 
to be taken forward as well, but with a different emphasis around better 
management of urgent care than the community based services that would 
develop in the four super health centres listed above.  
 
In addition, a number of existing primary care practices would be retained and 
developed as appropriate.  These practices would be linked with the super 
health centres to provide a network of primary care that would be accessible 
to all Haringey residents and most importantly would work together in an 
integrated way. Small/single-handed GPs in unsuitable premises would not fit 

Page 21



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 12 of 16 

with our model of service delivery, and over time, we would like to see these 
GPs move to provide services as part of the new model.  
 
In order to identify those primary care practices that are likely to be retained 
and/or developed as part of our networked model of primary care, it would be 
helpful to develop some criteria that they would need to meet, taking into 
account the population needs of the area they serve.  This is likely to include 
for example: 

• Minimum list size 

• Premises meeting certain standards 

• Minimum standards of quality of care 

• Ability to work with local super health centre 

• Ability to offer extended opening hours.  

• Location which ensures appropriate geographical spread to assist with 
access/transport. 

 
A number of other PCTs have already done some work in this area (including 
Heart of Birmingham PCT) and we would look to learn from their experiences. 
 
It may or may not be desirable at this stage to identify those practices that are 
likely to meet these criteria and hence to be retained, or to respond to the 
particular calls for certain practices to be retained that were made in the 
consultation.   
 
We may also wish to respond to the calls from a small but vocal group who 
want to see a fully functioning DGH on St Ann’s site. The BEH Clinical 
Strategy sets out the options for acute provision in Barnet Enfield and 
Haringey. That detailed process did not identify a need for another acute 
provider based at St Ann’s. However, we are clear that the sort of community 
based access to a much wider range of specialist services called for could be 
met through the super health centre model we are proposing. 
 
3. Amount of provision/coverage especially in the North East 
The proposal above should address this issue, however in addition it is 
recommended that there is a clear statement that we will look again at the 
north east of the borough and undertake further modelling to identify how best 
to meet the challenges of need and access posed by that area. Also we need 
to do more to either counter the perception that we are under-doctored or to 
take specific action to improve distribution of primary care services/increase 
establishment if necessary.  
 
4. Transport 
We should acknowledge the difficulties that people currently face in travelling 
to health services and consider undertaking a review of this and the PCT’s 
role in providing/facilitating transport to health services and the role of other 
key partners e.g. the local authority, Transport for London.   Many people 
responding to the consultation said they would have to travel further if they 
were to go to a super health centre instead of their current GP practice.  
However, most did not take into account the potential for reducing journeys to 
hospital by having services currently only provided in hospital available in the 

Page 22



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 13 of 16 

super health centres, and organised in such a way as to have a one-stop 
shop type approach. We have drafted some illustrative case studies that 
attempt to show how travel might be affected.  These need to be finalised. If 
the networked model outlined above is accepted, further work should be 
undertaken to see what kinds of journeys people would need to take. If a 
review is carried out, a transport strategy could be devised that would clarify 
what transport can be provided/commissioned by the PCT and what other 
partners can do to improve travelling to health services and how we would 
work together to influence Transport for London. This strategy should be 
informed by the expertise of local disability groups.  
 
We should acknowledge that any increase in difficulties in travelling will 
adversely affect people with disabilities and mobility problems including older 
people, as well as those on lower incomes more than other people.  
 
The issue of freedom passes not being valid before 9.30 a.m. and therefore 
older people not being able to access early appointments came up on several 
occasions in the consultation – this may be something we want to comment 
on.  However, this is presumably something that can be addressed between 
the patient and the practice – as patients could simply ask for appointments 
after this time, unless there are other issues here that need to be addressed. 
 
5. Access 
A series of actions need to be taken to ensure that the primary care strategy 
will not reduce access especially for vulnerable groups. This includes 
considering the issues related to transport outlined above but also issues 
around workforce training and development, language services, appointment 
systems, building design and supporting people to access primary care.  
 
Suggestions for improving the outcome statements for patients in the primary 
care strategy are made in the PHAST report carried out as part of the EIA. 
These could be incorporated into the next version of the strategy, and linked 
to key indicators which should be developed to monitor issues around access 
over time e.g. ‘did not attends’ by specific groups, ethnicity recording.  
 
6.  Working with GPs and Practice-based Commissioning 
Collaboratives 
More description of how the PBC collaboratives will implement and support 
the developments should be included in the next version of the strategy. 
However, it is clear that the Practice Based Commissioning (PBC) 
collaboratives will be instrumental in developing and refining the networked 
care pathway and responsible for commissioning care for the super health 
centre network populations along those pathways.  
 
 
 
7. Implementation, governance and performance monitoring 
In order to benefit from the wealth of ideas from the voluntary and community 
sector organisations in relation to improving primary care, and to continue to 
involve public, patients and other key stakeholders in the development and 

Page 23



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 14 of 16 

implementation of the primary care strategy, ongoing stakeholder involvement 
is recommended. Service users and other stakeholders should be integral to 
the implementation process for each super health centre. This should be 
through representation of proposed patient and public involvement structures 
linked to PBC collaboratives with collaboratives taking a lead in the 
development of health centres for their locality. This structure will need to feed 
into HTPCT’s commissioning structures as well as into its governance and 
performance structures.  
 
8.  Organisation of services including continuity of care, appointment 
systems 
It needs to be clearly stated that patients will be able to continue to see their 
same GP if that GP moves to a super health centre, and that they will be able 
to make appointments with that same GP for planned care. However, for 
urgent care, as at present, patients might need to see another professional.  
The feasibility of having different types of appointment systems should be 
explored e.g. some drop-in non-urgent sessions as well as booked 
appointments in order to address some of the issues about access. Concerns 
about waiting times will be difficult to allay, but should be noted and taken into 
account in appointment systems.  
 
 
9. Services provided in super health centres 
Foot care and blood testing should be priorities for inclusion in super health 
centres and reference to the full list of services required should be made in 
terms of service planning, as well as full local needs assessments and greater 
involvement of local stakeholders in planning/commissioning services.  
 
10. Workforce  
A workforce strategy needs to be developed to ensure that the right staff are 
in the right place to deliver the strategy and to address some of the issues in 
relation to access that have arisen during the consultation.  This should 
include raising awareness of the specific needs of vulnerable people and of 
other specific groups such as carers, children/young people, older people and 
those with mental health problems and include all of the workforce.  
 
11. Hospital based model  
Further work needs to be done to define how the super health centres might 
work that would be located at the acute hospital sites, and how they might 
work differently to those within the community/primary care settings and focus 
on urgent care.   
 
 
12.  Health inequalities 
The development of the individual super health centre networks should be 
informed by a clear understanding of the needs of the populations they serve. 
This should underpin what services are commissioned and what performance 
measures are used to monitor the implementation and success of the super 
health centre model in addressing health inequalities.  
 

Page 24



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 15 of 16 

It would also be helpful to raise awareness of what the PCT is currently doing 
to address health inequalities. The issues in relation to the distribution of 
services noted above also need to be addressed.  More widespread access 
should be given to preventative interventions and health information as part of 
the strategy.  
 
13. Pharmacy 
Further work to be undertaken with pharmacists to develop an approach that 
would support the new model.  
 
14.  Children and Young People 
The primary care strategy should include more detail as to how it will help 
implement the children and young people’s agenda and work with children’s 
services.  
 
15. Older People 
Action related to concerns raised about transport will be particularly important 
for older people; other issues for older people could be specifically addressed 
in the next version of the primary care strategy.  
 
16. Mental health  
Further work to be carried out to plan how people with mental health problems 
might benefit from the primary care strategy and how mental health services 
might work alongside primary care.  
 
17. Learning disabilities  
The work that has been done to date to identify the needs of people with 
learning disabilities needs to be incorporated into the implementation of the 
strategy. This to include the recent review and recommendations by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
18. Carers 
The specific needs of carers in relation to primary care services could be 
considered further, and included in workforce training and development.  
 
19. St Ann’s site 
As noted above, there were some calls for a hospital on St Ann’s, the mental 
health trust were also keen to work together on proposals for this site. It might 
be helpful to have a position paper on proposals/options for the site.  
 
 
20. Privatisation concerns 
We need to be clear that the super health centre model is not about 
privatisation but about quality. We will look to commission services from a 
range of providers including local NHS providers, 3rd sector providers as well 
working with private providers.  This will be in line with Department of Health 
policy that the TPCT is expected to develop and work with a range of 
providers to deliver the best possible services for its population. 
 
 

Page 25



SDS/GH 23.01.08  Page 16 of 16 

 
 

Page 26



 
 
Well-Being Partnership Theme Board      
 
Date:  4 March 2008  

Report Title: Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults Policy and Procedures 

Report of: Director Adults, Culture and Community Services 
 
 

 
Summary 
 
To update Well-Being Partnership Board on The Multi-Agency Safeguarding 
Policy. 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
§ That Well-Being Partnership Board endorse the revised policy and 

procedures and commend them across all stakeholders for implementation 
§ That stakeholders across the Borough review internal procedures to 

ensure that they are aligned to the revised policy and procedures. 
 

 
For more information contact: 
Tom Brown 
Acting Assistant Director, Adults  
Telephone Number: 020 8489 2326 
E-mail: tom.brown@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Strategic Implications 
§ Haringey has had a multi-agency policy in place since 2002 to protect 

vulnerable adults. This has been implemented across the Council and 
partner agencies with varying degrees of success. Over the last three 
years significant progress has been made in implementing robust 
procedures across all adult service user groups to ensure that we do all 
we can to protect vulnerable adults from abuse.  

 
§ Building upon work undertaken following the publication of “No Secrets” in 

2000, the ADSS have drawn up a National Framework of standards for 
good practice. The focus of the new guidance seeks to be more proactive 
in looking to ensure that anyone who may require community care 
services is able to retain independence, well-being and choice and do so 
free from risk of abuse or neglect. 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 27



§ In the light of the change of focus and developments, the Council and 
partners have reviewed and revised the Haringey Multi-Agency Policy and 
Procedures to reflect best practice. 

 

Equalities Implications  

§ This policy and attached procedures are aimed at safeguarding some of 
the most vulnerable people in the borough. They will be applied on the 
basis of identified risk, targeting those deemed to be at the most significant 
and imminent risk. Equalities monitoring of the use of the policy and 
procedures will take place at least annually (more often if patterns of 
abuse are suspected). 

Consultation 

§ These policies and procedures have been taken via the Safeguarding 
Board to all stakeholders. 

Background 

§ Since the Multi-Agency protocol was implemented in Haringey in 2002, 
there have been significant improvements in training, awareness, reporting 
and investigating concerns of abuse of vulnerable adults. In 2006/07 there 
were 172 alerts raised that resulted in 158 formal investigations under the 
protocol. This was markedly increased from the 78 in the previous year. 
The figures for 2007/08 to January 25th are 157 alerts (including four 
serious institutional investigations with many individuals at risk). 

 
§  In the light of the increasing awareness of Safeguarding issues and the 

consequent increase in referrals and investigations, Haringey Council has 
made a decision to increase it’s investment in this area and has created a 
new post to support the current Adult Protection Manager – now to be re-
designated Safeguarding Manager, Adults. This will increase our capacity 
across the Borough to support all stakeholders in raising awareness, 
identifying potential abuse and ensuring appropriate investigation and 
support for those who are at risk. Resources for the new post have been 
identified in budget proposals for next year and we are in the process of 
recruiting to this post.  

 
§  Haringey Safeguarding Adults Partnership has a Zero-Tolerance Policy to 

abuse. In no circumstance is abuse accepted or tolerated.  All agencies 
across Haringey seek to work in collaboration to ensure that we implement 
this policy. The primary aim of all partners is to prevent abuse, but where 
preventative strategies fail; partners will initiate and follow the revised 
policies and procedures. 

 

Conclusion 

§ All stakeholders have improved awareness and performance in 
Safeguarding vulnerable adults. The Well-Being Partnership Board is 
asked to endorse the proposed revised policy and procedure and 
commend them for implementation over all partners within Haringey. 

Page 28



Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs 

§  Haringey Multi-Agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures 
 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



January 2008  Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HARINGEY MULTI-AGENCY 
 

SAFEGUARDING ADULTS 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
Adult, Culture & Community Services 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



January 2008  Page 2 

 
Version 

V3 
Status 

Final Draft 
Author 
Olive Komba-Kono 
Safeguarding Adults Manager 
Adult Services 
Denise Sourris 
Interim Business manager 
Adult Services 
 
 

Document objectives: Sets out the multi agency framework for with regards to 
Safeguarding Adults, in line with government legislation and up to date guidance 
 

Intended Recipients: All staff in Adults, Culture, Community Services; Partner 
Agencies across Haringey 
 

Group/Persons Consulted:  
Safeguarding Adults Board  

Monitoring Arrangements:  
The Safeguarding Adults Manager will ensure that policy and procedures are kept in 
line with new legislations and guidelines. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment: 
The assessment was completed in December 07 and recommendations accepted. 

Training/Resource Implications:  
Ongoing training is in place with regards to safe guarding adults, the new policy and 
procedure should be incorporated into that training 
 

Approving Body and Date Approved 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Date of Issue 
 
 

March 2008 

Schedule Review Date 
 
 

 
March 2010 

Lead Officer 
 
 

Safeguarding Adults Manager 

Path and File Name 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 32



January 2008  Page 3 

Contents:                                                                                              
 

 1 Foreword                                 
  
 2 Haringey Safeguarding Adults Policy  
  2.1  Introduction 

         2.2  Statement of Vulnerable Adults Rights 
         2.3 Multi agency statement of Commitment 

 
3 Scope  
4 Policy Framework   
5 Purpose 
 
6 Definition of a Vulnerable Adult 
  6.1     What constitutes abuse? 
 6.2 Risk arising from self-neglect  
 6.3 Types of Abuse 
 6.4 Other types of abuses 
 6.5 Indicators of abuse 
 6.6 Who can be a perpetrator 
 6.7 The carer as the alleged perpetrator 
 6.8 Where can a Vulnerable Adult be abused 
         6.9 When abuse constitutes a crime 
         6.10   Prevention of abuse 
         6.11   Failure to investigate 
         6.12   What is considered an inappropriate 

relationship between paid carer/professionals 
and service users 

         6.13  When can intervention be justified? 
 

7     Other Related Policies 
         7.1  Domestic Violence 
         7.2  Child Protection 
         7.3 Confidentiality 
         7.4 Information Sharing 
         7.5 Consent 
         7.6 Capacity 
         7.7 Lack of Capacity 
         7.8 Best Interest 
 

8   Equal Opportunities Policy Statement 

Page 33



January 2008  Page 4 

 
9  Roles and Responsibilities 
         9.1 Roles of individual Haringey agencies 
         9.2 Roles of safeguarding board 
         9.3 Haringey adult services 
         9.4 Safeguarding adult manager   
         9.5 Haringey adult services contracts team 
         9.6 Placing authorities 
         9.7 The Police 
         9.8 National Health Professionals 
         9.9 The Commission for Social Care Inspection 
         9.10 Independent Providers 
         9.11 Supporting People and Supported Housing 
         9.12 The Complaints Officer 
          
        9.13 Lead Roles 
         9.13.1Adult Services as the lead investigator 
         9.13.2 Police as lead investigator 
         9.13.3  Other agencies as lead investigator 
 
        9.14 Management Roles and Responsibilities 
         9.14.1 Duties of service manager in a care    

 setting  
         9.14.2 Duties and responsibilities of a registered 

 manager in a care setting 
         9.14.3 Allegations against a member of staff 

 
 10   Haringey Safeguarding Adults Procedures 

     10.1 Alert 
          10.1.1 Who can raise an Alert 
                   10.1.2 How to respond to an Alert 
                   10.1.3 How to raise an Alert 
                   10.1.4 Where to find a copy of the Alert form 
                   10.1.5 How to complete the Alert form 
                   10.1.6 What is the timeframe for completing  
       the Alert form 
 

10.2 Referral 
10.2.1 When must a referral be made and 

where is it sent  
10.2.2 What must ICS do with the referral 

Page 34



January 2008  Page 5 

10.2.3 What happens if the referral is sent 
during out of hours 

10.2.4 What happens if the concerns arise 
during a single assessment 
process(SAP) or a review of current 
care plan 

10.2.5 Does consent need to be given by the 
vulnerable adult for the referral to be 
made 

 

10.3 Notification 
10.3.1 To what other agency must abuse of a   

criminal nature be reported 
10.3.2 Who else do you contact if abuse 

occurs in a regulated care provision 
10.3.3 Who must you always notify 

regardless of the source of the referral 
 

10.4 Allocations 
10.4.1 Who is allocated the referral when the 

 decision is made to proceed with an  
 investigation 

10.4.2 What is the role of the 
safeguarding manager 

10.4.3 What are the responsibilities of 
the safeguarding manager 

10.4.4 What is the role of the 
investigating officer  

 
10.5 Decisions 

10.5.1 what decisions must the safeguarding   
manager make 

10.5.2 what happens if consent is not given 
by the vulnerable adult to proceed with 
the referral 

10.5.3 what happens if the criteria for an 
investigation is not met 

 
10.6 Risk Assessment 

10.6.1 what must be considered when 
assessing level of urgency and risk 

Page 35



January 2008  Page 6 

10.6.2 what is considered high level of risk 
10.6.3 what must be done if allegation has a 

high level of risk 
10.6.4 what is considered to be medium level 

of risk 
10.6.5 what must be done if allegation has a 

medium level of risk 
10.6.6 what is considered low level of risk 
10.6.7 what must be done if allegation has a 

low level of risk 
 

10.7  Safeguarding Assessment Strategy 
        10.7.1 Who co-ordinates the    
     safeguarding adults strategy 
        10.7.2 What is the difference between a  
     strategy meeting and a strategy   
     discussion 
        10.7.3 When must you have a strategy   
     meeting 
        10.7.4 When do you have a strategy   
     discussion 
        10.7.5 What is the purpose of a strategy  
     meeting 
        10.7.6 Who is to be involved and invited to  
     strategy meeting 
        10.7.7 Is the service user included at this  
     stage 
        10.7.8 Is the alleged perpetrator invited to  
     strategy meeting 
        10.7.9 When is the alleged perpetrator   
     interviewed 
        10.7.10 Who else would not be invited to  
      strategy meeting 
        10.7.11  What needs to be agreed at   
      a strategy meeting/discussion 
        10.7.12  What should be included in the   
     interim plan 
        10.7.13 when is the next meeting convened 

 
 10.8  Safeguarding Assessment 
   10.8.2 What is the purpose of the 
     Assessment 

Page 36



January 2008  Page 7 

10.8.3 Types of abuse determine other 
agencies’ involvement 

10.8.4 How much information should be 
shared 

10.8.5 What is the role of the Police at this 
stage 

10.8.6 What is the role of the safeguarding 
manager at this stage 

10.8.7 What is the role of the relevant 
agency investigating officer at this 
stage 

10.8.8 What is the possible outcomes of the 
assessment/investigation 

 

10.9 Safeguarding Plan 
10.9.1 When should the safeguarding plan 

 meeting/case conference 
10.9.2 What is the aim of the meeting 
  Who is invited to the meeting 
  What happens if an important   
  involved professional cannot attend 

  10.9.5 Who should chair a safeguarding  
   plan meeting/case conference 

10.9.6 Where should a safeguarding plan  
  meeting/case conference be held 
10.9.7 How freely should information be 

 shared in a safeguarding plan 
 meeting 

10.9.8 What should be on the agenda of a 
 safeguarding plan meeting 

10.9.9 What happens if abuse is 
 substantiated 

10.9.10 What action can be taken against the 
 perpetrator if abuse is proven 

10.9.11 What is the purpose of a 
safeguarding  plan 

10.9.12 What are the possible outcomes of 
 the meeting 

10.9.13 How is the outcome documented 
10.9.14 What is the role of the safeguarding 

 adults key worker 
10.9.15 What happens after the meeting 

 10.10 Review 

Page 37



January 2008  Page 8 

  10.10.1 When must a review be held 
  10.10.2 What is the purpose of a review 
  10.10.3 What happens if a review reveals  
    serious concerns 
 
10.11 Recording and Monitoring 
10.12 Post Intervention Work and Debrief 
10.13 Staff Support 
10.14 Institution Concerns Investigations 
10.15 Dispute resolution for Complex cases involving   
  more than one specialist area. 

 
11 Serious Case Review  
12 Dispute resolution for complex case involving more than 

one specialist area 
13 Referral to the POVA register 
14 Related Policies  

 

15 Haringey Safeguarding Adults Legal Framework 
15.1  Police Powers and Criminal Investigations 
15.2  Criminal Law 
15.3  Police Powers and Criminal Investigations 
15.4  Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 
15.5  Youth Justice and Criminal Evidence Act 1999 
15.6  National Guidance Document “Achieving Best 

 Evidence in Criminal Proceedings”2001 
15.7  Sexual Offences Act 2003 
15.8  Civil Law 
15.9  Domestic Violence Legislation 
15.10 Mental Capacity Act 2005 
15.11 Financial Protection 
15.12 Mental Health Act 1983 
15.13 Powers to act without Consent 
15.14 The Right of the Vulnerable Adult 
15.15 Local Authority Adult Services 
15.16 Public Health Act 1936 
15.17 Residential care and the Law 
15.18 Legislations relevant to Carers 
15.19 Disclosure of Personal Information 
15.20 Other Civil Remedies 

 

16 Appendix 

Page 38



January 2008  Page 9 

Appendix 1:   Safeguarding Adults Board: Terms of   
     Reference 
Appendix 2:   Mental Capacity Guidance Notes 
Appendix 3: Commissioning, Contracts and the Tender           

Process  
Appendix 4:  Learning from Cornwall: CSCI 

recommendations 
Appendix 5: Haringey Multi-Agency Safeguarding Adults 

Procedures Workflow chart. 

 
17 References  
 Gloucestershire  Safeguarding Adults Multi-Agency 
 Policy and Procedures, 7/6/2007 
 Ealing Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults (multi-
 agency policy and procedures, Aug 2006 
 Protection of vulnerable adults from abuse in 
 Haringey, Policy and Procedures, December 2005 
 No Secrets, Department of Health, 2000 
 Safeguarding Adults, A National Framework of 
 Standards, ADSS, 2005 

 

Page 39



January 2008  Page 10 

1. Foreword 
 
“Abuse is a violation of an individual’s human and civil rights by any other person 
or persons.” 1 
 
People living in Haringey have the right to live a life free from abuse and neglect.  
It is the responsibility of each agency in Haringey working with vulnerable adults 
to ensure that these adults are protected from any type of abuse. Each agency 
has a responsibility to assess when a vulnerable adult may be at possible risk of 
harm and to work and to work with them, their families and any carers to reduce 
this risk. 
 
This document represents a collaboration between the agencies in the Borough 
with a responsibility for working with vulnerable adults: statutory, health, the 
policy the voluntary sector and the private sector, to provide a joint policy 
framework by which we work in partnership to safeguard vulnerable adults from 
abuse. The policy and procedures are based on ‘No Secrets’2 and ‘A National 
Framework of Standards for good practice and outcomes in Adult Protection 
work.’3 
 
Haringey Adult Services are responsible for the co-ordination and development of 
the policy and procedures for safeguarding vulnerable adults in their local 
community. This policy would however be ineffective without input and ownership 
from all partner agencies.  
 
Haringey’s multi-agency safeguarding adults policy and procedures represents 
the commitment across the agencies in Haringey to promote a safer Haringey. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Policy 
                                                 
1
 No Secrets – Department of Health (2000) 
2
 No Secrets – Department of Health (2000 
3
 A National Framework of Standards for good practice and outcomes in Adult Protection work.’

3
 

ADSS 2005 

Page 40



January 2008  Page 11 

 

2.1 Introduction: 
 
This document sets out the policies and procedures Haringey Council staff need 
to adhere to with relation to Safeguarding Vulnerable adults from abuse. The 
policies have been developed to promote good practice requirements across the 
different agencies in the Borough.  
 
Effective communication and an understanding of each agencies roles and 
responsibilities are crucial to the implementation of this policy. These policies and 
procedures have not been developed in isolation; they represent a unified 
approach to safeguarding adults across Haringey. 
 
As a statutory organisation Haringey Council has a duty of care to promote the 
best interest of all the Adults it supports. Haringey’s Multi-Agency Safeguarding 
Adults Policy and Procedures exist so that any suspected abuse of a vulnerable 
adult is reported; vulnerable adults at risk are protected from further abuse; clear 
guidance and support is provided to those reporting abuse; procedures and 
guidance are in place for those investigating alleged abuse; ensure that effective 
monitoring and recording systems are in place to collect evidence; promote the 
rights of vulnerable adults and protect them from abuse and ensure that there is a 
robust assessment process in place that will safeguard adults from abuse. 
 

 
2.2 Vulnerable Adults Statement of the Rights  
 
Abuse exists in various forms and can be perpetuated by one or more people. 
Whatever the abuse or the setting, abuse is not acceptable and a violation of a 
persons basic human right. 
 
There are people living in Haringey who may be at greater risk of abuse because 
of their age, the nature of their disability or circumstances. Some adults are 
unable to live their life without the assistance of others. Each Adult living in 
Haringey has the right to receive support and live a life free of abuse and neglect. 
 
Haringey Safeguarding Adults Partnership has a Zero-Tolerance Policy to abuse. 
In no circumstance is abuse accepted or tolerated.  All agencies across Haringey 
will work in collaboration to ensure that this policy is adhered to.     

 
Vulnerable Adults in Haringey have the right to: 

§ Safety and the provision of adequate care and support. Including 
protection from all forms of violence including physical punishment, 
intimidation, belittling, lack of respect, harassment and sexual assault. 

§ Independence. 
§ Make decisions about their own life, even if this may involve activities 

where there is an element of risk.  
§ The protection of the law, including the right to money and property that 

is legally theirs.   

Page 41



January 2008  Page 12 

§ Lead a life free from discrimination and have their own rights upheld 
regardless of ethnic origin, sexuality, impairment or disability, age and 
religion or cultural background.   

§ Privacy. 
§ Appropriate information about keeping themselves safe and exercising 

their rights. 
§ Advocacy and assistance in making decisions regarding their abuse, 

where their Mental Capacity would prevent them from fully participating 
in the investigations. 

§ Be involved in all necessary decision making in the event of abuse, 
including the right to decide how to proceed and who they decide to 
confide in. 

§ Decline the intervention of statutory organisations after having made an 
informed decision regarding their circumstances, where risk has been 
identified.   

§ Report any abuse and/or neglect and for that allegation to be recorded 
and taken seriously, including the right to call the police in circumstances 
where a crime has been committed.  

§ Bring a formal complaint under the relevant complaints procedures if 
they are not satisfied with the initial investigations.    

 
 

2.3 Multi-agency statement of Commitment: 
 

All agencies and organisations that worked in partnership to develop the Multi-
agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedure in Haringey are committed to 
making sure it is effective by: 
 

§ Raising awareness that vulnerable adults can be subjected to abuse.  
§ Giving a clear message that preventing abuse from happening, or 

protecting a vulnerable adult from further abuse if abuse has taken 
place is everyone’s responsibility. 

§ Making sure that Safeguarding Adults policies and procedures are widely 
available and easily understood, especially by those people they are 
designed to help. 

§ Promoting best practice to minimise abuse through the collaboration of all 
agencies/organisations. 

§ Making sure that all staff have sufficient knowledge and understanding of 
their roles and responsibilities in regard to Haringey’s Multi-agency 
Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures through the relevant training 
for implementing the procedures in their work.   

§ Promoting the early recognition of abuse and prevention of further abuse. 
§ Making sure that there is consistent and effective response to any 

concerns, allegations or disclosure of abuse. Supporting staff in reporting 
and investigating allegations of adult abuse. 

§ Contributing towards Safeguarding adult’s investigations, Strategy 
Meetings and Safeguarding plans.   

§ Making sure that, where intervention is necessary, staff pursue action in a 
way that causes the least disruption to the vulnerable adult’s way of life. 

Page 42



January 2008  Page 13 

§ Preventing the risk of the abuse reoccurring.  
§ Recognising that adults identified as vulnerable have a right to 

confidentiality. 
§ Working in a preventative manner to protect vulnerable adults from abuse 

and/or neglect. 
§ Making sure that if during a Safeguarding Adults Referral or Investigation, 

any concerns about the safety and well-being of a child or young person 
arise these concerns should be referred immediately to Haringey Councils 
Children and Young People’s Service.   

 
 
3 Scope 

 
This policy and procedure applies to staff working in: Haringey Council Adult, 
Culture and Community Services, Haringey Primary Care Trust, Haringey Mental 
Health Trust, Haringey Police, Haringey Legal Services, Commission for Social 
Care Inspection, The Probation Service, The Crown Prosecution Service, London 
Ambulance Service NHS Trust, the Fire and Rescue Service and contracted and 
independent providers of care.   

 
This policy and procedures applies to all vulnerable adults, resident in the London 
Borough of Haringey, aged 18 and over.  

 

 

4 Policy Framework 
 

The Department of Health and Home Office issued the publication “No Secrets: 
Guidance on developing Multi-Agency Policies and Procedures to Protect 
Vulnerable Adults from Abuse” in March 2000. Haringey’s Safeguarding Adults 
Policy adheres to the contents of “No Secrets”. 

 
Haringey is currently working towards meeting the 11 standards set out in the 
Association of Director of Adult Social Services (ADASS): “A National Framework 
of standards for good practice and outcomes in Adult Protection work”.  The 11 
standards are: 
 
Standard 1: Each local authority has established a multi-agency partnership to 
lead Safeguarding Adults work. 

 
Standard 2: Accountability for and ownership of Safeguarding Adults work is 
recognised by each partner organisation’s executive body. 

 
Standard 3: The Safeguarding Adults policy includes a clear statement of every 
person’s right to live free from abuse and neglect, and this message is actively 
promoted to the public by the Local Strategic Partnership, the Safeguarding 
Adults Partnership, and its member organisations. 

 

Page 43



January 2008  Page 14 

Standard 4: Each partner agency has a clear, well-publicised policy of Zero 
Tolerance of abuse within the organisation.   

  
Standard 5: The “Safeguarding Adults” partnership oversees a multi-agency 
workforce development/training sub-group.  The partnership has a workforce 
development/training strategy and ensures that it is appropriately resourced. 

 
Standard 6: All citizens can access information about how to gain safety from 
abuse and violence, including information about the local Safeguarding Adults 
procedures. 

 
Standard 7: There is a local multi-agency Safeguarding Adults policy and 
procedure describing the framework for responding to all adults “who is or may 
be eligible for community care services” and who may be at risk of abuse or 
neglect. 

 
Standard 8: Each partner agency has an internal set of guidelines, consistent 
with the local multi-agency “Safeguarding Adults” policy and procedures, which 
set out the responsibilities of all workers to operate within it. 

 
Standard 9: The multi-agency Safeguarding Adults procedures detail the 
following stages: Alert, Referral, Decision, Safeguarding Assessment Strategy, 
Safeguarding Assessment, Safeguarding Plan, Review, Recording and 
Monitoring. 

 
Standard 10: The safeguarding procedures are accessible to all adults covered 
by the policy. 

 
Standard 11: The partnership explicitly includes service users as key partners in 
all aspects of the work.  This includes building service-user participation into its 
membership, monitoring, development and implementation of its work; training 
strategy, planning and the implementation of their individual safeguarding 
assessment and plans. 

 
5 Aims of the Policy 

 
In Haringey, the Haringey Safeguarding Adults Board is tasked with the 
responsibility of ensuring that vulnerable adults are free from abuse and neglect. 
This multi-agency policy and procedure is the framework by which the Board’s 
strategies are implemented across the borough. This policy does not stand alone 
and should be read in the context of other local operational procedures, the 
legislative framework and good practice requirements set out by regulators. The 
framework provides good practice guidance to local agencies that have a 
responsibility to investigate and take action when a vulnerable adult is believed to 
be suffering abuse.4  

 

                                                 
4
 No Secrets”: DOH 2000- Section 1.5 

Page 44



January 2008  Page 15 

This policy and procedure should provide all staff working in voluntary, 
community, statutory and private agencies/organisation throughout the Borough 
the means to identify incidences of abuse and be able to respond in a way that 
safeguards that adult, in line with the good practice requirements. Each agency 
has a responsibility to respond sensitively and coherently to reported incidents or 
allegations of abuse/neglect. It is imperative that there is a consistent approach 
across the Borough. 

 
The primary aim for all agencies is to prevent abuse.  Where preventative 
strategies fail, agencies should ensure that robust procedures are in place and 
are closely followed in dealing with incidents of abuse.   

 
 

6. What is the definition of a Vulnerable Adult? 
 

A Vulnerable Adult is any adult over the age of 18 “who is or may be in need of 
community care services by reason of mental or other disability, age or illness 
and who is or may be unable to take care of him or herself, or unable to protect 
him or herself against significant harm or exploitation”.  5 
 
The term “community care services” in this document includes all social and 
health care services in any context.  This includes adults with Mental Disability, 
Physical Disability, Learning Disability, Illness and Frailty.  6 
 
The term “harm” should be taken to include not only ill treatment (including sexual 
abuse and forms of ill treatment that are not physical), but also the impairment of, 
or an avoidable deterioration in, physical or mental health. It should also be taken 
to include the impairment of physical, intellectual, emotional, social or behavioural 
development.  7 
 
For young people or children under the age of 18, who may be at risk of abuse, 
or significant harm, Haringey’s Safeguarding Children Procedures should be 
referred to.  
 
There will be certain circumstances when it will be appropriate for the Children 
and Young People’s Directorate to work jointly with Adult Services to safeguard a 
young person, for example a young person who is aged 17 years old and is in 
transition. 

 

 
6.1 What Constitutes Abuse? 

 

                                                 
5
 No Secrets”: DOH 2000: Section 2.3 
6
 (“No Secrets”: DOH 2000: Section 2.4) 
 
7
 No Secrets”: DOH 2000 Section 2.18 

Page 45



January 2008  Page 16 

Abuse can take place in a number of different ways and in any setting. 
Fundamentally, abuse violates an individual’s human and civil rights. 8 
 
Abuse can occur in any relationship and may result in significant harm to, or 
exploitation of, the person subjected to it. 9  
 
Abuse can constitute “a single or repeated act or lack of appropriate action 
occurring within any relationship where there is an expectation of trust, which 
causes harm or distress to a vulnerable adult”. 10 

 
Abuse of a vulnerable adult may be obvious for example, where this is a visible 
injury, but in many instances the evidence may be subtle.   

 
Abuse is an ill treatment that causes significant harm and can result in the 
deterioration of a person’s physical, emotional, social or behavioural 
development.  Neglect and poor professional practice can be considered abuse.  
This may take the form of isolated incidents of poor practice through to ill 
treatment or gross misconduct.  
 
 

6.2 Risks Arising From Self Neglect 
 
In cases where there is risk arising from significant neglect due to capacity then 
the Haringey Multi-agency Safeguarding Adult Policy and Procedure should be 
applied. In particular, if a vulnerable adult does not have the capacity to meet 
their needs, or consent to services/care that will ensure those needs are met due 
to: mental health, a brain injury or learning disability. The procedure should also 
be followed if a vulnerable adult does have mental capacity but has refused 
essential services, without which their health and safety needs cannot be met.   
 
In cases where a vulnerable adult does have capacity, then that adult has the 
right to make their own choice about the care they wish to receive or not receive. 
All endeavours should be made to provide that person with as much relevant 
information as possible to assist them in making an informed choice.  

 
Where agencies are unable to implement services to reduce or remove risks the 
reasons for this should be fully recorded and maintained on the person’s file, with 
a full record of the efforts and actions taken by the agencies to assist and help 
the vulnerable adult.   

 
The vulnerable adult, carer or advocate should be fully informed of the services 
offered and the reasons why the services were not implemented.  There is a 
need to make clear that the person can contact the relevant agency at any time in 
the future for services.  In cases of high risk, consideration should be given to 

                                                 
8
 (“No Secrets”: DOH 2000- Section 2.5) 
9 (“No Secrets”: DOH 2000- Section 2.6) 
10
 (“No Secrets”: DOH 2000- Section 2.6)  
 

Page 46



January 2008  Page 17 

arrangements for monitoring and where appropriate making proactive contact to 
ensure that circumstances do not deteriorate to an unacceptable degree.   
 
If an individual does not have mental capacity due to the state of their mental 
health or a brain injury, the Mental Capacity Act 2005 protocols need to be 
followed. In Haringey Council, these protocols set out the steps that a 
professional needs to take in relation to the legislation. The key action is a 
referral to an Independent Mental Capacity Advisor (IMCA) Service. Haringey 
Council currently uses Rethink as it IMCA service. The IMCA will act as the 
individual’s independent advocate throughout the safeguarding investigation to 
promote the individuals wellbeing and safety. 

 
 

6.3 Types of Abuse: 

The types of Abuse found in this policy are in accordance with “No Secrets” 
definitions. 

Physical Abuse: includes hitting, slapping, pushing, kicking, misuse of 
medication or inappropriate sanctions or restraint. 

Sexual Abuse: includes rape and sexual assault or sexual acts to which the 
vulnerable adult has not consented, or could not consent or was pressured in to 
consenting. 

Psychological Abuse: includes emotional abuse, threats of harm or 
abandonment, deprivation of contact, humiliation, blaming, controlling, 
intimidation, coercion, harassment, verbal abuse, isolation or withdrawal from 
services or supportive networks. 

Financial or material abuse: includes theft, fraud, exploitation, pressure in 
connection with wills, property or inheritance or financial transactions, or the 
misuse or misappropriation of property, possessions or benefits.   

Neglect and acts of omission: includes ignoring medical or physical care 
needs, failure to provide access to appropriate health, social care or educational 
services, the withholding of the necessities of life, such as medication, adequate 
nutrition and heating; 

Discriminatory abuse: includes racist, sexist, that based on a person’s 
disability, and other forms of harassment, slurs or similar treatment. 

 

6.4 Other types of abuse could include: 

Institutional Abuse: includes neglect and poor professional practice: this can 
range from isolated incidents of poor or unsatisfactory professional practice to 
pervasive ill treatment or gross misconduct. It includes the mistreatment or abuse 
by a regime or individual/s within an institution e.g. a hospital, care home or day 
centre. It occurs where the individual’s wishes or dignity are consistently or 

Page 47



January 2008  Page 18 

repeatedly compromised to ensure the smooth running of an institution or 
organisation.  Any types of the abuse mentioned above can occur within 
institutions and could include poor care standards, misuse of medication, 
inappropriate restraint, lack of privacy etc.    

Peer Abuse: including abuse of one vulnerable adult by another vulnerable adult, 
both of whom are service users within a care setting.   

6.5 Indicators of Abuse: 

 
An indicator of abuse should not be taken to mean that abuse is or has occurred. 
Indicators of abuse should act as a trigger for a robust assessment of the 
individual’s circumstances and situation. Allegations of abuse need to be 
substantiated with evidence. It is therefore essential that care is taken not to 
entirely depend upon these indicators.  Missing these indicators on the other 
hand could have serious consequences for the vulnerable adult. Indicators of 
possible abuse need to be used as tools to support professional practice and 
judgement.   
The following warning signs are good indicators of abuse:  
 

o  Bruises, falls and injuries 

o  Signs of neglect such as clothes being dirty, malnutrition 

o  Poor care either at home or in residential or nursing home or hospital 

o  Changes in someone’s financial situation: problems with their finances, 

depletion of funds, change in ownership etc.    

o  Changes in behaviour such as, loss of confidence, anxiety, aggression. 
 

6.6 Who can be a Perpetrator?  
 
Anyone potentially could be a perpetrator of abuse. Anybody in any relationship 
with a vulnerable adult, who exploits their position of trust, could be the 
perpetrator of abuse. 

 
Vulnerable Adults are abused by a wide range of people such as: 

o Family 
o Friends 
o Neighbours 
o Professional staff 
o Paid carers 
o Informal carers 
o Volunteers 
o Other Service Users 
o Associates 
o People who deliberately exploit vulnerable people 
o Strangers. 

 

Page 48



January 2008  Page 19 

The roles, powers and duties of the various agencies in relation to the alleged 
perpetrator will vary.11 

 
6.7 The Carer as Alleged Perpetrator: 
 
Carers provide support to sick and disabled people that saves the state 
approximately £57 billion every year.12  However, it is also important to recognise 
that a carer may also be a perpetrator of abuse. Raising an awareness will help 
to ensure that carers will receive assistance and support to reduce the likelihood 
of them committing an abusive act.   

 
It may be that the carer’s response or attitudes indicate that something is the 
matter.  The abusive behaviour may stem from an individual response to a given 
situation rather than because of the situation itself. 

 
There are various factors that could affect the relationship to breakdown between 
a carer and the vulnerable adult. The factors include: 

o Dependency on the vulnerable adult (e.g. financial) 
o Alcohol/substance misuse 
o Conflicting responsibilities 
o Poor family relationships over the years 
o Low income/ poor housing/ financial difficulties 
o Carer had to change his/her lifestyle 
o Isolation/ no family support/ no support from other agency/ no social life 
o No personal private space 
o Caring responsibility has been imposed 
o Carer has abused in the past or has been abused 
o Personal ambition is affected 
o Carer under extreme stress 
o History of Mental health problems 

 
Abuse can manifest in various ways and include: 

o Silence in the home 
o Lack of consideration of vulnerable adult’s needs 
o Refusing the vulnerable adult to have an opinion 
o Aggression or volatile behaviour 
o Carer rejecting other help 
o Carer shows apathy, withdrawal, depression, hopelessness or suspicion 
o Not allowing the vulnerable adult to be visited without the carer present; 
o Any of the other types of abuse already listed 

 
Aggravating factors could include: 

o Reversal of the usual parent/child roles 
o Incontinence or difficult behaviour, especially if perceived as deliberate 
o Communication problems e.g. hearing, speech or memory 
o Violence is the norm 

                                                 
11
 No Secrets: DOH 2000- Section 2.12 

12
 Carers UK 2002, Without Us: Calculating the value of carers’ support 

Page 49



January 2008  Page 20 

o Vulnerable person is rejecting or ungrateful; 
o Disturbed sleep 
o Carer feels exploited 
o Carer feels guilty about expressing their feelings around the caring role 
o Carer experiences a cultural conflict in their caring role 
o Carer lacks the knowledge required to provide appropriate care 

 

6.8 Where can a Vulnerable Adult be Abused: 
 
Abuse can take place in any context13 and can occur in the following settings: 

o Nursing Home 
o Residential Care Home 
o In Hospital 
o Day care centre 
o In a custodial situation 
o In their own home 
o In other places assumed as being safe 
o In public places  
o Living alone or with a relative.  

 
6.9 When abuse constitutes a crime:   

 
Various definitions of abuse are actions that may constitute a criminal offence. 
Such actions include: assault (whether physical or psychological), sexual assault 
(including rape), theft, fraud or other forms of financial exploitation, discrimination 
on grounds of race, gender or disability and false imprisonment.  In this respect, 
vulnerable adults are entitled to the protection of the law in the same way as 
other members of the public.   
 
Criminal acts carried out by strangers are not usually defined as abuse but in 
some cases it may be appropriate to use Haringey’s Multi-agency Safeguarding 
Adults Policy and Procedures to ensure that the vulnerable adult receives the 
services and support that they need. 
 
In addition to this the Mental Capacity Act 2005, which came in to force in April 
2007, introduces a new criminal offence of ill treatment or neglect of a person 
who lacks Mental Capacity (e.g. Adults suffering from dementia) 
 
When reports about alleged abuse suggest that a criminal offence has been 
committed, it is important as part of Haringey’s Safeguarding Adults procedures, 
to immediately refer the incident to the police as a matter of urgency.  The police 
will advise on the necessary further action, level of urgency and the process for 
undertaking any subsequent criminal investigation. 
 
Criminal Investigation by the Police must be prioritised.  Through the 
Safeguarding Adults process, liaison with the police may allow other action to 

                                                 
13
 No secrets: DOH 2000- section 2.14) 

Page 50



January 2008  Page 21 

take place whilst the criminal investigation continues. However, it may be that the 
Council takes no action because the police need to complete their own 
investigation and any action could jeopardise that investigation.  The decision 
must be made in liaison with the police, who will advise what action should be 
taken. 
 
Criminal Offences are dealt with by the State - the Police investigate and then in 
liaison with the Crown Prosecution Service decisions are made whether or not to 
prosecute.  The Crown Prosecution Service has to apply two tests - whether 
there is a realistic prospect of conviction, and if so, whether it is in the public 
interest to proceed.   
 

6.10 Prevention of Abuse: The Responsibility of all 
agencies. 
 
The primary aim of all the care agencies/organisations within Haringey (Police, 
Adult Services, Commission for Social Care Inspection, Day Centres, care 
homes, private and voluntary organisations and any other care provider) is to 
prevent abuse. Each agency has a duty to ensure that policies and procedures 
are based on a strategies for prevention as much a possible. 
 
Each agency must provide accessible information available to users, carers and 
the general public on how to raise a concern or make a complaint. 
 
Staff need to be aware of safeguarding adults procedures. Safeguarding Adults 
should feature in induction and training packs for staff at a level that is 
commensurate with their role in the Safeguarding Adults process. Safeguarding 
Adult training must be mandatory training across each agency. All staff should be 
made aware that abuse can occur and what processes are in place to keep 
vulnerable adults safe. 
 
Procedures need to be in place across each agency, that deal with disclosure of 
abuse by a vulnerable adult. These procedures need to be compatible with this 
Haringey Multi-Agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures.  
 
Assessing vulnerability and identifying possible risks relating to abuse should be 
integrated into each agencies assessment and risk assessment framework. This 
should not be seen as a separate exercise but as part of a holistic assessment 
process. Good communication should be fostered, to promote an open culture in 
an organisation. Staff must communicate effectively with service users, carers 
and ensure that managers and senior managers are made aware of any 
concerns. 
 
Staff across all the agencies should have access to all relevant policies and 
procedures which will enable them to carry out their work to the best interest of 
the service user and carer. It is essential that staff are made aware of the 
importance of keeping accurate, factual and contemporaneous records.  All 
information should be recorded in a sensitive non judgemental manner keeping in 
mind service users and carers have access to their records under the Freedom of 

Page 51



January 2008  Page 22 

Information Act 2000. Any record kept about a service user may be also be used 
in the court arena as a legal document.  
 
Safe recruitment procedures and practices need to be in place for all staff across 
each agency. This should include agency staff, staff bank, sessional staff, student 
volunteers and any other staff/people working with vulnerable adults or children.  
Work references should be obtained prior to the employment commencing, 
candidates should be subject to an enhance Criminal Record Bureau (CRB) 
check, that is cross referenced with the Protection of Vulnerable Adults (POVA) 
register. Where a profession is regulated, for example social workers are 
regulated through the General Social Care Council (GSCC) and nurses are 
regulated via the Nursing and Midwifery Council (NMC), agencies should ensure 
that candidates are properly registered with their respective regulators and are 
not subject to any conduct proceedings or suspended from the register. 
 
Clear procedures should be in place for ‘whistle blowing’ or addressing 
allegations or concerns against staff, volunteers or any other person working on 
behalf of that agency. These procedures should be accessible to all staff and the 
public. They must promote the safety and welfare of vulnerable adults. 
Furthermore, agencies must guarantee that staff and service users, using these 
procedures appropriately, will not prejudice their own positions and prospects. 

 
Agencies must have robust systems to evidence the Safeguarding Adults 
guidance and must apply them when staff are suspended or dismissed. 
Professional bodies must be informed of the suspension or dismissal.  Codes of 
Conduct for all staff must be in place setting out what is expected of all staff and 
the minimum standards that should be upheld at all stages. There must also be 
clear guidance in place informing staff about what is not acceptable and how the 
agency will deal with such behaviour/ lapse in standards. 
 

6.11  Failure to Investigate 
 
If a statutory agency (Police, Adult Services or Health), does not investigate an 
allegation of abuse, other agencies or concerned parties (i.e. family, friends etc) 
have the right to make a formal complaint using the complaints procedures in 
place within those statutory organisations.  
 
Such complaints should always be brought to the attention of the Haringey Multi-
Agency Safeguarding Adults Board.  The complaint should be followed up in 
writing, outlining how the complaint is being investigated. There should also be 
an appropriate plan of action in place to ensure that support is provided to the 
Vulnerable Adult and these procedures are being correctly implemented. 
 
There may be cases where one organisation or agency does not believe another 
organisation is fulfilling its obligations to investigate or contribute to the 
investigation. In such instances, a complaint or discussion should initially be 
made with the manager of that team or section.  
 
If a satisfactory reply is not received the complainant should: 

o Consult with their own manager 

Page 52



January 2008  Page 23 

o Consider with him/her addressing the complaint to a more senior manager 
until a more satisfactory outcome is received.  

o Inform the Haringey Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator of the difficulties 
faced in completing a full investigation.    

 
Any failure of an agency to investigate or contribute effectively to an investigation 
of alleged abuse may have serious consequences for a vulnerable adult. In the 
worst case scenario it may even result in the death of that vulnerable adult, which 
may lead to a criminal investigation. 
 
It is therefore always imperative to escalate any concerns to a senior manager in 
the organisation, if there is no response from a team or unit manager. 
 

6.12 What is considered an inappropriate relationship 
between a paid carer/ professional and service user? 
 
As a professional employed to provide care and support to a service user or 
carer, there is a duty of care to promote the welfare and safety of that service 
user/carer. It is therefore appropriate to maintain a professional boundary at all 
times. 
 
Having a sexual or close personal relationship with a service user is not 
acceptable behaviour. This is because of the inherent power imbalance that is 
present in a professional support relationship. The Sexual Offences Act 2003 
recognises this imbalance and makes it illegal for a paid carer to have a sexual 
relationship with a service user who may have a mental health condition or is in a 
care setting. Other offences may be committed even if the professional thinks 
that the relationship is “consensual”.  
 
In order to safeguard vulnerable adults from this potential abuse each agency 
should have clear procedures in place for staff to report their concerns about 
interactions with a service user before it progresses.  
 
There may be cases where a service user or carer makes sexual advances or 
would like to have an intimate relationship with the professional. As a 
professional, there is a duty to maintain boundaries and to report any such 
advances directly to a line manager. The relationship should be managed so as 
not to alienate the service user/carer. It is the professional’s responsibility to 
ensure that the relationship remains within the boundaries professionalism.  
 
Any such incidences must be accurately and clearly recorded; evidencing what 
action has been taken to safeguard the vulnerable adult. It may be appropriate to 
offer the member of staff or the service user additional counselling and support.  

 
6.13 When can intervention be justified? 

 
When an alert outlining an allegation of abuse is first received, the extent or 
seriousness of the abuse may not always be clear. It is therefore important when 

Page 53



January 2008  Page 24 

considering appropriateness of intervention to approach reports or allegations 
with an open mind. When assessing risks involved in the case, the following 
factors should be considered: 

o the vulnerability of the individual 
o the Mental Capacity of the individual 
o the nature and extent of the abuse 
o the length of time it has been occurring 
o the impact on the individual 
o the risk of repeated or increasingly serious acts involving this or other 

vulnerable adults.14 
 
Once the assessment has highlighted the level of risk involved in the case and a 
decision has been made that professional intervention is required in order to 
safeguard that vulnerable adult, the intervention should be based on the following 
principles: 

 
o Once an individual makes an informed decision about his or her 

circumstances, where risk has been identified, and a choice is made to 
decline the intervention of a statutory authority, then his or her wishes 
must be respected. The decision to override such a decision can only be 
made once a statutory obligation exists to intervene. 

o Intervention is necessary to reduce the risk and the intervention is 
accepted by the individual, the professional should pursue a course of 
action that reduces the risk in the least disruptive way to the individual. 

o The vulnerable adult must be given relevant information and advice that 
will assist that individual in making an informed decision. The information 
should always be presented in a format that is appropriate to that 
individuals needs. 

o Staff will document their decisions that must take in to account the welfare 
of the vulnerable adult and their civil liberties. 

o The needs of the carer must be considered. 
o If possible, a link will be maintained with that vulnerable adult in case the 

situation becomes intolerable and swift action is needed.   
 

The degree of abuse that would justify intervention builds on the concept of 
‘significant harm’ introduced in The Children Act 1989.  

                                                 
14
 No Secrets Section 2.19 

Page 54



January 2008  Page 25 

7 Other Related Policies 
 
7.1 Domestic Violence 
 
Although not formally classified as a type of abuse, all staff must be aware that 
adult abuse can occur within a domestic context.  There can be overlap between 
Safeguarding Adults incidents and cases of domestic violence.   
 
Domestic violence has been defined as “any incident threatening behaviour, 
violence or abuse (psychological, physical, sexual, financial or emotional) 
between adults who are or have been in a relationship together, or between 
family members, regardless of gender or sexuality”15 

 
“Causing or allowing the death of a child or vulnerable adult” has now become a 
criminal offence.  The perpetrator and victim do not need to co-habit in order for 
an allegation of domestic violence to be made because: “a person is to be 
regarded as a “member” of a particular household, even if he does not live in that 
household, if he visits it so often and for such periods of time that it is reasonable 
to regard him as a member of it.” 16 

 
 

7.2 Child Protection 
 
There will be cases where Domestic Violence or abuse of a vulnerable adult also 
involves a child, or puts a child at risk of significant harm. In these situations a 
referral must be made to the: 
 
Haringey Child Protection Referral and Assessment Team on 020 8489 
1856/1805/1806 (Hornsey) 
or 
02084895402/5403/5404 (Tottenham). 
 
If there are children in a household and there is concern/evidence of Domestic 
Violence, the welfare of the child must always be paramount. That child or 
children may themselves be subject to violence or other forms of harm. Children 
who witness Domestic violence are at risk of significant harm, in that this is a 
form of psychological abuse and should be logged via a referral to the Children 
and Young People’s directorate on the afore mentioned telephone numbers. 
Should a referral be made concerning the welfare of a child or children it is good 
practice to inform the parents/carers that a referral has been made. There are 
circumstances where that information may put the child at greater risk of harm, or 
in some instances of Domestic Violence could further harm the adult. Extra care 
should be taken in these cases and a professional judgement should be made 
about the best interest of the child and safety of the adult. For further information 
on such circumstances it may be useful to consult the London Child Protection 
Procedures which can be found at www.londonscb.gov.uk.  

                                                 
15
 Metropolitan Police Racial and Violent Crimes Task Force 

16
 Domestic Violence, Crime and Victims Act, 2004 

Page 55



January 2008  Page 26 

Young people in transition who are considered to be at risk of significant harm will 
be supported through the Children and Young Peoples service via the 
Safeguarding Children Protocols.  Adult Services will work jointly with the 
Children and Young People’s Service to ensure that the young person is 
safeguarded and effective transition plans are in place.  
 
Where a Child is Looked After by the Local Authority, and is in transition to Adult 
Services, The Looked After Children Procedures will run in parallel to the 
Transition planning. Any safeguarding issues will be worked jointly via the 
Children and Young People’s Service and Adult Services.  The young person (s) 
will be subject to children safeguarding protocols until that young person (s) is 
made safe. Once a child is over the age of 18 this procedure should then be 
followed. It should not be assumed that if a child or young person has been 
subject to child protection concerns they will automatically be considered as 
subject to safeguarding adult’s procedures. Each case should be assessed in line 
with these procedures and risk properly identified and recorded with actions 
planned.  
 
 

7.3 Confidentiality 
 

The Data Protection Act 1998 sets out the guidelines by which each agency 
should maintain confidential information.   
 
Each agency will have a set of protocols and procedures on how staff should 
handle confidential information that is sensitive and not in the public domain. 
 
There are circumstances in which it is imperative that staff share and exchange 
relevant information in order to progress a vulnerable adult enquiry or 
investigation. The information shared is done so in order to safeguard a 
vulnerable adult from potential abuse. That information is however shared 
between agencies that are involved in that persons care, or involved in 
safeguarding that individual. The information should still be treated as confidential 
and is still covered by data protection. 
 
Whenever possible, it is good practice to obtain the consent of the individual 
concerned before sharing any information about that person. This should 
preferably be in writing and is dependant on that individual having the mental 
capacity to consent to disclosure. There are circumstances in which it is 
necessary to disclose information without consent of the individual concerned. 
This may be necessary in the public interest, where a failure to disclose 
information may expose an individual or others to significant risk of serious harm 
or to prevent criminal activity.   

 
All those providing information should take care to distinguish between fact, 
observation, allegation and opinion. It is important that should any information 
exchange be challenged, in respect of a breach of confidentiality or, for example, 
as a breach of the Human rights Act, the information can be supported by 
evidence.   

 

Page 56



January 2008  Page 27 

7.4 Information Sharing: 
 
As outlined above, confidential information can be shared with the consent from 
the person providing it, or to whom it relates.  Confidential information can be 
shared without consent if this can be justified to be in the public interest. A clear 
record should be maintained whenever information is shared, outlining the 
reasons the information was shared. 
 
It is good practice to share concerns that may arise with the individual concerned 
and their carer(s), and to obtain the consent of the individual to share the 
information with other agency pertinent to that individuals care. There will be 
exceptions, where sharing that information may further jeopardise that individuals 
safety, or place them or other individuals at risk. If informing or sharing the 
concerns with the individual impedes the investigation, then it is appropriate not 
to share that information. A decision not to share information or obtain consent 
from an individual to share information that is about them, should not be taken 
lightly and must done to safeguard that adult or in the interest of public protection. 
Such a decision should be agreed with a manager/senior manager in the agency 
and must always be recorded and evidenced on the service user’s records. 
 
The Data Protection Act 1998, allows personal data to be processed without the 
consent of the individual, when the processing is for the prevention or detection 
of a crime.  “No Secrets” also suggests that sharing personal or sensitive 
information regarding a service user, ideally informed consent should be sought, 
but if this is not possible and other vulnerable adults are at risk, it may be 
necessary to override this requirement.   

 
A public interest to share information can arise in cases: 
 

o Where there is evidence that a child, young person or adult is suffering, or 
at risk of, significant harm. 

o Where there is reasonable cause to believe that a child, young person or 
adult is suffering, or at risk of significant harm.  

o To prevent significant harm to children and young people or serious harm 
to adults.   

o With legal staff for court proceedings 
o With the T police in the detection or prevention of crime.  

 
Shared information must be adequate, relevant and not excessive in relation to 
the purpose for which it is held and must be held no longer than is necessary for 
that purpose.   
 
Each Haringey agency/ organisation (Police, The Council, Care Homes, Care 
Agencies, Day Centres, NHS, and PCT etc.) is responsible for maintaining their 
own records on work with Safeguarding Adult cases.  Each agency must also 
have a policy stating the purpose and format for keeping the records and for their 
destruction.  
 

Page 57



January 2008  Page 28 

This policy seeks to set out the proper level and line of communication to be 
adhered to when any partner agency seeks to obtain from another agency 
confidential information concerning clients and records 
 
 

7.5 Consent: 
 
The Mental Health Act 1983 defines consent as: 
 
“The voluntary and continuing permission of the adult to agree a course of action 
or inaction, based on an adequate knowledge of the purpose, nature, likely 
effects and risks of the proposed action or inaction including the likelihood of its 
success and any alternatives to it. “ 

 
Permission given under unfair or undue pressure is not ‘consent’.   
 
Staff should wherever possible seek the consent of an individual before sharing 
any information about them. There will be circumstances when it is not possible 
to seek consent or may place the individual or other individuals at risk by doing 
so. 

 
Practitioners should not seek consent if by doing this they might: 

⌧ Place a child, young person or adult at increased risk of serious harm 
⌧ Prejudice the prevention or detection of a serious crime  
⌧ Prejudice the safeguarding investigation 
⌧ Lead to unjustified delay in making enquiries about allegations of 

significant harm 
 
 

7.6 Capacity 
 
Capacity is related to the ability of an individual to make decisions.  In order to be 
capable of making a decision the individual should be able to demonstrate the 
ability to:  

þ understand the information relevant to the decision 
þ retain that information 
þ use or weigh that information as part of the decision making process 
þ communicate that decision (using whatever form of communication is 

appropriate to that individual) 
 

All adults are presumed to have legal capacity unless there is clear evidence to 
the contrary: “A person is not to be treated as unable to make a decision unless 
all practicable steps to help him to do so have been taken without success.”17 
 
Capacity should be considered throughout any assessment process. It should 
also be noted that an individual’s needs, circumstances and capacity may change 
and are not fixed. Therefore where a person may assume to have capacity and 
the beginning of a safeguarding investigation, there may be occasions where that 

                                                 
17
 Mental Capacity Act 2005: Section 1(3) 

Page 58



January 2008  Page 29 

capacity may be diminished at various stages throughout the process. If this is 
the case, a re-assessment/review should take place taking into account any 
changes to that individuals overall needs and wellbeing. 
 
See Appendix 2: Capacity guidance for more information on Mental Capacity 

 
 

7.7 Lack of Capacity 
 
In the case that an individual is unable to make an informed decision or lacks the 
capacity to recognise or acknowledge risk, then statutory authorities may need to 
be involved in accordance with these procedures. It is however important to 
remember that in any case where mental capacity is in question; the Haringey 
Multi-agency Safeguarding Policy and Procedures should be followed in parallel 
with the Mental Capacity Act protocols. A referral to IMCA should always be 
made if there is a question around an individual’s mental capacity. 

 
Any intervention must be proportionate to the risk and must be carried out in a 
way that is least disruptive to the individual’s way of life.  Before proceeding with 
statutory intervention the safeguards that may be provided by carers and other 
significant people must be explored.  The decision about assessing risk is a joint 
responsibility between the relevant agencies involved. 

 
In some cases A Mental Health Act assessment may need to be considered . 

 

7.8 Best Interest 
 

Where a vulnerable adult is judged to lack capacity in relation to a specific 
decision, this decision should then be made in that individual’s ‘best interest’. 

 
When making a ‘best interest’ decision the following factors must be considered: 

§ Any past and current wishes and feelings of the individual concerned; 
including any written statement or choice directives. 

§ The individuals’ beliefs and values, including: any religious or cultural 
beliefs likely to influence that individual if they had capacity. 

§ Other factors that the individual would be likely to consider if they were 
able to do so, e.g. a sense of family obligation. 

§ The views of others considered appropriate to approach e.g. carers 
§ The recommendation of the IMCA  

 
 

8 Equal Opportunities Policy Statement 
 
Haringey Council is committed to reflecting the full diversity of the community it 
serves and to promoting equality for everyone.  We accept that the Council is not 
free of unintended institutional discrimination.  We will work to eradicate it. 
 
We aim to ensure equal access to our services by all citizens on the basis of 
need and to provide services in a manner that is sensitive to the individual 

Page 59



January 2008  Page 30 

whatever their background.  We will represent the needs of our diverse 
communities to other agencies and make equal opportunities a key guiding 
principle in all of our work with our partners.  We will ensure that our workforce 
reflects the community it serves.  We will take positive action to realise our 
equality our equality of opportunity policy. 
 
We are committed to eliminating discrimination on the grounds of: 
 

• Age  

• Disability 

• Colour, ethnic origin, nationality national origin or race 

• Gender 

• HIV status 

• Marital status 

• Religion or belief 

• Responsibility for dependants 

• Sexual orientation 

• Unrelated criminal convictions 
 
It is the responsibility of every employee of the council to uphold and implement 
the policy. 
 
It is the responsibility of each individual manager, at all levels, to plan and provide 
their services to realise this policy. 

 
 

9 Roles and Responsibilities 
 

9.1 The Haringey Safeguarding Adults Board MUST: 
 

o Include representatives from Haringey Adult Services, Haringey PCT, the 
Police, the Voluntary and Private Sectors and The Probation Service. 

o Meet quarterly. The meeting must be chaired by the Assistant Director, 
Adult Services Haringey Council. 

o Oversee the development and approval of multi-agency policies and 
procedures in respect of Safeguarding Adults. 

o Establish systems to monitor and review Safeguarding Adults policies and 
procedures and ensure these are promoted across all Haringey agencies.  

o Ensure the publication and distribution of documentation to support the 
Vulnerable Adult Process and increase public awareness of abuse and 
neglect of Vulnerable Adults. 

o Identify and secure funding to support the implementation of the 
Vulnerable Adult Process. 

o Ensure that the Safeguarding Adults Policies and Procedures reflect the 
needs of all communities in Haringey.   

o Ensure links with other areas of policy and good practice guidance, both 
locally and nationally. 

o Ensure the development and implementation of the training strategy. 

Page 60



January 2008  Page 31 

o Oversee the development of research links to ensure that information is 
available on current practice and trends which can support service 
improvements. 

o Oversee and be informed by the monitoring of referrals and outcomes of 
allegations of abuse to the Department of Adult Social Care.  To ensure 
that this information is used to promote good practice and to respond to 
government and other bodies requests for reports on activities.  

o Ensure the development and implementation of serious cases Multi-
agency review system and to ensure that agencies implement all 
recommendations arising from these reviews.   

o Produce an annual report on Safeguarding Adults work in Haringey.   
 
 

9.2  Statutory Agencies (which include the Services provided by: 

Haringey Council, the Police, the Mental Health Trust, Primary Care 
Trust, and other government services with a statutory responsibility 

to vulnerable adults) MUST: 
 

o Have clear guidelines in place that set out the roles and responsibilities for 
all staff in relation to Safeguarding Adults. 

o Supervise and monitor staff working with vulnerable adults to ensure that 
best practices are being adhered to. 

o Raise public awareness regarding the abuse of vulnerable adults. A clear 
message should also be given that this is everyone’s responsibility. 

o Make sure that all staff and volunteers are appropriately trained in 
Safeguarding Adults. The training should be correlated to people’s roles. 

o Ensure that the relevant reports and information are prepared for Strategy 
Meetings, Case Conferences and Review Meetings as set out in these 
procedures.   

o Maintain clear, accurate records of any safeguarding adult concerns. Any 
action taken should be clearly outlined and monitored. 

o Share information in accordance with the local and national agreement on 
a need-to-know basis, when it is in the best interest of the vulnerable adult. 

o Contribute to investigations acknowledging the requirements of 
confidentiality and data protection.   

o Participate in the joint working arrangements as defined in this policy. 
o Implement preventative and/or supportive action to vulnerable adults in 

accordance with this policy and within their role.   
o Establish and implement robust and consistent practises in relation to 

employing staff and in the selection of volunteers by ensuring that an 
enhanced CRB check is done and that this is then cross-referenced with 
the Protection of Vulnerable Adult register.    

o Attend the Safeguarding Adults Board Meetings, where appropriate 
o Provide an annual report to their own Management Board.   

 
 

9.3  Haringey Adult Services MUST: 
 

o Investigate allegations of abuse 

Page 61



January 2008  Page 32 

o Liaise with advocacy services 
o Complete needs assessments for vulnerable people and their carers. 
o Contribute to Strategy Meetings and Case Conferences as per these 

procedures as lead agency, where appropriate.  
 
 

9.4 The Haringey Safeguarding Co-ordinator within 
Adult Services MUST: 

 
o Co-ordinate the Safeguarding Adults Policy 
o Contribute to Safeguarding Adult investigations and casework as per these 

procedures 
o Monitor and record the outcome of each Safeguarding Adults referral 
o Maintain the Safeguarding Adults Register 
o Co-ordinate Serious Case Reviews 
o Co-ordinate the Multi Agency Risk Management and Assessment 

Procedures (MARMAP) 
o Collate and report to the Department of Health, CSCI and other national 

policy makers all relevant information monitored under this policy. 
o Produce an annual report. 

 
9.5  Haringey Adults Contracts Team MUST 
 

o Participate in investigation when they occur setting where services have 
been purchased or commissioned.   

o Focus their investigation on the standards required in the provision of 
services outlined in the contract. 

o Attend Multi-agency Strategy Meetings and Strategy Review Meetings 
prior to any investigation and must carry out any actions agreed to at the 
meeting.   

 
 

9.6  It is the responsibility of the Placing Authorities to: 
 

o Provide support to the vulnerable adult and plan their future care needs. 
o Nominate a link person for liaison purposes during the investigation.  
o To attend any Safeguarding adults Strategy Meeting and/or may be 

required to submit a written report.  
 
 

9.7  The Police MUST: 
 

o Pursue criminal proceedings where appropriate. 
o Protect people in vulnerable situations. 
o Contribute to Safeguarding Adult investigations and casework as per these 

procedures. 
o Allocate a named Safeguarding Adults Link Officer for each division. 

Page 62



January 2008  Page 33 

o Provide advice and possible action throughout the whole Safeguarding 
Adults process.   
 
 

9.8  National Health Service Professionals (Including 
hospitals, GPs, Primary Care Trust and the Mental 
Health Trust) MUST: 

 
o Ensure evidential investigations of medical examinations are undertaken, 

with the consent of the person involved. 
o Ensure services are delivered in line with these procedures. 
o Contribute to Safeguarding Adults investigations and casework as per 

these procedures.   
o Investigate any allegation of abuse in a health based service under the 

Serious Untoward Incident Procedures. 
o Contact the Director of Haringey Adult, Culture and Community Services in 

such cases whether they occur in the community or on a Haringey 
Hospital Site to discuss how the investigation will be conducted. This 
contact must be made by the Director of Clinical Governance or such 
equivalent.    

o Contact Director of Clinical Governance or equivalent if an allegation of 
abuse in a hospital comes to the attention of Adult Services.   The contact 
must be made by the Assistant Director of Adult Services or equivalent. 

 
9.9  The Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) 

MUST:  
 

o Regulate care services 
o Contribute any knowledge of services and regulatory standards for the 

Multi-agency assessment. 
o Investigate all allegations relating to residential or nursing homes or 

regulated domiciliary care agencies in Haringey.   
o Examine any general issues concerning the care of residents in a care 

home rather than just the particular circumstances and needs of the 
individual adult who is the focus of concern of Adult Services and other 
agencies.   

o Be responsible for registering and inspecting nursing agencies.    
o Inform Adult Services when reports are received that one or more service 

users may be or are at risk of abuse or neglect within registered 
establishments or their own homes.  

o Carry out investigations independent of those carried out by Adult Services 
or the Police.   

o Work jointly with Adult Services or National Health Services where service 
users require a response under these procedures.   

o Work in partnership with other agencies. CSCI will however not suspend 
its own statutory enforcement responsibilities pending the outcome of 
another (e.g. criminal) process where to do so would run counter to the 
safety and well-being of the people who use the service.  In such 

Page 63



January 2008  Page 34 

circumstances the CSCI will aim wherever possible to coordinate actions 
to preserve evidence and avoid impeding each other investigations or 
enforcement action.   

o Attend Strategy Meetings and Case Conferences in respect of regulated 
services. 

o Keep other agencies informed of any enforcement action taken by the 
CSCI on any regulated service. 

 
 

9.10 Independent Providers (Domiciliary, Day Care, 
Residential Care, Nursing Care and Hospital Care) 
MUST: 

 
o Have established procedures in place for safeguarding Vulnerable Adults 

in line with those outlined in the appropriate Care Standards Act, 
Regulations and National Minimum Standards. These must comply with 
this Multi-agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures. 

o Report incidents of abuse to either the CSCI or the Health Care 
Commission, where appropriate. (These agencies will be joint in 2008) 

o Notify their local CSCI area office of any allegation of abuse or any other 
significant incidents under the Care Standards Act 2000.    

o Provide information and assistance to investigating officers 
o Contribute to Safeguarding Adult investigations and casework as per these 

procedures 
o Deliver services in line with these procedures.  

 

9.11 Supporting People and Supported Housing   
 MUST: 
 

o Receive reporting forms from service providers for each incident or 
allegation of abuse at their services (be it accommodation or floating 
support services based) 

o Inform the Safeguarding Adults Coordinator of each reported incident 
(including incidents or suspicions of abuse  identified by Supporting 
People Team members) 

o Attend Strategy Meetings and Case Conference where necessary 
o Inform the Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator of any enforcement actions 

taken on any Supporting People Service. 
o Contribute to Safeguarding Adults investigations and casework as per 

these procedures. 
o Monitor cases of abuse within Supporting People services 
o Ensure all service provides comply with Supporting People standards 

regarding protection from abuse.  
o Provide or Commission support services to meet eligible needs as 

identified through completing assessments and through following these 
procedures.   
 

9.12 Complaints Officers must:  

Page 64



January 2008  Page 35 

 
o Inform a relevant manager that a complaint has been received which may 

indicate that a vulnerable adult is subject to abuse. This should be done in 
line with operational policies in place within the agency and this procedure. 
Local Authorities and Health Trusts have statutory Complaints Procedures 
in place.   

o Inform the relevant regulatory body (i.e. CSCI or Health Care Commission) 
if a complaint is received indicating the abuse of one or more vulnerable 
adults concerning a service subject to regulation. 

o Notify the relevant contract or commissioning manager if a complaint is 
received that indicates abuse of one or more vulnerable adults has taken 
place in commissioned or contracted service. 

o Ensure that action under the Haringey Multi-agency Safeguarding Adults 
procedure takes precedence in the event of a complaint leading to a 
Safeguarding Adults enquiry.     

o Attend Multi-Agency Strategy Meetings or discussions prior to any 
investigation and will be expected to carry out any actions agreed at the 
meeting.  

o Inform the complainant of the suspension of the complaints procedures 
until the outcome of the Safeguarding Adults investigation has been 
decided.   

o Ensure that the complainant can receives a response to the original 
complaint through the statutory complaint procedure after the 
Safeguarding Adults Enquiry.  

 

 
9.13 Lead Roles for Agencies relating to Safeguarding 

Procedures 
 

The Haringey Multi-Agency policy identifies distinct roles in the Safeguarding of 
Vulnerable Adults in each individual organisation and their roles in the 
procedures.  This is a role all statutory agencies should identify. 
 

o The lead should be responsible for ensuring the agency has an up to 
date Safeguarding Adults Policy and that it is accessible to staff and is in 
line with Haringey’s Multi-Agency Policy and Procedures. 

o Ensure that training is available at the different levels for relevant staff.   
o Co-operate with the audit process and participate fully in the 

Safeguarding Adults Board Meetings. 
o Produce an annual report for their agency’s own management Board.  
o Be at a Senior level in their respective organisation to ensure that 

Safeguarding Adults policy and practice is owned at the highest level 
within each organisation.   

 
9.13.1 The lead investigating agency (which is usually Haringey Council, 

Adult Services) is responsible for: 
 

o Organising any Strategy Meetings, Review Meeting or Safeguarding 
Plan Meetings 

Page 65



January 2008  Page 36 

o Co-ordinating the investigation  of any allegation or suspicion that a 
vulnerable adult is subject to abuse  

o Acting as the contact point for collating any information about the victim 
and the perpetrator of abuse and the circumstance surrounding the 
alleged incident (s) of abuse.  

o Taking the lead in deciding who should be interviewed, at what time and 
how, ensuring Achieving Best Evidence protocols are followed.   

o Deciding who would be the most appropriate person to carry out the 
investigations at the Strategy Meeting.  It is the role of Adult Services to 
ensure that the process of the investigations follows the agreed Multi-
Agency Policy and Procedures. 

o Sharing information with other relevant agencies within legal and 
professional restraints where investigations are carried out by other 
agencies.  

o NO Agency should take action (except in an emergency) without first 
consulting the lead agency. 

 
 
9.13.2  When the Police are the Lead Agency it is important to remember 

 that: 
 

o Where the police decide to investigate a crime in relation to the alleged 
abuse of an adult, the police shall act as the lead agency in the conduct 
of the investigation.   

o No action should be taken in relation to the investigation without their 
agreement.  This applies to all other investigations, including 
disciplinaries and investigations carried out by CSCI or Adult Services.   

o All investigations involving the police are governed by the legal 
requirements of PACE (the Police and Evidence Act, 1984).  This means 
that all police enquiries have to conform to certain standards in terms of 
interviewing practice, the involvement of appropriate adults and the 
collection and analysis of evidence.   

o The Police can advise other agencies on the likely impact of PACE 
requirements. 

o It is crucial to the success of the criminal prosecution of an abuser that 
the Police are involved at the earliest possible stage.   

o Where the Police are involved in the investigation in view of a possible 
prosecution they will take responsibility for leading their own investigation 
and all activities linked to the collection of evidence.  Where this is the 
case, it will be important for the Social Worker/ Care Manager, Team 
Manager and the police officer to work together to co-ordinate the overall 
investigation.   

o In the case of the Police being the Lead Agency the responsibility of 
setting up Strategy Meetings and Case Conferences should fall with the 
Police.  

 
 
9.13.3 When another agency is the lead agency it may be: 
 

Page 66



January 2008  Page 37 

o Appropriate for an agency that is outside of Adult Services to carry out 
the investigation because: 
§ The alleged abuse occurred in a health-based service or on a 

hospital site and an Assistant Director (or equivalent) has agreed 
that the allegation is investigated by hospital or health staff under 
their Serious Untoward Incident Procedures. 

§ The incident of abuse requires specialist knowledge for example 
identification of non-accidental injury or allegations of financial 
abuse by a council employee. 

 
o The level of abuse is minor and can be properly addressed by staff from 

another agency e.g. a domiciliary care provider investigating a minor 
allegation against a care worker. 

o The vulnerable adult is more likely to confide in other professionals who 
they trust.   

 

9.14 Management Roles and Responsibilities: 
 
9.14.1  What are the duties and responsibilities of Service Managers in 

care settings? 
 
Where a concern is raised that a person is being abused or neglected within the 
same service you manage, you have the primary responsibility to safeguard that 
person.  This responsibility includes working with all other agencies that may 
have a role or responsibilities in the situation.  Take any immediate actions to 
safeguard people that fall within the remit and remember that: 

o You should normally be a key person within the planning of any 
safeguarding assessment. 

o That the agreed safeguarding assessment strategy may: 
§ Involve another agency taking the lead.  The most common 

scenario is where the police may lead the safeguarding 
assessment with a criminal investigation. On other occasions, it 
could be a regulatory or commissioning body, where they may 
decide that the concerns are so serious they will investigate 
within their remit.   

§ Include one or more strands of actions within your remit, for 
example, it may include a complaints investigation or a 
disciplinary investigation.   

§ Takes  precedence over any other internal investigations.   
 
 
9.14.2  An allegation is made against a member of his/her own staff? 
 
The manager will need to balance: 

o supporting the abused person 
o supporting all the staff 
o supporting the investigation of the event 
o being fair to the alleged staff member 
 

Page 67



January 2008  Page 38 

Allegations must always be taken seriously however, they should always be 
treated as such, an allegation. Evidence is required to substantiate that which 
was alleged to have taken place, actually did. 
 
It is important to take relevant immediate action and consideration should be 
given to an organisation’s disciplinary procedures where this will protect service 
users, the alleged perpetrator and allow a fair investigation to be conducted. 
 
Disciplinary action on staff is the responsibility of the employing agency or 
organisation.  Suspension is a neutral act that may be necessary as an 
immediate protection plan.  The member of staff is innocent until proven 
otherwise.  The suspension of the staff member is to ensure that he/she is 
protected, while still enabling a full investigation or safeguarding assessment to 
take place.  
 
 Staff subject to disciplinary procedures must be made aware of their rights, and, 
if suspended, should be given an outline of the reasons for that action in line with 
those procedures.  However, the details of the allegation should not be discussed 
with them until the multi-agency assessment strategy has been agreed.   
 
The staff member must be advised to seek union or legal advice and should have 
access to support networks. Even if another agency, such as the police, is 
leading the investigation, it is important to try to ensure that you meet your 
responsibilities as an employer and keep the member of staff or their 
representative informed in accordance with confidentiality.   
 
A manager could also seek advice from their relevant regulatory body or legal 
services as appropriate.   
 
 
9.14.3  What is the duty and responsibility of Registered Managers in 

Regulated Care settings? 
 
Regulated services are required to report concerns about the welfare of a 
vulnerable adult to the CSCI within 24 hours of the incident.   
 
Senior Managers must be informed of any concerns reported as per local 
procedures.   
 
Regulation of The Care Homes regulations 2001 requires the registered person 
to inform CSCI without delay of: 

o The death of any service user 
o The outbreak in the care home of any infectious disease 
o Any serious injury to a service user 
o Serious illness of a service user at a care home at which nursing is not 

provided.   
o Any event in the care home which adversely affects the well-being or 

safety of any service user.   
o Any theft, burglary or accident in the care home.   

Page 68



January 2008  Page 39 

o Any allegation of misconduct by the registered person or any person 
who works at the care home.   

 
This report should be made by fax to CSCI within 24 hours of the incident to: 

020 8420 0119.   
 
 
9.14.4  The duty of a member of staff or volunteer when suspicions or 

allegations of abuse are reported to them? 

 
Staff and volunteers all have a duty of care to report any allegations or suspicions 
of abuse to their line manager as soon as possible. These concerns must be 
reported to a line manager, even if the service user is reluctant for them to do 
this, or asks them not to do so. The service user must be made aware that the 
member of staff or volunteer is not able to maintain information regarding alleged 
abuse a secret. 
 
There will be occasions when a member of staff is unable to go directly to their 
line manager because that line manager may be implicated in the allegations. In 
such situations, members of staff or volunteers may need to use their 
organisations whistle blowing procedures, or inform a senior manager in that 
organisation about the alleged abuse. Staff or volunteers should not disclose this 
information directly to their line manager if the allegation of abuse implicates their 
line manager.  
 
Any concerns about abuse occurring in a regulated care setting must be directed 
to a regulatory body such as the Commission for Social Care Inspection or the 
Health Care Commission independently. In parallel if there are suspicions that a 
crime has taken place the police should be notified. 
 
This may be take place when: 

o They have concerns that their manager or proprietor/tress may be 
implicated. 

o They have grounds for thinking that the manager or 
proprietor/tress will not take the matter seriously or act 
appropriately to protect service users.   

o They fear intimidation or have immediate concerns for their own or 
for a service user’s safety.   

 
 
 

10. Procedures 
 
This section of Haringey’s Multi-agency Safeguarding Adult’s Policy and 
Procedures refers to the actions that should be taken by staff in all organisations 
within Haringey that are signatories to this document and provide a service to 
vulnerable adults over the age of 18.   

 
 

Page 69



January 2008  Page 40 

10.1 Raising the Alert 
 
10.1.1  Who can raise the Alert? 
An alert can be raised by anyone who has witnessed abuse taking place, has 
been told about abuse or neglect taking place, or suspects that abuse or neglect 
is taking place. It is that individual’s duty to report the allegation to the relevant 
agency. The alert can be raised by any individual in any agency. 
 
The alleged victim themselves may make a disclosure outlining the abuse they 
have been subjected to. Or a referral may come from another service user, 
relative or carer. 
 
A paid care worker, volunteer or other visitor may observe behaviour that causes 
concern. It may be that the standard of care that a particular organisation 
provides may be putting people at risk or a service users challenging behaviour 
or actions may themselves be a concern for the safety of other service users. 
  
All partner organisations should use the Haringey Multi-agency Safeguarding 
Adults Alert Form to report and record any concerns about the safety of a 
vulnerable adult. In certain circumstances an agency may be required to use their 
own internal form, for example where a crime has been committed the police will 
report it using the appropriate forms. 
 
Members of the public can contact the Initial Contact Service on 020 8489 1400 
to report any concerns or allegations of abuse concerning a vulnerable adult. 
Alerts raised by staff that may concern a service or other staff in an organisation, 
about suspected abuse of a vulnerable adult or adults, must always be examined. 
It may be necessary to use other procedures such as disciplinary or whistle 
blowing procedures in parallel with the Multi-agency safeguarding Adult 
procedures. 
 
10.1.2  How should you respond to an Alert 
 
If a vulnerable adult discloses allegations that they are being abused, as a 
professional, you must always listen carefully in a non judgemental manner. Don’t 
interrupt or stop that individual telling their story. You must not question them 
directly on the details, as this may jeopardise gathering evidence at a later stage 
in line with “Achieving Best Evidence”18 
 
All allegations of abuse should be taken seriously. It is important that you try and 
not to show shock or disbelief and that you remain calm. Be empathetic; assure 
the person that the complaint or allegation will be taken seriously. Assure the 
person that it was not their fault and that they did the right thing by disclosing 
what happened to them. 
 
You should also be aware that the vulnerable adult may not realise they are 
being abused and therefore not realise the significance of what they are saying. 

                                                 
18
 Achieving Best Evidence in Criminal Proceedings: Guidance for Vulnerable or Intimidated Witnesses 

including Children  Home office 2002 

Page 70



January 2008  Page 41 

 
In some instances a person may make an allegation of abuse some years after 
the abuse had taken place. This could be due to the trauma of the abuse or 
simply the person may be blaming themselves, whatever the reason, it should not 
cast doubt on the reliability of the allegation. 
 
You should not promise complete confidentiality. Explain that you have a duty of 
care to report what you have been told to a line manager and that the concerns 
may be shared, especially if other vulnerable adults are at risk. 
 
One of the products of abuse, in many cases is a lack of control. It is therefore 
important that the alleged victim is given some of that control back. Ways in 
which you can do that is by keeping them informed of the actions you will be 
taking to protect and support that individual. If appropriate refer that individual to 
this procedure, which will outline what they can expect from a Haringey Agency. 
 
 
10.1.3  How to raise an Alert? 
An Alert can be raised by telephone, visit, email or fax. 
 
A Haringey Alert Safeguarding Adults Multi-agency Alert form must be completed 
and sent back to the relevant agency (as shown on the form). 

 
10.1.4  Where to find a copy of the Alert form? 

 
A copy of the Haringey Multi-agency Safeguarding Adults Alert Form can be 
found at http://www.haringey.gov.uk/alert_form-november_2006.doc  or can be 
requested from the Initial Contact Service by telephoning 020 8489 1400.   

 
 
10.1.5  How to complete the Alert Form? 
 

o You must complete all parts of the Alert form 
o If any part is left incomplete you must be able to justify the reason for it 

 
 Personal Information of vulnerable Adult: 

o Personal details 
o The current situation in which they are living 
o Details of their family or significant other people 
o Mental capacity/disability/ sensory impairment 
o Whether the vulnerable adult has been informed that a referral has 

been made.  
o Services received/ agencies that have contact with the vulnerable adult 

including their GP. 
 

 Details of alleged abuse: 
o What is the actual allegation or cause of concern or suspicion 
o Where and when the alleged incident took place and who witnessed it 

and/or provided the information 

Page 71



January 2008  Page 42 

o The details of what occurred including the actions and words used by 
the alleged perpetrator of abuse and the person being abused 

o The extent of the abuse and the degree of immediate danger that the 
referrer perceives the vulnerable person to be in. 

 
 The alleged perpetrator of abuse: 

o The alleged  perpetrators relationship to the vulnerable adult 
o The alleged  perpetrators mental capacity/disability/ sensory 

impairment 
o The alleged perpetrators whereabouts and the likelihood of contact or 

the risk to other people if known 
o Services received/agencies that have contact with the alleged 

perpetrator including the GP 
 

 The referrer’s judgement of the situation: 
o Action already taken, e.g. have the Police been informed 
o Any immediate action that the referrer thinks should be taken 
o Identify anyone else at risk e.g. Children or other vulnerable adults.   
 

 Other agencies already involved: 
o Information about any police involvement including Crime reference 

number if available 
o Other agencies that have been involved in the identification of abuse.  
o Always make sure that you have provided sufficient information in 

order for the allegations to be efficiently investigated. 
o Always ensure that all personal details are completed 
o Make sure that the Alert form is legible and that it is filled out either in 

pen or typed 
o Ensure that the Alert form is always signed and dated. 
o Any opinions need to be identified as opinion and not as fact;  

assumptions are not always based on concrete evidence  
 
10.1.7   What is the timeframe for completing an Alert form? 
An Alert form must be completed immediately. The referral must be made to 
the relevant organisation within the same working day as receiving the Alert. 
 
10.1.8  Summary of action that should be taken once a disclosure of 

alleged abuse has been made: 
þ If the vulnerable adult is at risk of immediate harm contact the Police on 

999 
þ The Police should also be contacted if there is evidence that a crime has 

been committed and evidence needs to be collected immediately 
otherwise it will contaminated 

þ Ensure that the person who has made the alert is made aware how their 
concerns are being dealt with 

þ Only share the information within the framework of the safeguarding adults 
information sharing protocol 

þ If the allegation was made by a member of the public who wanted to 
remain anonymous or wished to have their details kept confidential then 
this should be respected and the referral should still be progressed. 

Page 72



January 2008  Page 43 

þ Ensure that the correct steps are in place to safeguard the vulnerable adult 
from further abuse as outlined in this procedure 
 

Do Not: 
⌧ Create the impression that the vulnerable adult is not believed. 
⌧ Risk contaminating the evidence 
⌧ Inform the alleged perpetrator of the allegations against them 
⌧ Put the vulnerable adult at further risk  

 
It is the responsibility of whoever raises the Alert to ensure that the Vulnerable 
Adult is safeguarded from immediate danger, be it by contacting the Police or 
relevant Social or Health Service department.   

 

10.2 The Referral 
 

10.2.1  When must a referral be made and where is it sent? 
 
A referral must be made within the same working day as raising the Alert. The 
Alert should be directed to ICS who will signpost to appropriate teams. 
 
 
10.2.2  What must ICS do with the referral? 
 

• ICS will direct referrals to the relevant Social Services duty team that is, 
Learning Disabilities, Physical Disabilities, Older People Services, PCT or 
CMHT 

• ICS duty team is only responsible for the initial investigation/interview if 
service user is an older person not known to service previously or a closed 
case. 

• The referral must be recorded on the POVA Spreadsheet immediately, even 
if after initial investigation it is decided that no further action is to be taken.  
The purpose of this recording is for monitoring referrals and outcomes.  This 
system will be replaced by an electronic version on Framework I shortly. 

 
 
10.2.3  What happens if the referral is made out of hours? 
 
If a referral is made out of normal office hours, the Emergency Duty Team will be 
responsible for undertaking an initial assessment of risk and take steps f to 
ensure that the vulnerable person is safe, (Interim Safeguarding Plan).   
 
If immediate action is not required, the emergency Duty Team will refer the case 
to the appropriate teams at the beginning of the next working day for them to 
proceed with the Safeguarding Adults process. 
Haringey Social Services Out of Hours:   
Tel: 020 8348 3148 / Fax: 020 8489 2388 

 
 

Page 73



January 2008  Page 44 

10.2.4  What happens if the concerns arise using the Single Assessment 
Process (SAP) or during a current Assessment of care? 

 
If the concern arises during an assessment using the Single Assessment Process 
then the action to be taken will depend on who is undertaking the assessment.   
 
If the assessment is being undertaken by another agency then a referral should 
be made to the Initial Contact Services using the Alert form to Haringey Adult 
Services (see contact details above) who will be able to redirect the referrer to 
the appropriate team.   
 
If the concerns of abuse are raised during a current assessment e.g. an Overview 
Assessment, review or as part of ongoing support, or monitoring of care provided, 
the Social Worker / Care Manager who is already working with the person should 
complete the Alert form and send copies to ICS and Safeguarding Adults Co-
ordinator. 

  
 
10.2.5  Does consent need to be given by the vulnerable adult for the 

referral to be made? 

 
Consent must be gained from a mentally capable adult who is thought to be 
experiencing abuse or neglect unless there are overriding public duties to act.  
Such circumstances include: 

o The prevention or detection of a crime 
o In order to protect the vital interests of another person in a case where 

consent by or on behalf of the service user has been unreasonably 
withheld. 

o Where it is necessary for the purpose of, or in connection with, any 
legal proceedings 

o Where there is a significant risk of suicide. 
o Where there is a significant risk to a third party.  
 

If there are overriding duties, the person is always to be informed that the referral 
will take place, except where this could jeopardise the safety of others who may 
be at risk.   
 
 

10.3 Notification 
 
10.3.1  To what other agency must abuse of a criminal nature be 

reported? 
 
The police must always be contacted if the allegation is of a criminal nature, e.g. 
physical injury, sexual abuse and/or financial abuse. 
 
Call 999 if the Vulnerable Adult is in immediate danger, otherwise contact the 
Community Service Unit on:  020 8345 1939/1941 
Send the Alert Form to: yrmailbox-csu@met.pnn.police.uk  

Page 74



January 2008  Page 45 

or by Fax to: 020 8345 1946.  
 
The Police must be informed of alleged/suspected financial abuse, prior to any 
action being taken e.g. interviewing/ suspending staff or interviewing vulnerable 
adults.  This is necessary to ensure best evidence is achieved in respect of any 
investigation undertaken.  An offence of financial abuse involving the theft of 
personal cash or funds from accounts, which may also involve false entries in 
financial records, is often difficult to prove.  This could be further complicated if 
the abused adult is cognitively impaired.   
 
Forensic evidence must be collected within 24 hours of the crime being 
committed. Only the Police can collect such specimens to avoid contamination. 
Do not interfere with the crime scene. 
 
 
10.3.2  Who do you contact if abuse occurs in a regulated care provision 

 
You must immediately contact CSCI or the Healthcare Commission. 
You must send your Alert Form to enquires.harrow@csci.gsi.gov.uk  or by fax to 
020 8420 0119 when a Social Care regulated service, be it a Care agency or 
Care home are involved. 
 
You must send the Alert form to feedback@healthcarecommission.org.uk or by 
Fax to 020 7448 9391 where a Health service (NHS hospital, PCT, GPs, Nurses, 
Midwives, etc.) is involved.   
 
For professions that are regulated such as Doctors, nurses, midwives, social 
workers and care home workers (as of 2008) etc a referral may need to be made 
their respective regulatory body, which may carry out an investigation into that 
professional’s conduct or temporarily suspend them from the relevant register. 
This will only be done if the alleged perpetrator is in a profession that is regulated 
and there is a threat to public safety. The decision to suspend or remove a 
person from a professional register lies with the professional regulatory body. For 
further information or to make a referral please contact 
  
General Social Care Council (GSCC) 
02073975120 
Email: conduct@gscc.org.uk 
 
Nursing and Midwifery Council (NMC)  
02073336564/6572 
Email: fitness.to.practice@nmc-uk.org 
 
General Medical Council (GMC) 
0845 357 0022 
Email: practise@gmc-uk.org 
 
 
10.3. Who must you always notify regardless of the of the source of  the 
 referral 

Page 75



January 2008  Page 46 

 
     The Initial Contac Services (ICS) Adult Services must be contacted on 0208 
489 1400 if there are concerns that a vulnerable adult is the subject of abuse.  
This team receives all alerts and co-ordinates all referrals. 
 
Send alert form to over65@haringey.gov.uk or by fax to 0208 489 1993 
 
You must also send copy of alert to the Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator Olive 
Komba-Kono 
Send alert to form to Olive.Komba-Kono@haringey.gov.uk or by fax to 0208 489 
3977  
 
 

10.4 Allocations 
 

10.4.1  Who is allocated the referral when the decision is made to 

proceed with an investigation? 
 
When the referral is received by the ICS team, the referral will be forwarded to 
the appropriate duty-team for processing.  The team that meets the client group 
classification or is providing services would be deemed appropriate.  
 
 
A Safeguarding Manager is allocated to the case after the decision is made to 
proceed with an investigation. The safeguarding manager is responsible for 
assessing the level of risk and what the response will be.  A Safeguarding 
Manager can be any Unit, Team or Practice Manager. Safeguarding Managers 
must be of Practice Manager’s level and above 
 
If the Service User is already allocated to a specific Social Worker/Care 
Manager/Care Coordinator then the case is allocated to that worker’s Practise or 
Team Manager who will become the Safeguarding Manager for that case.. 
 
If the Vulnerable Adult is known to Adult Services, the case must be designated 
within the same working day as receiving the referral.  
 
If the Vulnerable Adult is not known, a background information and Contact 
Assessment must be done by the appropriate Adult Services Duty-Team.  The 
Safeguarding Adults Referral needs to be made for the client within the same 
working day as receiving the alert.   
 
 
10.4.2  What is the role of the Safeguarding Manager? 
 
The role of the Safeguarding Manager is to decide if referral meets the criteria of 
abuse and to co-ordinate the strategy of the investigation.  
 
The Safeguarding Manager ensures that staff who support the service user, and 
others affected by the incident, have guidance and access to support.  

Page 76



January 2008  Page 47 

 
The Safeguarding Manager should remind his/her staff that their role is to support 
the service user. Staff should not however question the service user or any 
witness on the abuse, especially by asking any leading question which may 
contaminate evidence.  
 
Staff should be reminded about the importance of confidentiality (not to discuss 
details with other staff or clients, or people outside the workplace). 
 
Ensure all written material which may be needed as evidence has been 
completed, for example, written reports, diary records, client files, staff files etc. 
Ensure you ask for written reports from any witness. 
 
 
10.4.3  What are the responsibilities of the Safeguarding Manager? 
 
The Safeguarding Manager is responsible for recording the decision about the 
level of risk in a case. He/ She must appoint an Investigative Officer, a Social 
Worker/ Care Manager/care coordinator to go out and do an initial investigation.  
 
The Safeguarding Manager is responsible for chairing the Strategy Meeting. It is 
good practice for the sake of continuity that the same person chairs all following 
meetings in an investigation. 
 
IF the Safeguarding Manager is different to the one from the Initial investigation 
then the replacement Safeguarding Manager must be fully informed of the facts 
of the case so that they are able to effectively chair the Strategy Meeting or 
Discussion 
 

• In the case of an emergency, either ill health or a duty emergency, whereby a 
Safeguarding Manager is unable to chair a follow-up meeting it is the 
responsibility of the Team Manager to allocate a Chair. 

 
 
10.4.4  What is the role of the Investigative Officer? 
 
The Initial Investigating Officer must go out and visit the Vulnerable Adult within 
the timescale stated for each level of risk.  The initial investigation includes an 
interview with alleged victim and a discussion among involved care providers to 
determine risk and response. This is an essential part of the investigation which 
must happen as soon as the referral is received.   
 
This discussion with involved others is called a strategy discussion.  The essence 
of the discussion is to assess level of risk and response requirement. It can 
suffice as an investigation in very low levels of risks.  
 
DO NOT at this stage contact the alleged perpetrator.  There must be a different 
interviewer for the alleged perpetrator. 
 

Page 77



January 2008  Page 48 

The investigative officer must discuss the outcome of the interview with the 
safeguarding manager that same day. If the officer can not return to the office this 
discussion could take place over the phone, keeping in mind confidentiality 
requirements. 
 
They must write up their report on Framework-I of the visit in a timely manner. 
 
Other investigating officers may be appointed at the Strategy Meeting and the 
numbers would be determined by the lines of enquiry. 
 
The Initial Investigating Officer in conjunction with the Safeguarding Manager 
must: 

o Complete a risk assessment identifying what the immediate risk to the 
vulnerable adult is and what immediate action is needed e.g. removing 
the vulnerable adult from their current environment. This must be 
clearly recorded on the service user’s case file. 

o If it is an alleged criminal offence, ensure the incident has been 
reported to the police and a crime number recorded.  If the police 
decide to ‘lead’ the investigation, then no further action, including 
preliminary enquiries, informing agencies, or interviewing parties are to 
take place without their approval.  A Strategy Meeting must be 
convened within the necessary timescales depending on the level of 
risk possible in order to co-ordinate activity and ensure that the welfare 
of the vulnerable adult(s) are addressed while the investigation is being 
conducted. 

o In the event of physical/sexual assault, ensure the vulnerable adult has 
been seen by the GP.  The examining medical practitioner and General 
Practitioner, must be involved of the alleged/suspected abuse and a 
request be made that a written record be kept, which could be made 
available to the investigation.  Generally a medical examination can 
only be carried out with the consent of the vulnerable adult.   

o In the event of the abuse involving a registered care provider, either in 
the community or in a residential/nursing setting, ensure the CSCI has 
been notified.    

 
 

10.5 Decisions 
 
10.5.1  What decisions must the Safeguarding Manager make?  
 

• The Safeguarding Manager must decide whether the referral meets the 
criteria as stated in the policy and procedures.  This decision is reached 
after an informal consultation with involved care providers, this could be by 
telephone or email and after the initial interview with the vulnerable adult. 

• The level of risk and response time 

• The Safeguarding Manager must also decide the most appropriate agency 
to conduct the initial interview. 

 
 

Page 78



January 2008  Page 49 

 
10.5.2  What happens if consent is not given by the vulnerable adult to 

proceed with the investigation? 
 
Consent is always sought in the case of a criminal investigation and the service 
user has the right to proceed or decline that line of enquiry.  However, an internal 
investigation relating to staff and the safeguarding process can continue 
irrespective of consent. 
 
A vulnerable adult who is able to make an informed decision, but refuses 
assistance  or who feels unable to make a decision about this, is  considered to 
be placing themselves at risk. 
 
In this instance, the Social Worker/Care Manager/Care coordinator should 
communicate with appropriate parties (e.g. independent advocates, other 
professionals, carers, friends etc.) to inform them of the decision and to identify 
another person who might be able to help the vulnerable adult understand the 
risks and the choices available to them to remove that risk.   
 
In the case where the vulnerable adult is not capable of making an informed 
decision, then, the Social Worker/Care Manager must consult with the 
Safeguarding Manager and appropriate parties (e.g. independent advocate, other 
professionals, carers, friends etc.) to agree on action which will ensure the safety 
of the vulnerable adults.   
 
 
10.5.3  What happens if the criteria for an investigation is not met? 
 
If the outcome of the initial investigation does not indicate abuse, the 
Safeguarding Manager needs to consider the following options: 
 

• Does the vulnerable adult meets the criteria for a Community Care 
Assessment if not currently receiving services 

 

• Is there a need for a review or a re-assessment of care plans? The client 
must be referred to the correct team within Adult Services, for an overview 
assessment.  

 

• Did not meet the criteria but in need of other services – refer to other 
agencies. 

 

• Inappropriate referral – No Further Action. 
  

 
10.6 Risk Assessment 

 
10.6.1  What must be considered when assessing Level of Urgency and 

Risk? 

 

Page 79



January 2008  Page 50 

§ Level of threat to the Vulnerable adult’s physical well-being. 
§ The nature extent of the abusive acts. 
§ Whether the abuse was a one off event or part of a long standing 

relationship or pattern.  
§ The impact of the abuse on the vulnerable adult and their independence.  
§ The impact of the abuse on other vulnerable adults and children.   
§ The intent of the person allegedly responsible for the abuse. 
§ The illegality of the alleged perpetrators actions.   
§ The risk of the abuse being repeated against this vulnerable adult.  
§ The risk of the abuse being repeated against other vulnerable adults and 

children. 
§ The risk that serious harm would result if no action is taken, 
§ The illegality of the acts or acts. 
§ Risk can be assessed and managed but outcomes cannot be guaranteed.     

 
 
10.6.2   What is considered a High Level of Risk? 

§ Physical abuse which causes severe injury or is life threatening. 
§ Sexual abuse where penetrative sex or insertion of objects has occurred 

without Vulnerable Adults.  
§ Severe neglect where the Vulnerable Adult is imprisoned. 
§ If life threatening immediately call 999 or 020 8345 1939  

 
 
10.6.3  What must be done if the allegation has a High Level of risk? 
A visit must be done within the same working day of the referral being made. 
Where assault of any kind has occurred, or could occur, the police must be asked 
to accompany the Social Worker/Care Manager/care coordinator to assist in 
achieving a assessment in safety.   
Where necessary the vulnerable adult should be offered the opportunity to move 
to a place of safety and if necessary be given assistance to obtain legal advice. 

  
10.6.4  What is considered to be Medium Level of Risk? 

§ Emotional/psychological abuse, e.g. intimidation 
§ Financial Abuse, e.g. theft, fraud or exploitation (not burglary or robbery, 

these are criminal offences and must be reported to the Police 
immediately). 

§ Physical abuse which causes mild bruising. 
 

10.6.5  What must be done if the allegation has a medium level of risk? 
 
A visit must be made to the Vulnerable Adult within two working days of the 
referral being made.   

 
 

10.6.6  What is considered to be Low level of Risk? 
§ Verbal Abuse where the Vulnerable Adult is being spoken to in an 

inappropriate manner or ignoring requests.   
§ Verbal Abuse that is not physically threatening or causing stress and 

anxiety. 

Page 80



January 2008  Page 51 

 
 
10.6.7  What action must be taken if the allegation has a low level of risk? 
A visit must be made to the Vulnerable Adult within three working days of the 
referral being made. 

 
10.7 Safeguarding Assessment Strategy 
 
10.7.1 Who must co-ordinate the Safeguarding Assessment Strategy 

process? 
It is the responsibility of the Safeguarding Manager to co-ordinate the Strategy 
assessment process. 

 
 

10.7.2 What is the difference between a Strategy Meeting and a Strategy 
Discussion? 

A Strategy Meeting is the face-to-face meeting of all relevant agencies to discuss 
the referral and the outcome of the initial investigation and to form a plan of 
action and an Interim Safeguarding Plan. Regardless of whether a Strategy 
Meeting or Discussion is held, the outcomes, Interim Safeguarding Plan and 
assigned agency tasks must be recorded in the minutes correctly. 

 
 

10.7.3 When must you have a Strategy Meeting? 
A Strategy Meeting must be convened if the allegation has been judged as either 
of High or Medium Risk. In these cases the Strategy Discussion will not be 
sufficient and so a Meeting in person must always take place.   
A Strategy Meeting will always be required when: 

o The investigation and intervention requires careful planning. 
o The vulnerable adult has given consent for information to be shared 

with other agencies. 
o Public interest issues appear to outweigh the vulnerable adult’s wishes. 
o The best interest of the vulnerable adult may be contentious. 
o The situation is extremely complex/ or serious.   
o A Serious Case Review investigation.  
o An investigation is required under the “Untoward Incident Procedures” 

of the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health NHS Trust.  
o Information must be shared between agencies to protect the vulnerable 

adult while the allegation is being investigated. 

• In High Risk cases a Strategy Meeting must be convened within 4 working 
days. 

• In Medium Risk cases a Strategy Meeting must be convened within 5 
working days. 

• In Low Risk cases a Strategy Meeting/Discussion must be convened within 5 
working days. 

 
10.7.4 When can you have a Strategy Discussion? 
A Strategy Discussion is required after a referral has been received to determine 
abuse and to agree on an Interim Safeguarding Plan. 

Page 81



January 2008  Page 52 

A Strategy Discussion must only take the place of a Strategy Meeting if the case 
is Low Risk and issues raised can be addressed adequately.  
 
10.7.5 What is the purpose of a Strategy Meeting? 
The purpose of a Strategy Meeting is to: 

o Decide how any needs for immediate protection will be met. 
o Consider all available information regarding the service user’s 

background and the alleged incident.   
o Provide information about the setting in which the abuse or neglect 

took place.   
o Decide the allegations to be investigated. 
o Consider the wishes, if known, of the vulnerable adult.   
o Decide who will co-ordinate the investigation and conduct the 

interviews.   
o Decide the time frame for the assessment. 
o Consider the needs of the vulnerable adult and who is best suited to 

support the vulnerable adult through the investigation.   
o Agree a communications strategy. 
o Agree action set out in safeguarding adults procedures.   
o Put an Interim Safeguarding Plan into place to immediately safeguard 

the vulnerable adult.  .  
o Agree a date for a Case Conference to review the action agreed at the 

Strategy Meeting. 
 

During the Meeting, all information known about the situation is shared in 
accordance with the information-sharing protocol with the appropriate consent 
sought. Each organisation is proactive in offering resources within their remit to 
enable the risk of abuse to be assessed.   
 

 
10.7.6 Who is to be involved and invited to a Strategy meeting? 
All relevant agencies and organisations are to be involved in a Strategy Meetings 
e.g. Care agencies, police (where a crime is committed), legal services (if 
necessary), relevant Social Services departments. 
Strategy Meetings may include any of the following agencies where necessary: 

o Safeguarding Manager 
o The Safeguarding Adult’s Co-ordinator.   
o A designated minute-taker. 
o Police 
o GP 
o The individual at risk, or their carer, or their advocate. 
o The adult’s Social Worker/Care Manager. 
o The adult’s Key Worker or Care Co-ordinator 
o .A representative from the line management of the service provider. 
o CSCI  
o Health representative: hospital or PCT. 
o A representative from the Department of Work and Pensions, bank or 

building society, the receivership officer (if there is suspicion of 
financial abuse). 

o A legal advisor (in appropriate cases only) 

Page 82



January 2008  Page 53 

o Supporting People 
o Home Care 
o Community Learning Disabilities Nurse 
o District Nurse 
o Community Mental Health Nurse 
o Community Psychiatric Nurse 
o Environmental Health Officer 
o Health Visitor 
o Housing Officer 
o OT 
o Probation Officer 
o Psychologist 

 
CSCI are always to be invited to a Strategy Meeting when there is a regulated 
Care agency or regulated Care Home implicated in the Abuse.    
 
Haringey Contracts Team is always to be invited to a meeting if a regulated 
service is implicated in the Abuse/Neglect.  Where a member of the team is 
unable to attend the meeting a copy of the minutes must always be sent to them.   
 
The Police are always invited to a Strategy Meeting where a crime has allegedly 
been committed or suspicion of crime.  The Police must decide whether they 
intend to investigate the case further or not. 

 
10.7.7 Is the Service User included at this stage?   
Haringey Social Services must always keep the Vulnerable Adult informed of all 
investigation taking place, unless this places them at further risk.   
An Adult with Mental Capacity must be a full partner in the discussions, unless 
they are prevented by other considerations, like their own safety.  At the 
discretion of the chair they should be invited to the Strategy Meeting.   
An Adult without Mental Capacity can not participate fully and so the use of an 
advocate is necessary at this stage.  
  
If a client meets the following criteria, they should be referred to Rethink, which is 
Haringey Councils commissioned IMCA Service: 
A decision is being made about either: 

a) a serious medical condition or  
b) long term care and health moves (more than days in hospital/ 8 

weeks in a care home) 
and 

i) it is believed they do not have the capacity to make that decision  
and  

ii) they have no appropriate family or friends to represent them. 
 

If in doubt that a referral is appropriate to IMCA, a discussion should take place 
with a line manager or senior manager for an appropriate decision. 
  
For Adults with Hearing or Speech Impairments a Signer must be provided.  If 
the Adult is in need of an interpreter they must also be provided to ensure that 
the Vulnerable Adult is able to participate fully in the Strategy process.    

Page 83



January 2008  Page 54 

 
 
10.78 Would the alleged perpetrator be invited to the Strategy Meeting? 
No, the alleged perpetrator would never be invited to the Strategy Meeting. 
If for extremely exceptional circumstances the alleged perpetrator is to be 
involved, consent must be given by the victim if they have Mental Capacity.  This 
decision must then be approved by the Safeguarding Manager and a Senior 
Manager. 
 
 
10.7.9 When is the perpetrator interviewed? 
The perpetrator also has rights.  A different investigating officer must interview 
s/he during the investigation. The officer must report to the Case 
Conference/Safeguarding Assessment Plan Meeting of findings. Information 
shared will influence Safeguarding Plan.  The agency dealing with the 
investigation of the perpetrator must ensure that confidentiality is maintained at 
all times to safeguard the victims, witnesses and ‘whistleblowers’.  
As little information as possible is given to the alleged perpetrator.  Information is 
given on a ‘need to know’ basis.  Names of witnesses and ‘whistleblowers’ are 
not to be discloses to the perpetrators.  The location of the Vulnerable adult, if 
changed due to an allegation, must not be disclosed also.  The Chair will 
determine the level of information that could be shared. 
If the investigation is criminal in nature, the Police will comply with own 
guidelines. 

 
 

10.7.10 Who else would not be invited to a Strategy Meeting? 
If a Residential Home or any other Service of Care is implicated in neglect or 
abuse, a strategy discussion is to take place before the Strategy Meeting so that 
all other involved parties, including Regulatory bodies and Service 
Commissioners decide whether the manager of the home should be involved in 
the Strategy process or not.  
A judgement must be made and agreed by all involved agencies as to whether 
the proprietor is judged ‘fit’ or not.  Once they have been judged fit they are to be 
involved as full partners in the Strategy process.  
Ensure that clear investigations are done so that the evidence is not 
contaminated and that somebody who may have been implicated in the 
abuse/neglect is never involved in the Strategy Meetings.   
 
 
10.7.11 What needs to be agreed at a Strategy Meeting or Strategy 

Discussion? 
þ A  Multi-agency assessment of the current level of risk and to whom.   
þ A plan for actions to investigate and assess the nature, level and lines of 

enquiry to pursue: 
o Who is to lead the investigation 
o Who is to be interviewed or assessed; when and by whom 
o A plan to meet any needs arising from gender, sexuality, ethnicity, 

or disability of any alleged victims, perpetrators or witnesses, 
including special measures available to “achieve best evidence”. 

Page 84



January 2008  Page 55 

o A plan to meet any needs arising from potential harassment or 
intimidation of any alleged victims, witnesses or whistleblowers.  

þ Co-ordination between different strands of the assessment, for example, 
any criminal or disciplinary action or investigation of a complaint or 
community care assessment, so that they complement and inform each 
other and do not interfere with each other.   

þ An explicit statement of roles and responsibilities with actions designated 
to named individuals  

þ Ongoing communication with the adults at risk and others concerned and 
who will undertake this.   

þ Consider the need and method to manage any media interest or set up a 
helpline.   

þ There may be need to hold a separate meeting about the service needs of 
an alleged perpetrator who is a service user themselves.  

þ An agreed Interim Safeguarding Plan  
 
 
 
10.7.12 What should the interim Safeguarding Plan include? 
The Interim Safeguarding Plan should adhere to the following principles: 

o The safety of the vulnerable adult and others at risk is the overriding 
consideration. 

o Action is planned to minimise the risk to victims, witnesses and 
‘whistleblowers’. 

o Actions concerning people alleged to have perpetrated abuse are co-
ordinated.   

 
10.7.13 How is the meeting to be recorded? 
The discussion at the meeting is recorded, using the Initial Strategy Meeting 
Minutes Template.  It is the responsibility of the Safeguarding Manager who has 
chaired the meeting to approve the minutes and to ensure that they are 
distributed within five working days.  Once approved, the minutes must be 
distributed to all attendees.  It is also very important to find out whether the 
minutes are to be sent to anyone who was unable to attend, although invited. 

 
10.7.14 When is the next meeting to be convened for? 
A Safeguarding Plan Meeting is to be convened within 28 days of the referral. A 
Safeguarding Strategy Review Meeting can be called any time before then if the 
Interim Safeguarding Plan appears to break down. 
 
 

10.8 Safeguarding Assessment 
 
10.8.1 What is the purpose of the assessment? 

§ To analyse all the information gathered by the investigating officer(s) in 
order to draw up a Safeguarding Plan.   

§ To protect the vulnerable adult from serious harm and ensuring the safety 
of staff 

§ To establish and record the facts and other issues that relate to the 
allegation of abuse.  

Page 85



January 2008  Page 56 

§ To decide the likelihood of the vulnerable adult having been abused.  
§ To assess the level of risk to the vulnerable adult.  
§ To assess to what extent the vulnerable adult has mental capacity to 

understand the degree of risk to which they may be exposed.  
§ To establish what the vulnerable wants to happen to ensure their safety.   
§ To ensure appropriate action is taken with regard to the perpetrator.   
§ To decide if action needs to be taken to protect other people. 
§ To decide if legal action should be sought.   

 
10.8.2 Type of abuse determines other agencies involvement  
 
Adult Services should always be involved in Safeguarding Adults investigations, 
however, when there are any of the following types of cases other 
agencies/organisations need to be contacted and involved to:  

 
 

Reason for Investigation/ Type of 
Investigation.                  
 

Agency responsible 
for Investigation 
 

Criminal Act (including Sexual or physical 
assault, theft, fraud, hate crime and domestic 
violence  

Police 

Fitness of a registered provider or manager 
under the Care Standards Act 2000 

CSCI 
 

Breach of Regulations relevant to a regulated 
residential, nursing home or accredited care 
agency.  

CSCI 

Breach of Rights of person detained under the 
Mental Health Act.  

Mental Health Act 
Commissioner 

Unresolved serious complaint in a health care 
setting 

Health Care Commission 

An investigation in to the care standards and 
contracts compliance 

Haringey Contracts Team 

A disciplinary investigation of staff alleged to 
have abused a service user. Breach of terms 
of employment procedures. 

Employer 

Alleged Abuse towards a vulnerable adult 
 

Haringey Social Services  

Untoward Incident Procedure Barnet, Enfield and 
Haringey Mental Health 
NHS Trust 
 

Breach of Professional code of conduct Professional Regulatory 
Body. 

Breach of Health and safety Legislation Health and  
Safety Executive 

Page 86



January 2008  Page 57 

Complaint regarding failure of service provision 
(including neglect of provision of care and 
failure to protect one service user from the 
actions of another) 

Service Provider:  
Manager and Proprietor of 
Service or  
Complaints Department. 

Breach of Contract to provide care  Service Commissioner (for 
example, Social Services, 
PCT, Supporting People) 

Bogus Callers or Rogue Traders Trading Standards 
Officers 

Misuse of Public Money Local Authority Audit 
 

Anti-social behaviour (for example, 
harassment and nuisance by neighbours) 

ASBAT Team (Anti-Social 
Behaviour Team) 

Breach of Tenancy Agreement (for example, 
harassment of landlord or registered Social 
and nuisance by neighbours 

Housing Trust 
 
 

Misuse of Enduring power of attorney or power 
of a deputy.  

Public Guardianship 
Office. 

Misuse of appointee-ship or agency Department of Work and 
Pensions 

Inappropriate person or person making 
decisions about the care and wellbeing of an 
adult without Mental Capacity which are not in 
the adult’s best interest 

Court of Protection 
 
 
 

  
 

All staff have the right to be accompanied by another worker if it is deemed 
appropriate and agreed by the Safeguarding Manager.   
 
If circumstances indicate there may be violence or a breach of the peace at the 
interview, staff must request Police to accompany them to the interview.   
Interviews can be conducted also outside of the home.  For instance, it might be 
safer to interview a service user at the day centre if s/he attends.  

 
 

10.8.3 How much information should be shared? 
§ There is an Information-Sharing protocol in place. 
§ It is the responsibility of the relevant agencies to report their findings, 

without the confidentiality or safety of the Victim being jeopardised. 
§ All information must be shared where someone else other than the 

alleged victim is at risk, e.g., a child or another Vulnerable Adult. 
§ Information must be shared but only where necessary and permission had 

been sought to disclose it.   
 
 

Page 87



January 2008  Page 58 

10.8.4 What is the role of the Police at this stage if a crime has been 
committed? 

In cases where criminal proceedings may be a possible outcome, a formal 
interview should always take place with the police.  This could involve the alleged 
victim being interviewed under the Achieving Best Evidence (ABE) Proceedings 
i.e. being videotaped, etc.  Police officers are specially trained in A.B.E and 
conducting disclosure interviews.  Forensic evidence must be collected and 
preserved. Police must decide within five working days of receiving the referral 
whether an Achieving Best Evidence Interview is necessary or not.   

 
 

10.8.5 What is the role of the Safeguarding Manager at this stage? 
It is the responsibility of the Safeguarding Manager to support and supervise the 
work of their Social Worker/Care Manager /Care coordinator during the 
investigation. 
 
Where a worker from a different agency is investigating, it is the responsibility of 
their manager to supervise and support them during this assessment stage.   

 
 

10.8.6 What is the role of the Relevant Agency Investigating Officers at 
this stage? 

The investigating officer must carry out any tasks assigned to them at the 
Strategy Meeting. 
 
Any new information that comes to lights should be shared with the Safeguarding 
Manager immediately, who will decide if a Strategy Review Meeting is necessary 
to update the Interim Safeguarding Plan. 
Each worker must keep comprehensive records of all findings and be able to 
produce a report of them at the Safeguarding Plan Meeting.   

 
 

10.8.7 What are the possible outcomes of the Assessment/Investigation? 
The assessment will lead to the development of a Safeguarding Plan with time 
scales for implementation.   
 
The decision on whether or not to proceed to a Case Conference/ Safeguarding 
Plan Meeting in order to agree to the plan should be taken in consultation with 
the line manager and all the involved agencies.   

 
It is important to remember that at this stage it is paramount to investigate without 
putting the vulnerable adult at further risk.   
 
10.8.8 What is the difference between a Strategy Meeting and a Case 

Conference? 

• A Strategy Meeting is: 
o For the purpose of planning an investigation 
o Identify investigating officers and allocate tasks. 
o Agree and implement  an Interim Safeguarding Plan.  

• A Case Conference: 

Page 88



January 2008  Page 59 

o Should make decisions based on the facts revealed by the 
investigations. 

o Shares the outcome of the investigation. 
o Should decide either abuse happened as alleged or not. 
o The allegation was disproved or there is not enough information to 

decide whether the abuse happened or not.  
o Should agree a care plan that will provide protection and support the 

vulnerable adult. 
o Should agree when and by whom the protection plan will be monitored.   

 
 

10.9 Safeguarding Plan/Case Conference 
 
10.9.1 When should the Safeguarding Plan Meeting/Case Conference be 

convened? 
The Safeguarding Plan Meeting/Case Conference must be convened within 28 
days of the referral being received.   
 
10.9.2 What is the aim of the meeting? 

• Information Gathering: 
o This will include the information gathered through the investigation.  

Good practice would be for the investigating officer to produce a written 
report for the purpose of the Case Conference.   

o To provide a forum for the exchange of information between multi-
agency and multi-disciplinary colleagues involved with the individual 
deemed to be at risk.  

• Assessing Risk: 
o The meeting will assess the risks to the service user and if necessary 

other service users. 

• Weigh up the evidence, on the balance of probabilities that the allegation can 
be sustained 

• Agree on further action needed and by whom 

• Devise and agree a multi-agency Safeguarding Adults Plan that addresses 
the medium and long term protection needs of the vulnerable adults.  

• Continue to enable the views and wishes of the vulnerable adult, and if 
appropriate their carers, members of their family and friends to be taken in to 
consideration.  

• To consider whether the alleged perpetrator, if a worker, should be referred to 
the Safeguarding Adults Register.   

• To clarify the role and responsibilities of professionals and the legal context of 
intervention.   

 
10.9.3 Who is invited to the meeting? 
 
All the relevant agencies that have carried out investigations must attend the 
meeting with written reports explaining the results of their findings.   
Any other relevant agencies that may need to be involved in the case, e.g. legal 
services should also be invited to the Meeting.  

Page 89



January 2008  Page 60 

The Safeguarding Manager will ensure that the vulnerable adult is informed of 
any forthcoming Safeguarding Plan Meeting/ Case Conference , invited to attend 
and given an explanation of the Meeting and its format.  However this must be 
discussed with the Chair if this raises the level of risk that the vulnerable adult is 
subject to, or if there are other compelling reasons why this is inappropriate.   
 
When a vulnerable adult lacks mental capacity and regardless of whether they 
have their family or care representation the need for an IMCA must always be 
explored. The best interest of the service user should always be the paramount 
objective. 
 
Separate advocates can represent the carer(s) and the vulnerable adult.  The 
Chair must be aware that the interests of the vulnerable adult and the carer(s) will 
not necessarily be the same.   
 
If the vulnerable adult and/or carer(s) have communication needs, which have to 
be met in order to enable his/her participation in the Meeting, the Safeguarding 
manager should ensure that appropriate arrangements for meeting these needs 
have been made.  

 
10.9.4 What happens if an important involved professional can not attend 

the meeting? 
Should any professional with direct knowledge of the vulnerable adult or his/her 
situation not be able to attend the Meeting, he/she must submit a written report 
giving details of his/her knowledge and expressing his/her opinion regarding 
possible action. 

 
10.9.5 Who should chair a Case Conference/Safeguarding plan Meeting? 
The Chair must be the Safeguarding Manager that chaired the Initial Strategy 
Meeting, unless for reasons of unavoidable absences or because of the 
complexity of the case, it has been passed on to the Practice Manager’s Team 
Manager.  
 
The Chair will also provide the minute-taker.   

 
10.9.6 Where should a Safeguarding Adults Plan Meeting/Case 

Conference be held? 
When deciding the venue for the Safeguarding Plan Meeting/Case Conference 
the needs of the Vulnerable Adult and his/her interpreter and/or advocate must 
be considered and accommodated, where possible.  Appropriate transport and 
care support must be sought.   
 
The Safeguarding Manager is responsible for ensuring an appropriate venue is 
booked and for meeting any special needs such as ensuring the venue is 
wheelchair accessible if the service user is in a wheelchair. 
 
10.9.7 How freely can information be shared in a Safeguarding Plan 

Meeting/ Case Conference? 
Information should be shared freely between the participants. Participants have a 
responsibility to protect the confidentiality of the information that has been 

Page 90



January 2008  Page 61 

exchanged in reference to the proper management of the case and the legal 
responsibility and accountability of each agency.  
 
The deliberate withholding of information is indefensible on the grounds of 
confidentiality.  Non-disclosure may impact upon the future safety of the 
vulnerable adult.   
 
Where a non-professional is invited to attend the Safeguarding Plan Meeting 
because of his/her personal knowledge of the case, the Chairperson should 
ensure he/she is briefed properly beforehand about the purpose of the meeting 
and the duty of confidentiality.   
 
If any professional feels he/she is unable to divulge confidential information to the 
Safeguarding Plan Meeting because of the presence of the non-professional, 
he/she should communicate his/her concern to the Chair. The Chair will then 
make suitable arrangements to allow the information to be shared with the 
professionals involved in the Safeguarding Plan Meeting.   
 
10.9.8 What is on the agenda of a Safeguarding Plan Meeting? 
 
The agenda for the Safeguarding Plan Meeting will cover the following: 

o All attending will identify themselves and their role in the specific case. 
o The aim of the meeting will be explained.  
o Summaries will be given from other professional, including any 

previous involvement with the case, any recent updates, a copy of the 
written report of their investigation and any action currently being taken 
or planned.  

o Chair’s summary of the significant details thus far.  The Chair will 
reconfirm the exact nature of the risk(s) pertinent to the case 
concerned. 

o Discussion to confirm, or otherwise, that the case falls within the 
“Safeguarding Adults Registration Criteria” and a decision shall be 
taken as to whether registration is appropriate.   

o Discussion about the availability of statutory powers to intervene. 
o Agree a plan of action, identifying specific actions for each agency and 

delegates with time scales.   
o Key Worker (Safeguarding Manager) nominated. 
o Set date to review progress within six months of this meeting whether 

further action will be taken or not.  
o If the Case is not being closed here, then a Strategy Review Meeting 

will be convened when necessary.   
 
 
10.9.9 What happens if abuse is substantiated? 
 
If after the investigation it becomes clear that abuse/neglect did take place 
appropriate legal or police services are involved in the potential use of relevant 
legislation and prosecution.   
 

Page 91



January 2008  Page 62 

Where a person is entitled to ‘Special Measures’ under ‘Achieving Best 
Evidence’, they are given the relevant support from Witness Support services. 
 
 
10.9.10 What action is to be taken against the perpetrator if abuse is 

proven? 
If the perpetrator is in a paid regulated service a referral should be made for their 
inclusion on the POVA (Protection of Vulnerable Adults) register. The person 
should be suspended under the relevant disciplinary procedures until a full 
investigation under those procedures takes place. The person should not be in a 
position where they are working with vulnerable adults or children. 
 
Positive action must be taken by the participating agencies to ensure that the 
perpetrator is not allowed to abuse/neglect ever again.   
 
Action must be taken to ensure that the victim is protected from the perpetrator 
and not at any further risk. 

 
10.9.11 What is the purpose of a Safeguarding Plan? 
The Safeguarding Plan must clearly state its objectives and the intended 
outcomes with respect to each action that is planned.  
It ensures that the vulnerable adults’ health and social care needs are being 
addressed.  
 
The Plan needs to outline how the recommendations and actions of each agency, 
following an investigation are monitored. Ensuring that any support the service 
user requires in relation to therapy, community services or seeking justice is in 
place. Any future risks should be identified, with clear mechanisms in place for 
sharing information and taking agreed action. 
 
The views of the vulnerable adult must be represented always. 
 
If it has not been possible to put in measures in place to protect the vulnerable 
adults, this must be clearly be stated with the reasons this was not possible. 

 
A contact person should be identified on the Safeguarding Adults Plan who will 
have responsibility for taking appropriate action to monitor the safety and well-
being of the vulnerable person and to convene a strategy review meeting if 
necessary.   

 
 

10.9.12 What is the role of Community Care Services in the Safeguarding 
Plan? 

Fair Access to Care Services (FACS) criteria should be used to assess eligibility 
to care services from Haringey Council.  This will determine whether the risk to 
the person’s independence is critical, substantial, moderate or low and therefore, 
whether or not the person is eligible to receive community care services.   
 

Page 92



January 2008  Page 63 

A vulnerable adult not in receipt of community care services but has become a 
victim of abuse will automatically meet the criteria for a Community Care 
Assessment. 
 
Community Care Services must be considered as part of the Safeguarding Plan.  
 
10.9.13 What are the possible outcomes of the Meeting? 
 
The outcome of the investigation could be: 

• The investigation could be inconclusive 

• Partially substantiated 

• Wholly substantiated 

• Unsubstantiated 
 
For the vulnerable adult, the investigation could be closed, when no further action 
is necessary.  In this case, a review will be booked for six months following this 
meeting, during which regular monitoring and the frequency determined in the 
Safeguarding Plan will take place to ensure the Vulnerable Adult is at no further 
risk.   
Where further investigation is needed another Meeting will be convened to allow 
for this assessment to take place.  All relevant agencies need to remain involved 
and undertake the tasks assigned to them.  The Safeguarding Manager will 
remain in charge of the case lead until its conclusion. 
A Safeguarding Plan must be modified to meet changes in circumstances.  For 
example, Police arrest the alleged perpetrator and hold them in custody or the 
vulnerable adult is moved to a place of safety. 
The Safeguarding Plan and situation are continually monitored.  Counselling is 
offered to those requiring it.  
The safeguarding plan becomes part of the care plan.   
 
For the alleged perpetrator 

• Criminal charges could be pursued  

• The alleged abuser if a paid worker in a regulated service is referred to the 
POVA list under the Care Standards Act 2000.  

 
How will the outcomes be documented? 
 

§ The Case Conference/Safeguarding Plan Meeting must be recorded by an 
allocated Minute-Taker.   

§ It is the responsibility of the Safeguarding Manager to identify the Minute-
Taker 

§ A copy of the Safeguarding Adults Plan Meeting/Case Conference must 
be sent to all attendees and to anyone else that should have attended but 
must have a copy of the minutes.   

§ The contents of minutes are highly confidential and must not be 
reproduced, divulged or copied in any way.  Information obtained at a 
Case Conference/Safeguarding Plan Meeting is not to be discussed or 
revealed to persons not present without first obtaining written permission 
from the source of that information and the Chair.   

 

Page 93



January 2008  Page 64 

10.9.14 What is the role of the Safeguarding Adults Key Worker? 
 
Where the Case Conference/Safeguarding Plan Meeting concludes that a 
vulnerable adult’s name shall be placed on the ‘Safeguarding Adults register’ a 
professional delegate shall be identified as the Key Worker.   
 
The Key Worker will be the person who in the view of the Case 
Conference/Safeguarding Plan Meeting can best perform the role.  The identified 
person will act as a focus for communications between agencies and co-ordinate 
the inter-agency work of those concerned.  
 
The Key Worker will ensure as far as possible that the recommendations from the 
Case Conference/Safeguarding Plan Meeting are implemented accordingly.  If 
there are any difficulties that threaten the effectiveness of the safeguarding plan 
and/ or any other significant developments following the case conference the key 
worker has a duty to alert the Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator. The alert should 
include notification of how the Key Worker intends to address the situation in 
question.  They will almost inevitably involve other members of the core group 
who attended the Case Conference/Safeguarding Plan Meeting being requested 
to take appropriate action.  It is advisable that the vulnerable adult is in 
agreement with the choice of Key Worker. 
 
If for any reason the Key Worker believes that he/she is no longer able to fulfil 
their responsibilities of the role they must inform the Safeguarding Adult Co-
ordinator immediately.  It is their organisation’s responsibility to provide interim 
Key Worker cover until such time as the next Review is held. 
The Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator will provide the Key Worker with the 
contact details of all other delegates at the Case Conference/Safeguarding Plan 
Meeting.   
 
10.9.15 What happens after the meeting? 

 
Following this meeting, remember to inform the person who raised the concern 
that the investigation is completed. Sharing details of the outcome with the alerter 
is with the consent of the vulnerable adult or their advocate. 
The Safeguarding Manager is to remain allocated in their role until the Review 
has taken place six months after the Safeguarding Plan Meeting.  This is so that 
if further concern is raised the case can automatically be sent to this Manager 
who has prior knowledge.   
 
Between this Case Conference/Safeguarding Plan meeting and the review, it is 
imperative that the Vulnerable Adult is monitored. The frequency and type of 
contact will be agreed at the Safeguarding Plan Meeting.  
  
 

10.10 Review 
  

10.10.1 When must a Review be held? 
Six months after the Safeguarding Meeting a review is to be undertaken.   

Page 94



January 2008  Page 65 

The time scale for reviewing the Safeguarding Adults Plan must have been set at 
the Case Conference/ Safeguarding Plan Meeting. 
If any concerns or changes in circumstances might increase the risk of further 
abuse occurring before the date set, these should be brought to the attention of 
the Safeguarding Manager and the date for the review brought forward.    
 
The date of the Review will only be delayed in exceptional circumstances e.g. if 
the vulnerable adult is resident in hospital and it is judged that to delay the review 
until the moment of planning for discharge better protects that person.   
 
Members of the Core group may meet formally between meetings if this will 
assist in the management of risk pertaining to the vulnerable adult in question.  It 
is highly advisable that some form of Minutes (however brief) is taken of such 
meetings.  Any minutes gathered from this meeting must be provided to the Key 
Worker and the Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator within 5 working days of the 
meeting.  
 
 
10.10.2 What is the purpose of the Review? 
The Review is to ensure that the actions agreed in the Safeguarding Adults Plan 
have been complied with and included into the care plan to further protect the 
vulnerable adult. 
 
The vulnerable adult should, if possible, be consulted about the way 
arrangements for their care and protection are working.   

 
 

10.10.3 What happens if the review reveals a serious concern? 
If the review reveals any serious concerns it may be appropriate to carry out a 
further Safeguarding Adults Investigation or to update the Safeguarding Adults 
Plan. 
 
If the Safeguarding Adults Plan needs to be amended then a copy of this plan 
should be sent to all the organisations providing a service for the vulnerable 
adult.   
 
The vulnerable adult will remain an open case allocated to a Care Manager, who 
would have the responsibility of monitoring the case and completing a further 
review of the Safeguarding adults Plan.   
 
If new allegations or suspicions with respect to abuse are identified, then 
consideration needs to be given as to whether it would be appropriate to begin a 
new Safeguarding Adults Investigation.   
 
 

10.11 Recording and Monitoring 
 
Comprehensive records must be kept of any ‘Safeguarding Adults’ work. 

Page 95



January 2008  Page 66 

Multi-agency work carried out under the procedures is to be stored on 
Framework-I under the ‘Safeguarding Adults’ workflow process.  All documents 
must be scanned and saved in appropriate folders. 
In order to identify repeat victimisation when a case is closed and a review is 
completed the Framework-I warning is changed from a WARNING to a 
GENERAL NOTE so that a previous POVA allegation can be immediately 
recognized. 
 
Each Alert is be dealt with, with the same severity and diligence.  
 
 

10.12 Post Intervention Work and Debrief  
 
For the purpose of this document, the term ‘debrief’ refers to positive and 
constructive feedback that may highlight both examples of good practice and 
areas in need of improvement.  The process of debrief will enable staff to be 
provided with support and feedback on their role in the process.   
 
The specific objectives of post-intervention work and debrief are:  

• To confirm the outcome of the process with the vulnerable adult and 
appropriate carers.  

• To offer effective post intervention support for staff.  

• To share and learn from experience.   

• To raise awareness of Safeguarding Adults issues 

• To act as a reporting mechanism that records outcomes to inform future 
strategic policy and procedural planning, training developments and good 
practice.  

• To review the effectiveness of these procedures.  
 

Those who may require debrief are: 

• The original Alerter 

• The vulnerable adult 

• The family/carers 

• Any agencies/individuals/group involved 

• CSCI  

• The Police  

• The Safeguarding Adults Board 

• The investigating Worker. 
 

It is the responsibility of Safeguarding Managers to ensure that staff receive 
quality support during and after investigations and to identify and meet any 
training needs.  Where appropriate, support may involve a referral to 
occupational Health or a Professional Counselling Service.  

 
It is the responsibility of Safeguarding Managers who may have made an alert on 
behalf of one of their workers, to ensure that the alert is discussed in supervision 
and to provide appropriate feedback.   

 

Page 96



January 2008  Page 67 

Safeguarding Managers must be supported, given access to appropriate training 
and enabled to fulfil their supporting role by their manager. 
 
The level of debrief and information provided to each group or individual will be 
proportionate to their involvement. They will be debriefed on a need to know 
basis.  The Key Worker will confirm with their Safeguarding Manager or the 
Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator what level of information should be given to 
each group or individual.   

 
10.13 Support  for Staff 
 
A case of adult abuse causes stress for all the individuals involved.  In the case 
of staff members, whilst supervision and support provided by the Safeguarding 
Manager is important, a range of other options should be available. 
 
The options that should be made available for all individuals involved in an abuse 
case include: 

§ Access to the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Adults from Abuse Panel.  
§ Training within and between agencies 
§ Information on an appropriate telephone advice line 
§ Access to the Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator.   

 
 

10.14 Institution Concerns Investigations 
 

This section of Haringey’s Multi-agency procedures describes the way in which a 
Safeguarding Adults Investigation should be carried out when a group of people 
are at risk from the same abuser e.g. an employee of a regulated service 
provider, or as a result of delivery of poor standards of care by a service provider.   
 
The purpose of this process is to ensure a co-ordinated approach at senior 
management level, to a complex situation that may involve a number of Haringey 
Safeguarding Adults partner organisations/agencies, including Adult Services, 
Health, CSCI, Police and possibly other agencies outside the borough.   

 
For the purpose of this section the word “institution” refers to regulated providers 
of services to vulnerable adults and includes: 

• Residential care home 

• Nursing care home 

• Hospital including day hospital 

• Day care services including luncheon clubs 

• Home care provision 
 
When a group of people have been abused or are at risk it may be appropriate to 
carry out an Institution Concerns Investigation rather than an individual series of 
Safeguarding Adults Investigations.  The decision to initiate an Institution 
Concerns investigation will be made by the Haringey Safeguarding Adults Co-
ordinator when concerns about a provider of service to vulnerable adults become 
wide-ranging and serious.   

Page 97



January 2008  Page 68 

 
The prompt leading to a decision by the Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator to 
proceed with a larger scale investigation can come from various sources 
including the following: 

• The nature and type of abuse referred under the Safeguarding Adults 
procedures in relation to an individual service user which may highlight 
broader serious concerns about provision of care to vulnerable adults by the 
provider agency involved.  

• An ongoing Safeguarding Adults Investigation about an individual service user 
which may highlight serious concerns about the provider of services to the 
vulnerable adult.  Where it becomes apparent to a team manager that 
accumulated concerns should be followed up, they will notify the 
Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator.   

•  Complaints monitoring by Haringey Council Contracts Team and the 
Complaints Unit highlighting wider concerns that have arisen from 
accumulated complaints about a service provider.  In this case the Contract 
Team or relevant Commissioning Manager should contact the Safeguarding 
Adults Co-ordinator. 

 
It remains important to ensure the safety and well-being of those individuals who 
have been affected is addressed in terms of their individual care needs and 
therefore individual Safeguarding Adults Investigations will complement Institution 
Concerns Investigations. 

 
The usual starting point for this process is a Multi-agency Institution Concerns 
Strategy Meeting which will be arranged and chaired by the Safeguarding Adults 
Co-ordinator or a Team Manager, who will take responsibility for co-ordinating 
these investigations.  A decision will be made at the Institution Concerns Strategy 
Meeting with respect to the structure of the investigation, the boundaries with 
regards to what is and what is not to be covered by the investigation and the 
timing of subsequent meetings, including an Institution Concerns Case 
Conference.   

 
It needs to be clear who is leading the Institution Concerns Investigations, who 
should be involved, which actions to take and systems to follow.  The type of 
investigation would normally involve the CSCI, Social Services Team Managers, 
representatives from the Provider agency, Haringey Contracts team, Customer 
care Unit or Haringey Commissioning Teams, other teams with service users 
placed in the establishment or who are receiving care from the provider agency.  
It may become necessary to involve Haringey Legal Services, Haringey PCT and 
hospitals.   

 
Likely elements of an investigation would be a review of all Haringey service 
users within the service and recommendations to other local authorities and 
Health providers to do the same.  While CSCI cannot volunteer information on 
concerns they have about a service, they are able to share information about 
risks to individual service users.   

 
CSCI should themselves be informed of any concerns they have about a service 
that is registered under the Care Standards Act 2000.  CSCI must be kept 

Page 98



January 2008  Page 69 

informed of developments at all stages of the Institution Concerns Investigation in 
order to ensure that they are able to carry out their statutory duties and 
responsibilities.   

 
If it is apparent that a crime has been committed, a senior Police Officer from the 
CSU should be consulted at the outset of the Investigation to ensure that the 
investigation is planned in a way that does not compromise any Police 
Investigation.  

 
There may be service-users of other authorities receiving a service about which 
there are concerns.  There is a tension between wanting to act responsibly and 
notify these other authorities of our concerns, and the need to act within the law 
in terms of not injuring the proprietor’s ability to trade by expressing general 
concerns.  It is the responsibility of the Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator to make 
the decision to inform other placing authorities of Haringey’s concerns.  

 
At the close of an Institution Concerns Investigation, an Institution Case 
conference meeting should be held to enable all parties to meet to summarise the 
outcome and recommendations arising from the investigation.  The action plan 
will be summarised in an Institution Concern Action Plan.  

 
With respect to recommendations concerning individual service users, it is the 
responsibility of their Care Manager/Social Worker to ensure that these are being 
met.  Where recommendations are made in relation to provision of care by a 
provider agency, the Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator in partnership with the 
CSCI will monitor that these are carried out.   

 
The Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator may decide to set an Institution Concerns 
Review Meeting to check that appropriate actions have been taken.  The 
Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator will also be the appointed contact for other 
placing authorities to ensure prompt dissemination of information.   
 

 
11  Serious Case Review 

 
11.1 What is a Serious Case Review? 
Serious case reviews were established following the revised “Working Together” 
child protection guidance (Home Office et al 1991). A serious case review is a 
process of investigation, re-evaluation, analysing, scrutinising and making 
recommendations: 

• When a vulnerable adult who is receiving community care services dies  

• When a vulnerable adult is subject to a serious injury when there is suspected 
or actual abuse  

• When there is a safeguarding adults issue with major public concern.   
 

Serious Case Review used to be known as Part 8 or Section 8 and the process is 
co-ordinated by the Chair of the Haringey’s Safeguarding Adults Board (HSAB) 
through the Case Review Sub Committee. 

 

Page 99



January 2008  Page 70 

The guidance is issued under Section 7 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 
1970.  It does not have the full force of the law but, according to the Department 
of Health, ‘should be complied with unless local circumstances indicate 
exceptional reasons which justify a variation’. 

 
Relevant Standards: 1.22-9.10.15 

 
It is recommended that: 

 
There is a ‘Safeguarding Adults’ serious case review protocol.  This is agreed, on 
a multi-agency basis and endorsed by the Coroner’s Office, and details the 
circumstances in which a serious case review will be undertaken.  For example 
when an adult experiencing abuse or neglect dies, or when there has been a 
serious incident, or in circumstances involving the abuse or neglect of one or 
more adults.  The links between this protocol and a domestic violence review 
should be clear. 

 
There is a clear process for commissioning and carrying out of a serious case 
review by the partnership. 

 
 

11.2 The Purpose of a Serious Case Review 
The purpose of the serious case review is to: 

• Identify involved professional(s) 

• Establish the facts 

• Establish whether there are lessons to be learnt from the case about the way 
in which local professionals and agencies worked together to safeguard adults 

• Identify clearly what those lessons are, how they will be acted upon, and what 
is expected to change as a result; and as a consequence 

• To improve inter agency working and better safeguarding of adults. 
 

It is acknowledged that all agencies will have their own internal statutory review 
procedures to investigate serious incidents; e.g. an Untoward Incident. 
 
This protocol is not intended to duplicate or replace these.  Agencies may also 
have their own mechanisms for reflective practice. 
 
Where there are possible grounds for both a Serious case Review and a 
Domestic Violence Homicide Review then the two decision makers as to which 
process is to lead and who is to chair with a final joint report taken to both 
commissioning bodies.  This process will be of specific benefit when the case 
involves a victim aged between 16-18. 
 
 
11.3 Criteria for Convening Serious Case Reviews 
A serious case review must always be held when an adult who is being provided 
with services by the local authority dies due to an actual, suspected or alleged 
abuse. 
 

Page 100



January 2008  Page 71 

In cases where an adult has not died it is appropriate to hold a serious case 
review if any of the following criteria is met: 

 
§ There was a significant risk of harm to an adult which was unrecognised 

by agencies or professionals in contact with the adult or alleged 
perpetrator 

§ Risk(s) not shared with others or not acted upon properly 
§ The adult was abused in an institutional setting, for example, 

residential/nursing homes, day-centres 
§ Agencies or professionals consider that their concerns and suspicions 

were not taken sufficiently seriously or acted upon appropriately by 
another agency when the concern and suspicions were a determining 
factor. 

§ The case indicates that there may be failings in one or more aspect of the 
local operation of formal safeguarding adults procedures which extend 
beyond the handling of the case. 

§ The adult had previously been subjected to a Protection Plan 
§ The case appears to have implications for a range of agencies or 

professionals. 
§ The case suggests that there may be a need for the HSAB to change its 

protocols or procedures or that they need to be more effectively promoted, 
understood or acted upon. 

 
 

11.4 Process for commissioning and carrying out of a serious case review 
The HSAB will be the only body which commissions any serious case reviews.  
The Board will publicise both the process under which applications for reviews 
may be made and the terms of reference for each serious case review. 
 
There must also be mechanisms for the consideration of requests from the 
Coroner, MPs, Elected Members and other interested parties. 
 
Applications must attract the support of the quorum of the Board be made in 
writing. 
 
In the event of an application being turned down, the reasons need to be 
recorded in writing and shared with the applicant. 
 
 
11.5 Initiating a Serious Case Review  
The case for review will be passed to the Chair of the HSAB to initiate a 
discussion/decision by the Board.  If it is agreed, a multi-agency Serious Case 
Review Panel will be set up: 
 

§ The HSAB will be responsible for the appointment of an Independent 
Panel Chair. 

 
§ The HSAB will ensure the Serious Case Review Panel Chair receives 

adequate support. 
 

Page 101



January 2008  Page 72 

§ The Chair of the panel will be responsible for establishing individual terms 
of reference and setting time scales for the review in agreement with the 
HSAB.  They will also be responsible for ensuring administrative 
arrangements are completed and that the review process is conducted 
according to the terms of reference. 

 
§ Any professional or agency working within the local safeguarding adults 

network who concludes that a case review may be required must 
immediately notify the Chair of the HSAB. 

 
§ Within a month of any such notification, the HSAB Chair should convene a 

Case Review Sub-Committee. 
 

§ It is the duty and responsibility of the HSAB Chair to instruct the case 
Review Sub-Committee to undertake a Serious Case Review. 

 
§ Members of this sub-committee may determine that a full case review is 

not justified and that internal management review/s might be more helpful.  
The results of any such internal enquiries within member agencies must 
be fed back to this sub-committee.   

 
§ It is the responsibility of both the lead agency and the Case Review Sub-

Committee to ensure feedback is undertaken. 
 

§ If the Case Review Sub-Committee does not conclude that a serious case 
review is required, it should make this recommendation to the Chair of the 
HSAB who has the final responsibility for making the decision. 

 
11.6 When the HSAB instigates a case review, they will be responsible for: 
 

§ Identifying the agencies/service providers whose part in the case is to be 
examined 

§ Make arrangements for each participating agencies Chief Officer to be 
written to informing them of the details of the process, and that they need 
to arrange an internal/management case chronology and review. 

 
11.7 Immediate Conduct 

 
As soon as the HSAB Chair has decided that a Serious Case Review is required, 
s/he must immediately inform the relevant Service Manager or comparable officer 
who must then within 1 working day complete the following tasks: 

§ Convene an emergency Strategy Meeting to make arrangements for the 
safety of other vulnerable adults, for instance, in a care setting or in a 
domestic environment where there are other vulnerable adults. 

§ Check the electronic database to establish if service user is/was known 
and to identify involved professionals. 

§ Freeze and seal paper files: a senior manager in the agency must take 
possession of the file and ensures that a suitable member of staff numbers 
and initials both sides of each paper 

Page 102



January 2008  Page 73 

§ Limit access of all electronic database to approved person/s from the Case 
Review Sub Committee  

§ All agencies must make a photocopy of the file(s) so as to allow ongoing 
work and the original is held by a senior manager 

§ Files should not be entrusted to the postal service and must be delivered 
in person or by courier 

§ Inform The Director of Adults, Culture and Community Services or 
comparable equivalent and the Press Office 

§ Define those agencies which have been involved with the adult and alert 
them via a letter from the HSAB to Chief Executive/Officer, to their 
obligation to undertake an internal enquiry as a contribution to the overall 
case review 

§ Inform CSCI 
 
Within 2 further working days, the manager who has taken possession of the 
active files must: 

• Complete a briefing report for the Director of Adults, Culture and Community 
Services, equivalent in Health ,HSAB and Serious Case Review Sub- 
Committee, the Social Services Cabinet/Committee Member and Press Office 

 
 

11.8 Individual Agency Internal Management Reviews 
 

The Main objectives of each agency review are to: 
§ Look openly and critically at organisational and individual practice 
§ Establish if the case indicates that changes could and should be made  
§ Identify how any such changes may be introduced 
§ Propose any other action required 
 
To achieve these objectives, the following will need to be completed: 

• Files need to identified and read 

• Relevant practitioners and managers need to be interviewed 

• A chronology needs to be established 

• Establish the service provided as a result of the decisions made 

• An analysis of involvement 

• A summary of ‘lessons learnt’ 

• Recommendations for practical action 
 
 

11.9 Individual Agency Response to HSAB Notification and Internal 
Management 

Reviews 
 

The HSAB case review notification will be received usually by the agency’s Chief 
Executive.  If it is received by someone else in the agency, the Chief Executive or 
equivalent should be informed as soon as possible.  The Chief Executive will 
inform the agency lead for safeguarding adults. 

 
The agency lead (or a member of staff appointed by them) will then: 

 

Page 103



January 2008  Page 74 

• Ensure that the agency Serious Case Review policy has been instigated 

• Read all the secured records and establish  a chronology of the history of the 
agency’s involvement  

• Interview appropriate staff 

• Complete an initial report which will include a chronology and an analysis of 
our services involvement 

• Any initial recommendations made at this time will be in addition to 
recommendations and implementation/action plans made by the HSAB 
Serious Case Review Panel 

• The completed report will be made available to the agency and senior 
management as outlined within the Serious Case Review Procedure 

• The completed report will be sent to the case review panel 
 
 

11.10 HSAB Action on Receiving Reports  
 

11.11 Ongoing Conduct and Timescales 
 
The conduct of the review should be overseen by a Serious Case Review Sub 
Committee to be briefed at a session convened by the HSAB Chair.  The overall 
time limit for submission of a Serious Case Review Report to the Department of 
Health is 4 months from the decision that such a review is required unless, as a 
result of complexity of a case or other circumstance, an alternative has been 
negotiated with CSCI. 
 
The HSAB Chair must also notify each member agency of the need to conduct 
and submit to the Chair of the Serious Case Review Sub Committee (within 3 
months unless otherwise agreed), its individual agency review. 
 
The HSAB is responsible for forming an Inter-Agency Case Review Panel with a 
clear term of reference 
 
11.12 Responsibilities of Serious Case Review Panel 

 

• The Inter-Agency Case Review Panel will usually draw its members from the 
HSAB Serious case Review Sub Committee, with other professionals co-
opted for their specific skills/insight as required 

• The Serious Case Review Panel is responsible for compiling an inter-agency 
chronology, carefully analysing all the information available and completing a 
final unnamed report.  

• The Serious Case Review Panel may decide to re-examine case notes and 
agency based evidence, as well as interview staff to aid their analysis 

• They will ensure that contributing agencies and individuals are satisfied that 
their information is fully and fairly represented in the overview report 

• They will translate recommendations into an action plan which should be 
endorsed and adopted at a senior level by each of the agencies involved.  
The plan should set out individual task, timescale with intended outcomes.  It  
should set out also the means of improvements to be made in practice and 
systems for monitoring and reviewing 

Page 104



January 2008  Page 75 

• Identify person(s) to whom the report or any part of it should be made 
available 

• Disseminate report or key findings to interested parties as agreed 

• Make arrangements to provide feedback and de-briefing to staff, family 
members of the vulnerable adult and the media as appropriate 

• Provide a copy of the overview report, executive summary action plan and 
individual management report to the HSAB,  CSCI and Health Care 
Commission 

 
 
11.13 Overview Report and Follow-up  
 
The Serious Case Review Sub Committee is responsible for the production of a 
composite report (prepared by a nominated senior manager or an independent 
person) to the full HSAB which will: 

• Provide an overview and include all relevant facts 

• Offer an integrated chronology, using the template for internal agency 
chronologies 

• Make recommendations for action by the HSAB and individual agencies 
 

The format of the composite report should be as follows: 
  

An introduction - which summarises the circumstances leading to the review.  
The introduction should also set out the terms of reference for the review, outline 
the contributors and who contributed to the review and clarify the Serious Case 
Review Sub Committee members and author of the report 
  
Facts - including an integrated chronology showing involvement of all agencies 
and an overview of what relevant information was known to each involved agency 
and professional, about the parent/carer/spouse, any perpetrator, and the home 
circumstances  
 
An analysis, - which considers how and why events occurred. What decisions 
were made and the actions taken or not. This section of the report should also 
consider that if a different decision or action had been taken the outcome may 
have differed. Any exampled of good practice can also be included wherever 
useful.  
 
Conclusions and recommendations, - summing up what lessons should be drawn 
from this case and any proposals that the agencies involved should progress as a 
result. The conclusion and recommendations should be explicit, simple and 
realistic. This section should be seen as an opportunity to improve good practice 
requirements in the safe guarding adults process. 

 
A process must be put in place in advance of formal submission of the overview 
report to the HSAB which enables feedback and de-briefing of staff involved. 
 
The overview report should be submitted to the Chair of the HSAB within 1 month 
of the internal reviews being received. 

Page 105



January 2008  Page 76 

 
 
12 Dispute resolution for complex cases involving 

more than one specialist area  
 
12.1 What is the Purpose of the dispute resolution for complex cases 
Involving more than one specialist area? 
 
This procedure helps assists managers in Adult Services with their decision- 
making in relation to their funding responsibilities to service users with multiple 
care needs.  This procedure aims to avoid disputes, where the vulnerable adults’ 
needs are neglected as a result. 
 
12.2 When this procedure should be used 
 
This procedure should be referred to when: 

§ There is more than one service area, which may be involved in the joint 
assessment of need.     

§ For service users with multiple care needs requiring complex care 
packages. 

§ More than one service area is providing services. 
§ Where there is concern that an adequate level of care to support needs is 

not being provided. Where there is risk that the appropriate level of care to 
support needs is not been provided 

§ Where there is a risk that the appropriate level of care is dependent on 
funding approval/criteria 

§ Where service user is unable to complain or has access to an independent 
advocacy service 

 
12.3 What should be done? 
 

þ Agreed care plans must be needs led and not service led. 
þ A person centred approach to care management should be followed 

especially when there is more than one team involved  
þ The same duty of care and the principle of acting in the service user’s best 

interest applies to all professionals irrespective of  the task 
þ All service providers are equally responsible for the well-being of the 

service user. 
þ Multiple care needs must be jointly assessed  
þ The service user should be involved in the decision-making process as 

much as possible. Where the service user is not able to do so then an 
advocate or carer should be approached. 

þ Relevant service managers must sign off the outcome of any assessments  
þ Relevant service managers to have a discussion about proposed care 

package  
þ Service managers are responsible for the funding of such care packages. 
þ If funding is a problem, service managers to escalate the situation to the 

Assistant Director of Adult Services  for a resolution 

Page 106



January 2008  Page 77 

þ The Care package needs to be closely monitored for effectiveness 
þ Care packages should be reviewed as soon as any concerns arise about 

the quality of the service 

 
  
13 Guidance Notes on Referral to the Protection of 

Vulnerable Adults Register (POVA) 
 
13.1 What is the POVA register? 
The POVA register is a list of names of employees who have been found to have 
abused a vulnerable adult. The registers overarching aim is to prevent 
professionals in a health or social care setting found guilty of abusing a 
vulnerable adult from providing direct care is such a setting again.   
 
There are two parts to the register: the provisional list which holds the names of 
those currently under investigation and the permanent list for when the 
allegations have been substantiated.  A request must be made by the person 
who made the referral to the provisional list to transfer a name from the 
provisional to the permanent or to remove a name from the provisional if the 
allegation could not be substantiated or is inconclusive. 
 
13.2 Who can make a referral to the register? 
It is the employer’s responsibility to refer.  If the worker is employed by an 
agency, it is the agency’s responsibility. 
 
Human Resources will make the referral if an allegation of abuse has been 
received about a Haringey Council employee. 
 
The only other agencies that can refer to the register are the Commission for 
Social Care Inspection (CSCI), the Care Standards Inspectorate of Wales and 
the Secretary of State of Health. 
 
13.3 Who can be referred? 
Care workers (any worker who provides care from social workers to care 
assistants), volunteers and approved carers who have regular contacts with 
vulnerable adults in registered care and nursing homes, adult placements or 
service users’ homes when they are receiving care. 
 
13.4 When is a referral made? 
The worker must be informed of the decision to refer.  A referral is made when 
there is reasonable consideration that an individual is guilty of misconduct that 
has caused harm or risk of harm to a vulnerable adult. The harm or potential 
harm should have been because of certain action or inaction on the part of the 
individual.  Harm is defined in law as “ill treatment or the impairment or health or 
development. 
 
The misconduct could have been at work or outside of work. When disciplinary 
action leading to a dismissal is taken and exceptionally when the individual has 
been suspended pending further investigation 

Page 107



January 2008  Page 78 

 
When a carer’s approval to provide adult placement has been 
withdrawn/terminated  

 
 

13.5 Referral to regulatory bodies 
As soon as the worker is provisionally included on the POVA list there must be a 
prompt referral to appropriate regulatory body for instance the General Social 
care Council, the Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI), Nursing and 
Midwifery Council (NMC) or the Care Standards Inspectorate of Wales 
 
The worker must be notified of this action 
 
13.6 Supporting the referred worker 
Management has an obligation to support the referred person who has been 
suspended while the investigation continues.  The Personnel Manager should be 
prepared to answer questions about procedures but will not be able to comment 
on the allegation 
 
13.7 Confidentiality 
Only the senior manager(s), the relevant personnel manager or advisor, the 
individual’s manager, and the individual himself or herself will know of the referral 
to POVA. 
 
New employers will be told by the Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) that an 
individual’s name is on the register or list  

 
13.8 The worker’s right to appeal 
If an individual is provisionally included on the POVA list, the Secretary of State 
of Health will confirm this in writing to the individual sent by “Special Delivery.” 
 
The individual will have the opportunity to make written representations direct to 
the Secretary of State as to why s/he should not be not be confirmed on the list. 
 
The individual will be given 28 days in which to make written observations or to 
indicate that s/he intends to make observations within a reasonable period.  If 
observations are not received, the Secretary of State will take a decision based 
on all available evidence. 
 
All representations made by the individual will be passed on to the manager as 
the referring manager for comment. Similarly the Secretary of State will provide 
the individual concerned with copies of all papers submitted to him from the 
employers 

 
13.9 How does the referral affect the individual worker? 
If a referral is withdrawn from the provisional list, that individual will the be able to 
continue to work with vulnerable adults. It should however lead to improved 
monitoring and supervision of practices by managers 
 

Page 108



January 2008  Page 79 

Individuals who are included on the provisional list will not be employed in a care 
position working with vulnerable adults. 
 
It is a criminal offence for an individual who has been transferred to the 
permanent register to try to obtain employment in a vulnerable adult care setting. 
This offence is punishable with imprisonment. 

 
13.10 Form for referral 

 
This can be obtained from the DOH website 
http://www.elderabuse.org.uk/Media%20and%20Resources/Useful%20downloads/POVA/pova%2
0referral%20form.rtf 

 
 

The Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006.  
 
The Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Acts 2006 was introduced in the House of 
Lords on 28 February 2006 and received Royal Assent on 8 November 2006.  A 
new will be introduced requiring those who intend to work with children, or 
vulnerable adults, to be registered.  The register would confirm that there is no 
known reason why an individual should not work with these client. The 
implementation timetable is from the autumn of 2008. 
 
Once the scheme is fully implemented, an individual who is working or 
volunteering, or seeking to work or volunteer, with children or vulnerable adults 
must apply to join the scheme.  If the individual is considered unsuitable by the 
Independent safeguarding Authority (ISA), they are barred from working in 
regulated activity with children or vulnerable adults. 
 
The new scheme will be based on two barred lists:  one of people barred from 
working with children which replaces List 99, POCA( these two are for children) 
and the POVA list(a list of those barred from the care workforce).  All barring 
decisions will be taken by the new ISA. 
 
For further information, please visit the ISA website:  http://www.isa-gov.org/ 

 
14  Related Policies and Procedures 
 
The Safeguarding Adults procedures do not exist in isolation.  Existing 
organisational policies and protocols provide the structure for actions taken as 
part of the Safeguarding process.   

 
Concerns of abuse or neglect reported through those processes should be 
referred to the Safeguarding Adults procedures.  Examples Include: 

• Health and safety 

• Untoward incident reporting procedures 

• Bullying and Harassment 

• Recruitment and selection 

• Complaints and representation 

Page 109



January 2008  Page 80 

• Disciplinary procedures 

• Information sharing protocols 

• Whistle Blowing policy  

• Equal Opportunities 
 

Whistle-blowers should know how to access support and to protect their own 
interests.  Even if they decide that they wish to make an anonymous report, the 
information they provide will be taken in to account and treated seriously.   

 
All requests for anonymity by the referrer will be fully respected.  It cannot 
however be guaranteed, especially if the referrer’s information becomes an 
essential element in any subsequent legal proceedings.  In addition, the Data 
Protection Act 1998 removes the blanket confidentiality of third party information.    

  
 
15 Haringey Safeguarding Legal Framework 

 
15.1 Introduction 

 
This section outlines the main legal provisions that are relevant to Safeguarding 
adults from abuse.  It is a guide and provides information about supportive 
legislation linked to Safeguarding Adults policy and procedures  
. 
The legislative issues relating to protection and safeguarding of vulnerable adults 
are complex because the existing legal framework is not completely effective in 
safeguarding vulnerable adults.  It is not always very helpful in balancing the 
issues of autonomy, individual rights and protection.   
 
Legal action may provide a solution to problems being encountered when 
working with vulnerable adults.  That nature will depend on the circumstances of 
each case and the type of abuse.   
 
The law in respect of vulnerable adults is to be found in various sections of 
separate acts of parliament.   
 
It is advisable that in cases where legislative issues need to be considered the 
agencies legal department/advisor are contacted. 
 
 

15.2 Criminal Law 
 
Vulnerable adults may be the subject of criminal acts e.g. Physical or sexual 
assault and theft.   
 
Witnesses to crimes are usually interviewed under ‘Achieving Best Evidence in 
Criminal Proceedings” procedures. If the witness is vulnerable as defined under 

Page 110



January 2008  Page 81 

these procedures they may be offered special measures. That is an appropriate 
adult (advocate etc) may be appointed to partake in the interview process. 
 
In any criminal investigation joint work with the police becomes extremely 
important, as any action may prejudice the outcome of the criminal investigation 
as evidence may be lost or contaminated. It is therefore essential that the police 
are contacted and advice is sought as soon as there is a suggestion that a crime 
has been committed or may be committed. 
 
Staff may be a potential witness to a crime and any records kept used as 
evidence. It is therefore of the utmost importance that such records are accurate, 
and up to date. 
 
 

15.3 Police Powers and Criminal Investigations 
 

The police should be informed of situations where a criminal investigation is 
warranted under criminal law.  The standard of evidence required for a successful 
prosecution will be “proof beyond reasonable doubt”. The police will therefore 
need to obtain all possible evidence and include statements from both the victim 
and witnesses if available.   

 
The ultimate decision whether to prosecute lies with the Crown Prosecution 
Service.  They will have to take in to account the weight of the evidence and the 
potential for a prosecution going ahead.   
 
 

15.4 Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 
 
Section 17: Allows a police officer to search and enter any premises without a 
warrant for the purpose of saving life or limb or preventing serious damage to 
property. 
 
Section 24: Allows a police officer to arrest any person who is suspected of 
having committed, or is about to commit an arrestable offence.   
 
Section 25: Allows a police officer, where there are reasonable grounds to make 
an arrest or someone to prevent them causing physical injury to another person, 
or to protect a child or other vulnerable person. 
 
Codes of Practice: 
Code C: A vulnerable adult taken in to police custody will be supported or 
represented.  In exceptional cases, the person in custody may not be afforded 
this right in police custody. 
 
Provide for an appropriate adult to be in attendance at police interviews involving 
mentally disordered or mentally handicapped person.   

 
 

Page 111



January 2008  Page 82 

15.5 Youth Justice and Criminal Evidence Act 1999 
 
This Act gives the police and the courts the ability to offer ‘Special Measures’ to 
vulnerable victims and witnesses of crimes.  The act fundamentally affects the 
way in which evidence is gathered and presented in court in respect of children 
and other vulnerable groups.   

 
The ‘Special Measures’ apply to: 

 
15.5.1 Under Section 16: 

• All children under 17 years of age at the time of the hearing. 

• Persons suffering from mental disorder within the meaning of the Mental 
Health Act 1983. 

• Persons suffering from significant impairment or intelligence or social 
functioning.   

• Person with a physical disability or other physical disorder. 
 

15.5.2 Under Section 17: 

• Persons suffering fear or distress in connection with testifying in the 
proceedings  

• Complainants in sexual offence cases.   
 
15.5.3 Special Measures: Other ‘Special Measures’ provisions include: 

• Video recorded evidence 

• Evidence presented in court by live link 

• Evidence in private 

• Screening witness from the accused 

• Removal of wigs and gowns 

• Aides to communication 

• Support from an intermediary.   
 

In considering the use of ‘special measures’ the court must consider whether or 
not the quality of evidence given by the witness is likely to be diminished by 
reason of their belonging to one of the categories of vulnerable or intimidated 
witnesses. 

   
Under Section 17, a person suffering fear or distress, the court must take 
account of the following in reaching a determination of the use of special 
measures: 

• The nature and alleged circumstance of the offence.  

• The age of the witness.   

• Social, cultural and ethnic origins.  

• Domestic and employment circumstances 

• Religious or political opinions 

• Behaviour of accused, his or her family or other associates towards the 
witness.  

 

 

Page 112



January 2008  Page 83 

15.6 National Guidance Document ‘Achieving Best 
Evidence in Criminal Proceedings’ 2001 

 
The national guidance provides a framework by which the police and social 
services gather services gather evidence from children and vulnerable adults in 
criminal investigations. Only those trained in this guidance should interview 
victims of and witnesses to suspected crimes.  The guidance is extended beyond 
criminal proceedings and used as the basis for interviewing witnesses in civil and 
quasi legal proceedings. 

 

15.7 Sexual Offences Act 2003 
 
This Act repeals all previous legislation on sexual offences.  Consent is a key 
issue in the Act and the freedom to make choices. The main sexual offences are 
rape (now including penile penetration of the mouth, anus or vagina), assault by 
penetration, and a sexual assault by touching and causing sexual activity without 
consent.  Sexual relations with certain relatives have been clarified.   

 
The Act introduced new offences to protect vulnerable persons with a mental 
disorder or a learning disability from sexual abuse.   These include where they 
are unable to refuse because of a lack of understanding, where they are offered 
inducements or subject to threats or are deceived and where there is a breach of 
relationship of care, by care workers.   

  
Section 30- Sexual Activity with a person with a mental disorder impeding choice 

 
A person (A) commits an offence if- 
(a) he intentionally touches another person (B) 
(b) the touching is sexual 
(c) B is unable to refuse because of or reason related to mental disorder, and  
(d) A knows or could reasonably be expected to know that B has a mental 
disorder and that because of if or for a reason related to it B, is likely to be unable 
to refuse.   

 
B is unable to refuse if- 
(a) he lacks the capacity to choose whether to agree to the touching (whether 
because he lacks sufficient understanding of the nature or reasonably 
foreseeable consequences of what is being done, or for any other reason), or 
(b) he is unable to communicate such a choice. 

 
Section 31- Causing or inciting a person, with a mental disorder impeding 
choice, to engage in sexual activity 

 
Section 32- Engaging in sexual activity in the presence of a person with a mental 
disorder impeding choice.  

 
Section 33- Causing a person with a mental disorder impeding choice, to watch 
a sexual act.   

 

Page 113



January 2008  Page 84 

The Sexual Offences act 2003 also contains specific sexual offences that can be 
committed by a care worker against a person with a mental disorder or learning 
disability: 

 
Section 38- Care workers: sexual activity with a person with a mental disorder.  

 
Section 39- Care Workers: causing or inciting sexual activity. 

 
Section 40- Care Workers: sexual activity in the presence of a person with a 
mental disorder.  

 
Section 41- Care Workers: causing a person with a person with a mental 
disorder to watch a sexual act.   
 
For further information please go to www.legislation.hmso.gov.uk  
 
 

15.8 Civil Law 
 
Protection from Harassment Act 1997 
This piece of legislation is a civil law but creates the offence of harassment. It can 
be used when a matter falls short of a physical attack but the vulnerable adult is 
being intimidated or harassed by an abuser.  In such situations an injunction can 
be sought. 
 

 
15.9 Domestic Violence Legislation 

 
Family Law Act 1996 Part 4 

 
In relation to domestic violence, there are several relevant sections within 
criminal law pertaining to assault. The police should take a proactive approach to 
domestic violence between partners and have the powers to arrest an alleged 
perpetrator, even where the victim has not decided to press charges.   
 
The Family Law Act provides for the making of non-molestation and occupation 
orders and these can include powers of arrest.  These can be obtained against 
“associated persons” which include cohabiters, spouses and persons who live 
together in the same household and relatives.  It does not include employees, 
tenants, lodges and boarders.   

 
 

Domestic Violence, Crime and Victims Act 2004 

 
This Act broadens the relationships covered by domestic violence legislation to 
include same sex and couples who have never lived together.  It makes common 
assault an arrestable offence.  There are significant Police powers including 
making it an arrestable, criminal offence to breach a non-molestation order.   
 

Page 114



January 2008  Page 85 

The victim is given stronger legal protection as the legislation enables the courts 
to impose restraining orders when sentencing for any offence, or on acquittal for 
any offence of causing or allowing the death of a child or vulnerable adult.  This 
places a new offence of causing or allowing the death of a child or vulnerable 
adult who is at significant risk of serious harm.  The Act set up an Independent 
Commissioner for Victims to give them a voice nationally.   

 

 
15.10 Mental Capacity Act 2005 

 
The Issue of mental capacity is critical in deciding action in adult protection. 
English law presumes that everyone has mental capacity until it is proven 
otherwise.   In undertaking investigations, capacity to consent is a key issue.  
There are two key issues and the first is the capacity of the adult to consent to a 
sexual act or other act about which there is concern.  If the adult has capacity 
and consented to the ‘abusive’ act, it is unlikely that any prosecution can take 
place although the Police should be consulted.  A vulnerable adult’s capacity may 
fluctuate over time.  This can be critical in determining whether an act is abusive 
or consensual.   

 
The second key area where capacity is significant is consent to the process of 
the investigation- active involvement of the Police, interviews and medical 
assessment.  If the vulnerable adult lacks capacity for this function, it is 
inappropriate for their consent to the process to be sought.  However, they should 
be engaged with the process in any way possible.  If the adult has capacity and 
declines assistance and refuses an investigation, actions will be limited.  Such 
situations should be discussed at a Safeguarding Adult Conference to ensure all 
agencies are aware of the risks and the danger signals.   

 
In assessing capacity, it is important to distinguish between capacity to make the 
decision and the ability to communicate the decision.  The Mental Capacity Act 
2005 makes clear that a functional approach to capacity must be taken and the 
adult must be assessed in relation to their capacity for this specific decision, not a 
general assessment.  The test is whether the person is capable of understanding 
the particular decision.  If a particular decision is trivial, a low degree of 
understanding will suffice.  The more complex the decision the greater the 
understanding is needed.   

 
If an adult lacks capacity, professionals involved need to act in the vulnerable 
adult’s best interests.  Capacity must have been carefully assessed and 
recorded.  Legal advice should be sought.  In the context of medical decisions, 
best interests is defined as where medical treatment is “necessary to save life or 
prevent a deterioration or ensure an improvement in the patient’s physical or 
mental health; in accordance with a practice accepted at the time by a 
responsible body of medical opinion skilled in the particular form of treatment in 
question”: 19 
 

                                                 
19
 Code of Practice Mental Health Act 1983. 

Page 115



January 2008  Page 86 

This Act is underpinned by a set of five principles which make it clear that a 
person should be seen as having capacity unless proved otherwise. These are: 
1. A person must be assumed to have capacity unless it is established he lacks 

capacity.   
2. A person is not to be treated as unable to make decisions unless all 

practicable steps to help him to do so have been taken without success.   
3. A person is not to be treated as unable to make a decision merely because he 

makes an unwise decision. 
4. An act done, or decision made, under this Act or on behalf of a person who 

lacks capacity must be done or made in his best interests.   
5. Before the act is done, or the decision made, regard must be had to whether 

the purpose for which it is needed can be as effectively achieved in a way that 
is less restrictive of the person’s rights and freedom of action.  

 
What does the Act do? 

 
• Enshrines current best practice and common law principles concerning 

people who lack capacity. 

• Replaces current statutory schemes for Enduring Powers of Attorney and 
the appointment of Court of Protection Receivers 

• Sets out single clear test for assessing whether a person lacks capacity to 
make a particular decision at a particular time. 

• Everything done on behalf of a person who lacks capacity must be in that 
person’s best interest. 

• Clarifies that where a person is providing treatment or care for someone 
who lacks capacity, then the person can provide the care without incurring 
legal liability. 
 

Someone is unable to make a decision for himself if he/she is unable: 

• To understand the information relevant to the decision 

• To retain the information  

• To use or weigh that information as part of the process of making the 
decision. 

• To communicate his decision by any means.   
 

There is a best interest’s checklist for people acting on behalf of others.  This 
includes the following: 

• Consider whether it is likely that the person will at some time have capacity in 
relation to the matter in question and if so when. 

• Must permit and encourage the person to participate as fully as possible in 
any act and decision.   

• Must consider the person’s past and present wishes and feelings, the beliefs 
and values that would be likely to influence his decision if he had capacity and 
the other factors he would be likely to consider if he were able to do so.   

• He must take account if it is practical and appropriate to consult them, the 
views of anyone named by the person for consultation, carers, donees of 
lasting power of attorney or court appointed deputies.   

 

Page 116



January 2008  Page 87 

Restraint is only permitted if the person using it reasonably believes it is 
necessary to prevent harm to the incapacitated person and if the restraint is 
proportionate to the likelihood and seriousness of harm.   
 
The Act has extended the Court of Protection’s role to cover welfare matters not 
just financial matters.  A lasting Power of Attorney can specify other decisions on 
wider welfare matters as well as finance.  Most day to day informal decisions 
should be able to be taken without interference of the court, with a general 
authority resting on the carer.   
A Court can appoint a deputy to help with healthcare, welfare and financial 
decisions, where a person lacks capacity, without appointing a Lasting Power of 
Attorney.  This replaces the current system of receivership covering financial 
decision making and extends it to include health and welfare.   
The Act has also made three new provisions 

• The creation of the Independent Mental Capacity Advocates (IMCAs) to 
support those lacking capacity who have no one else to speak for them 
when decisions are taken about serious medical treatment or long term 
residential care. 

• Advance decisions to refuse treatment – statutory rules with clear 
safeguards confirm that people may make a decision in advance to refuse 
treatment if they should lose capacity in the future.  It is made clear in the 
Act that an advance decision will have no application to any treatment 
which a doctor considers necessary to sustain life unless strict formalities 
have been complied with.  These formalities are that the decision must be 
in writing, signed and witnessed.  In addition, there must be an express 
statement that the decision stands “even if life is at risk”. 

• The Act creates a new criminal offence of ill treatment or neglect of an 
adult who lacks mental capacity.   A person found guilty of such an offence 
may be liable to imprisonment for a term of up to five years. 

 

15.11 Financial Protection 
 

The prevention of financial abuse can be difficult. It is important to remember that 
such abuse may be a crime so consult the police.   The Mental Capacity Act 2005 
also provides some safeguards. 

 
Court Appointed Deputies 
 
Under the Mental Capacity Act 2005, the Court of Protection has replaced 
receivers with Deputies.   

• Deputies can be appointed to make decisions on financial matters 

• Will only be appointed if the Court cannot make a one-off decision to 
resolve issues. 

•  
Power of Attorney 
The adult can, through a legal process, empower someone else to act on their 
behalf in relation to all their financial affairs.  Unless any restrictions or conditions 
are placed on the Attorney this person will be able to do almost anything that the 
adult would have done, for example sign cheques, or withdraw money from 

Page 117



January 2008  Page 88 

savings accounts.  The adult granting the Power Of Attorney must be mentally 
capable at the time and can appoint almost anyone who is over 18 years of age.  
An ordinary Power of Attorney lasts only so long as the person who grants it is 
mentally capable whereas a Lasting Power of Attorney allows for incapacity.   

 
Lasting Power of Attorney (LPA) 
 
It is similar to the previous system of Enduring Power of Attorney which it 
replaces under the Mental Capacity Act 2005. 
A Lasting Power of Attorney continues after the adult becomes mentally 
incapable of managing their own affairs.   An attorney can be appointed to make 
decisions on financial matters  LPAs must be registered with the Public Guardian 
Office (PGO) before it can be used.  

 
Appointee 
The Department of Works and Pension (DWP) can appoint someone else to 
receive the adult’s benefits and to use that money to pay expenses such as 
household bills, food and personal items.  An appointee should be a close 
relative or friend or someone who is regularly in contact with the adult.  The 
person who is willing to act as the appointee must contact the local Benefits 
Agency office, who will arrange to interview the adult to decide whether they are 
mentally or physically incapable of acting on their own behalf.  Where an adult 
has no one who can take this on, it is technically possible for someone from the 
Council to do so but is not generally considered appropriate.   

 
 

Agent  
If the adult cannot go to the Post Office because of a physical disability or 
incapacity they could either fill in the back of the payment order or they could 
arrange for a suitable person to be made their Agent. The adult will need to 
contact the local Benefits Agency office and the adult can cancel this 
arrangement at any time they see fit.  The Attorney and Agent assume that the 
adult is able to make the decision.  An attorney is in fact under a legal duty not to 
misuse the power granted to them.  If they do so, they can be sued in the Civil 
Courts.   
 
Inherent Jurisdiction 

 
The High Court may use its inherent jurisdiction to make a declaration as to 
whether action which is proposed to be taken is in the best interests for a person 
or is unlawful.  The High Court can make decisions as to appropriate place of 
residence with someone who does not have capacity to make decisions by 
themselves and can also make injunctions to back up any residents and to stop 
removal. 

 
 

15.12 Mental Health Act (MHA) 1983 
 

Page 118



January 2008  Page 89 

This Act provides for the detention and treatment of mentally disordered 
individuals and if use is being considered an Approved Social Worker should 
advise.   

 
Section 115: Powers of Entry and Inspection: 
 
An Approved Social Worker may at reasonable times enter and inspect any 
premises in which a mentally disordered adult is living, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the patient is not under proper care.   
Section 115 does not allow an approved social worker to force entry, although 
obstruction may be offence under Section 129, and the approved social worker 
can apply for a warrant under Section 135.  The adult need not be named in this 
warrant, so this allows for investigation of suspected maltreatment of people 
whose identity is unknown but whose whereabouts are known.  The evidence 
used to obtain the warrant can be about mistreatment in the past and therefore 
allows for accumulation of evidence over a period of time.   

 
Section 135 allows an Approved Social Worker to apply for a warrant to search 
for and remove adults where there is a reasonable cause to suspect that an adult 
believed to be suffering from a mental disorder has been, or is being, ill-treated or 
neglected and not kept under proper control, or is unable to care for himself or 
herself and is living alone.    

 
Section 136 allows for a police officer to intervene if the adult is in a public place 
(for example wandering outside their home). 

 
Section 13(4): Duty to make application for admission 
This places a duty on Social Services Department to direct an Approved Social 
Worker to consider making an application for admission under the Act, if 
requested to do so by the nearest relative.  This power could be used if the 
nearest relative of a mentally disordered adult complains of mistreatment by a 
third party, provided grounds exist under the MHA.  

 
Section 2, 3 and 4: Admission to hospital 
These sections give power to an Approved Social Worker based on the 
recommendation of one or two doctors to authorise the admission to hospital of a 
mentally disordered adult, if she/he is satisfied the criteria for compulsory 
admission are met as per the provisions of the MHA.  

 
Section 7: Guardianship 
A vulnerable adult can be received in to guardianship by the local authority if 
she/he has a mental illness, severe mental impairment or mental impairment 
associated with “abnormally aggressive or seriously irresponsible conduct”.  The 
Guardianship must also “be necessary in the interests of the welfare of the adult 
or for the protection of other persons”.  The “welfare of the patient” is interpreted 
broadly.   

 
Guardianship gives the guardian 3 basic powers: 
1. Accommodation: to say where someone is to live. 

Page 119



January 2008  Page 90 

2. Attendance: to require the adult to attend somewhere for the purpose of 
medical treatment, occupation, education or housing. 
3. Access: to gain access to the patient at the place where they are living.  
There is a necessity to consult the nearest relative when considering 
guardianship.  Consideration to displacing the requested relative should be given 
if any of the statutory grounds set out in Section 29 (3) are met.  Legal advice 
must be sought.   

 
Section 127: Ill-treatment of patients 
This section makes it an offence for an officer on the staff or otherwise an 
employee or a manager of a mental nursing home or hospital, to ill-treat or wilfully 
neglect” a patient who is either:  

• currently receiving treatment for mental disorder as an in-patient in that 
hospital or home; 

• a patient receiving treatment as an out-patient  
 

Furthermore under subsection (2) “it shall be an offence for any individual to ill-
treat or wilfully neglect a mentally disordered patient who is for the time being 
subject to his guardianship under this Act or otherwise in his custody or care 
(whether by virtue of any legal or moral obligation or otherwise)”.  This sub 
section has rarely been used but potentially could include the mistreatment of a 
mentally disordered adult by any carer- informal or otherwise.   

 
 

15.13 Powers to act without Consent 
 

A person with mental capacity is entitled to refuse the provision of services even 
though the professional opinion is that this will cause deterioration, abuse, or 
neglect.  In such situations, a multi-agency conference is recommended.  One 
situation allows for intervention without consent where the Mental Capacity Act 
and the Mental Health Act are not relevant or helpful.   
 
 

15.14 The Rights of the Vulnerable Adult 
   
The vulnerable adult who is being abused is very likely to have their own legal 
remedy and should seek their own legal advice where possible.  The worker 
should support this.   

 
Human Rights Act 1998 
All public authorities have to comply with the Act which gives legal force to the 
rights enshrined in the European Convention of Human Rights.  There is a 
positive duty on local authorities, approved social workers; health authorities, 
NHS, PCT and the Police to uphold these rights.  It is not enough for public 
authorities not to go against these rights; they also have a positive duty for 
example, a duty to ensure that someone is not subject to torture of inhuman or 
degrading treatment.  These rights can be limited but the limit on these rights 
must be proportional.   

Page 120



January 2008  Page 91 

 
The main rights that apply include: 

 
Article 2: right to Life 
Article 3: Prohibition of Torture and Inhuman or Degrading Treatment 
Article 5: Right to Liberty and Security  
Article 6: Right to a Fair Trial and Determination of Civil Rights  
Article 8: Right to Respect for Private and Family Life including home and 
correspondence 
Article 9: Freedom of Thought, Conscience and Religion.   
Article 10: Freedom of Expression.  
Article 11: Freedom of Assembly and Association  
Article 12: Right to Marry 
Article 13: Right to redress at a national level 
Article 14: Prohibition of Discrimination (this only prevents discrimination in 
relation to the other rights and applies to ground such as sex, race, colour, 
language etc or other status) 
Article 17: Prohibition of Abuse of Rights 
Article 18: Limitations on use of restrictions on rights 
First Protocol Article 1: Property of Property 
First Protocol Article 2: Right to Education  

 
 

Disability Discrimination Act 1995 
This Act provides positive protection for disabled people from discrimination in 
relation to services and employment.   

 

 
15.15 Local Authority Adult Services  
 
Local authorities have a number of statutory powers and duties to provide 
services for adults who need them.  Some of the important powers and duties are 
covered in the legislation below: 

 
The National Assistance Act 1948 
 
Whenever you consider the use of Section 47, seek legal advice as you will need 
to consider Article 5 of the European Convention of Human Rights which states 
that: 
“Everyone has the right to liberty and security of the person.  No one shall be 
deprived of his liberty save in the following cases and in accordance with the 
procedure prescribed by law but also allows for: 
(e) “the lawful detention of persons for the prevention of the spreading of 
infectious diseases, of persons of unsound mind, alcoholics or drug addicts or 
vagrants”.   

 
Therefore, not only do you have to fulfil the requirements of Section 47 of the 
1948 Act, you also have to fulfil the requirements of Article 5 (e) of the Human 
Right Act.   

Page 121



January 2008  Page 92 

  
Section 47:  
This section of the 1948 Act gives power to a district council to apply a Magistrate 
Court to remove a person from his/her home on the grounds: 

• that the person from grave chronic disease or, being aged, infirm or physically 
incapacitated, is living in unsanitary conditions; and 

• that the person is unable to devote to himself, and is not receiving from other 
persons, proper care and attention; and  

• that his/her removal from home is necessary, wither in his own interests or for 
preventing injury to the health of, or serious nuisance to, other persons.   

 
In practice this section of the National Assistance Act is rarely used.  However, its 
use could be considered if there is no alternative and the risk is considered to be 
very grave.  An order will last for up to three months depending on the 
circumstances in which it is obtained.   

 
A modification of the Section 46 procedure is provided by the national Assistance 
(Amendment) Act 1951 to deal with situations in which it is necessary to remove 
the adult without delay.  An order can be made which lasts for up to 21 days.   
 
As far as financial abuse is concerned the position is complicated.  One of the 
following sections allows vulnerable adults to be protected.   
 
Section 21: Places either a power, or duty on local authorities to provide 
accommodation for persons by reason of age, illness, disability, or any other 
circumstance are in need of care and attention which is not otherwise available 
for them. 
 
Section 29: Places either a power, or duty on local authorities to make 
arrangements for promoting the welfare of persons aged 18, or over who have a 
sight or hearing impairment, or who suffer from mental disorder of any description 
and other persons aged 19 or over who are substantially and permanently 
disabled by illness.  Injury or congenital deformity, or such other disability as may 
be prescribed. 

 
15.16 Public Health Act 1936: 
 
District Councils have power under this Act to give notice to owners or occupiers 
if those premises are “in such a filthy or unwholesome condition as to be 
prejudicial to health”.  The notice can require the owner or occupier to clean the 
premises or the Council can carry out the work itself.      

 
The Health Services and Public Health Act 1968 
Section 45 (1) allows local authorities with a Social Services responsibility to 
promote the welfare of old people (subject to the approvals and directions 
contained in Circular LAC (93) (10).   

 
Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970 
Section 2: 

Page 122



January 2008  Page 93 

This provision extends the provisions of Section 29 of the National Assistance Act 
1948 and places a duty on local authorities to make arrangements in respect of 
all, or any of the welfare services set out in Section 2(1) (a) to (h) as to any 
disabled person ordinarily resident in their area and the local authority is satisfied 
that the welfare service (s) is necessary to meet the needs of the person.   

 
The National Health Service and Community Care Act 1990 
Section 47: requires local authorities with a Social Services responsibility to carry 
out an assessment of need where people appear to them to be in need of 
community care services.   

 
 

The Housing Act 1985 Part III (Homelessness) 
Local authorities have a preventative duty (under section 66) to take reasonable 
steps to ensure that accommodation does not cease to become available for 
people threatened with homelessness (para.10.1 Code of Guidance).  The Code 
of Guidance stresses that much can be done to prevent homelessness.  It 
mentions special reasons for considering people as a priority, one is “Men and 
Women without children who have suffered violence at home or who are at risk of 
further violence if they return home” 

 
Section 72 of the Act says that a housing authority may seek help from another 
authority (Housing association, Housing Authority or Social Services Department) 
to discharge their duties.  The authority asked for help shall co-operate as is 
reasonable in the circumstances. This will help, for example, a woman fleeing 
violence who cannot be referred because of having a local connection with an 
area but feels she would not be safe living in the area.    

 
 

Disabled Persons (Services Consultation and Representation) Act 1986 
Duty to access the needs of disabled people and to assess the ability of carers to 
continue caring.   

 
 

15.17 Residential Care and the Law  
 
Care Standards Act 2000 
The Care Standards Act set national minimum standards for care settings and set 
up new inspection arrangements.  The Act requires homes providing personal 
care and accommodation to be registered and brought in registration and 
inspection of requirements for domiciliary care, day care and nursing agencies.  
The quality of residential provision is assured through this Act.   

 
The Care Standards Act requires people and organisations providing care to be 
registered as “fit”, running services, according to regulations and standards.   

 
Regulation 13(6) requires the registered person to “make arrangements by 
training of staff or other measure to prevent service users being harmed or 
suffering abuse or being placed at risk of harm or abuse”.  The standards state 

Page 123



January 2008  Page 94 

that homes must have robust procedures for responding to suspicion or evidence 
of abuse and neglect and ensure the safety and protection of service users.  All 
allegations and incidents of abuse and action taken must be recorded.   

 
Section 31 of the Act empowers inspectors to enter a home at any time and 
interview the manager, staff or persons accommodated, to inspect and take 
copies of documents.   

 
Regulation 13(7) requires no physical restraint unless “restraint of the kind 
employed is the only practicable means of securing the welfare of that or any 
other service user and there are exceptional circumstances”.  

 
There are restrictions on acting for service users  and Regulation 20 states a 
registered person cannot pay money belonging to a service user into a bank 
account is in the name of the service user.  There is a requirement for a clear 
complaint policy. 

 
Regulation 37 requires the registered person to notify CSCI without delay of any 
event which adversely affects the well being of a service user and any allegation 
of misconduct by the registered person or staff.  Failure to notify is an offence. 

 
The POVA list was set out in the Care Standards Act.  Through referrals to and 
checks against the list, care workers who have harmed a vulnerable adult or 
placed a vulnerable adult at risk of harm will be banned from working in a care 
position with vulnerable adults.  The scheme is currently implemented within care 
homes and domiciliary care but will be extended in the future.  Employers and 
CSCI can refer people to POVA and checks are made on it for relevant posts as 
part of CRB checks.   

 
 

Registered Homes Act 1984 and the Registered Homes (Amendment) Act  
1991 

 
This Act contains provisions for the registration, conduct and inspection of 
“residential care homes” (including small homes) which are establishments 
providing both board and personal care for persons in need of care by reason of 
old age, disablement, dependence on alcohol or drugs, or mental disorder.  
Similar provisions are contained in respect of nursing homes and mental nursing 
homes.  Part 1 of the act relates to residential care homes, whilst Part 2 relates to 
nursing homes and mental nursing homes.   

 
This Act gives powers to authorised staff of registration and inspection units to 
enter and inspect premises where vulnerable adults are living.   

 
All such homes must be registered with either the local Social Services 
Department (residential care homes) or the health authority (nursing homes and 
mental nursing homes) for the area in which the respective home is situated.   

 

Page 124



January 2008  Page 95 

Section 10: Provides the grounds upon which the registration of a person in 
respect of a residential care home can be cancelled by a registration authority 
(local Social Services authority) 

 
Section 20: Provides the grounds upon which the registration of a person in 
respect of a nursing home, or a mental nursing home can be cancelled by a 
registration authority (health authority) 

 
Section 11: Details the urgent procedure for cancellation of registration of a 
person in respect of residential care home by a registration authority (local Social 
Services authority) if officers consider there will be a serious risk to the life or 
well-being of the residents in the home.   

    

 
15.18 Legislation Relevant to Carers   

 
Carers Recognition and Services Act 1995 
This Act places a duty on local authority Social Services Departments to assess, 
on request, the ability of a carer to provide and continue to provide care and a 
duty for them to take this into account when deciding which services to provide to 
the person in need of care.   

 
Carers and Disabled Children Act 2000 
This Act gives carers the right to services in their own right  

 

 
15.19 Disclosure of Personal Information   

 
The Local Authority may hold personal information about individuals and some of 
that information will relate to risk posed to vulnerable adults.  This may indicate 
the likely risk of abuse as a result of allegations made.  It may include information 
of a sensitive nature about alleged and actual incidents of abuse.  Legal advice 
should be sought if there is any uncertainty about the sharing of information.  
Generally, if consent is given by the vulnerable adult there is no difficulty.  The 
challenge arise in situations where seeking consent would put the adult at 
increased risk of harm or where consent is not given.   

 
 

Principles in Information Sharing: 

• The Local Authority Social Services Department has the power to disclose to 
a 3rd party and where appropriate the vulnerable adult information relating to 
an individual if it genuinely and reasonably believes that it is desirable to 
protect vulnerable adults. 

• Each case must be decided on its own facts 

• Disclosure without consent should only be made if there is a pressing need 
and should be the exception not the rule.   

• In deciding whether there is a pressing need, the following factors will be 
considered: 

Page 125



January 2008  Page 96 

o The Local Authority’s own belief about the truth of the allegations will 
be a factor.   

o The greater the conviction that the allegation is true, the more pressing 
the need. 

o The level of involvement of the third party to whom the information 
would be disclosed. 

o The degree of risk posed if disclosure is not made- previous history of 
allegations, level of continuing contact with vulnerable adult, 
seriousness of alleged abuse.   

 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
Section 115: This legislation allows for the sharing of information between 
agencies to prevent a crime being committed.  This is relevant to the many abuse 
situations which constitute a crime.  

 
Data Protection Act 1998 
The Data Protection Act sets up suitable safeguards in sharing information that 
need to be abided by. E.g. fairly and lawfully processed, not kept longer than 
necessary, rights of access.  However there are specific conditions in relation to 
access and sharing of information where there are situations of serious risk of 
physical harm or to mental health.  Information can be disclosed without consent 
if it is for the protection of the “vital interests of the subject” or prevention or 
detection of serious crime or for legal purposes.  Where information is shared 
without consent, it is essential for advice to be sought and a careful recording of 
the reasons for this decision.    

 
 

Freedom of Information Act 2000 
 The Information Commissioner is now responsible for implementation and 
enforcement of this Act and the Data Protection Act.  The Freedom of Information 
Act only applies to public authorities.  The Act establishes the right of any person 
making a request to a public authority to be informed in writing whether or not the 
authority holds the information sought and if so to be supplied with the 
information subject to certain exemptions.  

 
 

Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 
This is the legal protector for the whistleblower.  It sets out a clear and simple 
framework for raising concerns about malpractice, guaranteeing full protection for 
the worker.  The Act enables employees who make a protected disclosure to 
disclose information, confidential or otherwise, internally to prescribed regulators 
or to a wider audience.  A “protected disclosure” is a disclosure of information 
which, in the reasonable belief of the worker, tends to show one of the following 
has occurred or is likely to occur: 

• A criminal offence has been committed 

• A person has failed to comply with a legal obligation 

• A miscarriage of justice has occurred 

• Health or Safety of an individual endangered 

• Environment has been damaged 

• Information about any of these has been concealed. 

Page 126



January 2008  Page 97 

  
 

15.20 Other Civil Remedies 
 

The Law of Tort 
This is the civil law which allows one person to sue another complaining about a 
wrong that the other has committed vis-à-vis the complainant. 

• Trespass to the person (assault and battery) and false imprisonment, i.e.: 
covering much of the same area as criminal law.   

• Negligence- if a person is owed a duty of care by another, branch of that duty 
lays that other potentially open to a civil action.  A person who takes on board 
the care of another owes her/him a duty of care.  If the carer fails to act as a 
reasonable carer would have done, she/he has broken that duty of care.  If 
the carer fails to act as a reasonable carer would have done, she/he has 
broken that duty of care.  If this breach causes the injury of which the person 
is complaining, the negligence action has been established.   

 
 

Common Law 
Common Law allows for intervention, without consent. To save life or avoid 
serious physical harm based upon the principle that the action is reasonable and 
can be professionally justified as immediately necessary for the purpose of 
saving life or serious physical harm.  Conversely, not to act under circumstances 
of the utmost gravity could be deemed negligent.   

 
In high risk situations where both physical and mental disorders may be present 
(e.g. drug overdose, serious injury), if there is doubt concerning which of the two 
take precedence, then the Physical Disorder should be given priority.  The 
relevant action would then be a Common Law intervention e.g. removing the 
individual to a Casualty Department.  When it is physically safe to do so, the adult 
should then be assessed for treatment/admission under the Mental Health Act 
1983 with respect to section 135/136. 

 
Declaratory Relief is a common law remedy, which can be obtained in high court 
proceedings in the family division. It is a kind of wardship for adults who are 
mentally incapable of making or communicating a decision about specific issues.  
It results in a declaration that to do x, y or z in respect of an incapacitated person 
would not be lawful, since it has been found, on the evidence, by the judge, to be 
in the best interests of the person concerned.  It derives from the jurisdiction 
which the courts have always claimed in respect of medical intervention, when 
doctor or Trust Hospitals were uncomfortable, as to whether they could properly 
act or cease to treat someone, whose capacity or condition was such as to make 
their wishes or confirmed consent unclear.  

 
The Court of Appeal in Re F (2000) removed any doubts as to the use of this 
jurisdiction by local authorities and emphasised that it may be the duty, and not 
merely the power, of the local authority in some cases, to take the step of going 
to court.  When considering whether to apply to the High Court for declaratory 
relief the following needs to be established: 

Page 127



January 2008  Page 98 

• That it is believed that the adult lacks mental capacity in relation to the 
particular decision at the particular time. (Wherever possible this 
should be supported by professional evidence). 

• The issue is of a “serious justifiable nature” relating to welfare e.g. 
sterilisation or placement and contact arrangements including 
supervised contact, where there are strong concerns/evidence of 
abuse, ill-treatment or neglect and lack of care.   

• What is in the adult’s “best interests” (as opposed to their carers, 
relatives etc.) which includes medical, emotional or all other welfare 
issues.  This has to be determined by balancing all relevant factors and 
obtaining professional evidence e.g. consultant psychiatrist and social 
worker (if in doubt the judge will decide). 

• That determined efforts have been made to agree what is in the best 
interests by working in partnership with relatives, carers and recording 
evidence on this file.   

 
No Secrets: March 2000 
‘No Secrets’ is a Department of Health guidance document requiring the 
development and implementation of local multi-agency policies and procedures to 
protect vulnerable adults from abuse.  The guidance is supported by a range of 
other initiatives and is issued under Section 7 of the Local Authority Social 
Services Act 1970 

 
A section of the document refers to record keeping and requires all agencies to 
keep clear and accurate records of all actions taken whenever a complaint or 
allegation of abuse is made.  In the case of service providers the records should 
be available to service commissioners, regulatory authorities and to the 
nominated investigating officer.  It provides points to consider when making 
records in the service user’s file.   

 
 

National Framework for Safeguarding Adults: October 2005 
The National framework “Safeguarding Adults” was launched in October 2005 at 
the Association of Director of Social Services (ADSS) meeting.  It is a guidance 
document collecting best practice examples and aspirations into a set of good 
practice standards. It is intended to be used as an audit tool by all those 
implementing protection work.   
 

 

Page 128



January 2008  Page 99 

Appendices 
 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Haringey Safeguarding Adults Board: Terms of Reference 

Introduction  

 
The Haringey’s Safeguarding Adults Board (HSAB) has been established as a sub-
group of the Haringey’s Well-Being Partnership Board, a sub-group of the Haringey 
Health and Social Care Partnership Board which reports to the Haringey Local 
Strategic Partnership. All local authorities and partner agencies are required to set 
up a Safeguarding Adult Board (‘No Secrets’ report of Department of Health 2000). 
 
A vulnerable adult is anyone aged 18 or over who, because of physical or mental 
disability or frailty is dependent on others for their care and /or support. Abuse is 
when a person or persons have caused harm, or may be likely to do so, and can be 
physical, sexual, emotional/psychological, or financial, or involve the denial of basic 
human rights. 

Aims: 

 
The aims of the HSAB are to: 

• work in partnership with all relevant people and organisations to prevent 
abuse  occurring wherever possible and to deal with it appropriately and 
effectively when it occurs 

• draw attention to the issue of adult abuse and work towards its prevention 

• make sure that services to support vulnerable people are provided within an 
anti-discriminatory framework. 

 
Responsibilities: 

  

• collate information gathered from responses to abuse 

• identify trends, review research and suggest any policy reforms 

• identify training needs and promote awareness raising and inter-agency 
training 

• review procedures and promote best practice 

• ensure that the work of all agencies involved is properly co-ordinated 

• generally, through the above activities, to ensure that the needs of 
vulnerable adults who have been abused are appropriately met 

• report annually to the Well-Being Partnership Board and Safer Communities 
Executive Board 

 
 
Roles and Duties of the HSAB and its Members: 

 

Page 129



January 2008  Page 100 

• To act as the lead body for the safeguarding adults policy implementation 
and to raise awareness within the local agencies and the wider community of 
the need to safeguard vulnerable adults and promote their wellbeing  

• To develop and agree local policies and procedures for inter-agency working 
to safeguard adults, within the national framework , ensuring agreed 
operational definitions and thresholds for intervention  

• To commission, implement  and monitor an annual business plan based 
upon “No Secrets” and supported by the National Framework of Standards 
for good practice  

• Responsibility and accountability for meeting national guidance and legal 
requirements for policy implementation, either when working in partnership 
or through individual actions  

• To audit and evaluate how well local services work together to safeguard 
adults  

• To use multi-agency information and knowledge gained from national and 
local experiences and research plus reports on trends and recommendations 
to enable performance management  

• To ensure that training delivered meets the requirements of the annual 
business plan and safeguarding adults’ policies  

• To ensure that any lessons learnt from case reviews are shared, understood 
and acted upon  

• To identify and set up the subgroups 

• To nominate chairs for the subgroups from within the Board 

• To identify and allocate resources for the Board and subgroups 

• To commission and monitor projects/work of any time-limited, task-focussed  
subgroups that are set up 

 
 

Objectives of the HSAB: 
 

• review the policy and procedure for protecting vulnerable adults from abuse 
(including identifying trends, reviewing research and suggesting any policy 
reforms) 

• promote best practice ( develop multi-agency information sharing protocols) 

• develop multi-agency training (by working in partnership to identify training 
needs and deliver training courses) 

• promote awareness of adult abuse (through training, producing information 
for staff, service users, carers and the public, establishing links with the client 
group specific partnership boards and engaging a high profile champion) 

• ensure that the work of all agencies involved is properly co-ordinated (by 
appointing an Safeguarding adults Manager and working with all social care 
services to make sure no abuse is missed) 

 
 

 
A meeting of the HSAB will be quorate when a minimum of five members are 
present, providing that three members are from the Local Authority and the 
Primary Care Trust.  

Page 130



January 2008  Page 101 

Any member of the HSAB who fails to attend three consecutive meetings or any 
three from six meetings will have their membership formally reviewed by the 
Chair and Deputy Chair.  
Members may arrange for a representative to attend on their behalf. This should 
be agreed with the Chair at least five working days before a meeting. 

 
The roles of the members are to: 

• Represent the key statutory stakeholders 

• Have the authority and resources to meet the aims and objectives of the 
Terms of Reference  

• Possess the relevant expertise to deliver the Terms of Reference 

• Act with trust and probity at all times 

• Be responsible for disseminating decisions and actions back to their own 
organisation and ensuring compliance. 

 
 

Membership 
 The HSAB will comprise of the following members: 
  

 
Agency Post holders 

Local Authority  Assistant Director Adults,  
Older People’s Services Manager,  
Adults Learning Disabilities, Service Manager 
Adults Physical Disabilities, Service Manager 
Adults Mental Health, Service Manager 
Safeguarding adults Manager (Co-ordinator) 
Contracts Manager 
Head of Safer Communities 

Primary Care Trust  Deputy Director of Operations 
 

Mental Health Trust  Deputy Chief Executive / Director of Mental Health 
Services for Haringey 

North Middlesex Hospital 
Whittington Hospital 

Asst/Deputy Director level 
Asst/Deputy Director level 

MetropolitanPolice Service  Detective Chief Inspector Operations 

Commission for Social 
Care Inspection 

Locality Manager  

Voluntary Sector Director of Age Concern 

* The HSAB will, as appropriate, co-opt other members for specific pieces of 
work. (e.g. Legal Services, Housing, Supporting People Board, Department of 
Work and Pensions, Haringey Probation etc) 

 
 

Service User and Carer Representation 
Links with the client group specific partnership boards will be made to ensure that 
service users and carers will be represented on the HSAB. Training will be 
provided where necessary, to guarantee everyone’s active participation and 
involvement in the HSAB including the planning and performance monitoring.  

Page 131



January 2008  Page 102 

 
Chair and Deputy Chair  
The Chair & Deputy Chair will be elected at the first meeting of each municipal 
year from the above membership. The Chair and Deputy Chair will serve a 
maximum of 3 years and must be from different organisations. 
 
Meetings  
Meetings will be held four times each year and one these meeting to be a general 
meeting.  Additional meetings to be arranged if necessary.  Attendance by non-
members is at the invitation of the Chair. 
 
Governance 

• Decisions will be arrived at by consensus. by. Where there is conflict between 
members/agencies or an equal vote on a decision, the chair will take this to 
the Haringey’s Well-Being Partnership Board, chair for a decision/resolution. 

• Agendas and reports to be considered at meetings will be circulated at least 
five working days before the meeting, in accessible formats. 

• Any documents that may involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential 
information will be amended prior to public access, with an explanation of the 
reason(s) for this censorship. 

• Additional/late items will be at the discretion of the Chair. 
 
 
Date Terms of Reference Agreed: 
 
Signed by the Chair:  
 
Date of next review: 
 
 

Appendix 1.1 Quality Assurance Sub-Group 

Role 

The Quality Assurance Sub-Group is the forum for specifying, collecting and 
interrogating management information across the safeguarding agenda in order 
to enable the HSAB to monitor and scrutinise the effectiveness of local 
arrangements to safeguard adult.  This Sub-Group will also closely monitor the 
work of the HSAB, ensuring that HSAB decisions are properly followed through 
and drawing issues of concern to the attention of the Board.   
 

Responsibilities 

1. Performance Management 

• To specify, collect and collate relevant performance data from all 
agencies; 

• To interrogate that data in order to: 

• Report on performance across partner agencies;  

• Identify areas of good practice;  

• Identify areas of performance that should be of concern to the HSAB; and  

Page 132



January 2008  Page 103 

• Understand Haringey’s performance in relation to comparator authorities 

• To produce an annual report of current practice issues for inter-agency 
working and set out statements and priorities for the HSAB 

 
2. Audit 

• To commission multi-agency audits as necessary 

• To develop an audit model for use by all agencies 

3. Monitoring and Scrutiny  

• To draw issues of concern to the attention of the HSAB and make 
recommendations for action in order that the HSAB meets it duty to 
monitor the effectiveness of local arrangements to safeguard adult; 

• To perform a “challenge” function; ensuring that HSAB decisions are 
properly followed through; 

• To actively seek out and highlight good practice in safeguarding across 
partner agencies and in other local authorities. 

Proposed Membership 

Learning Disabilities, Service Manager - chair 
Commissioner/Contracts 
Service manager - Adults Services  
PCT 
CMHT 
Hospital 
Police 

 
Frequency of Meeting 
It will meet 6 weekly initially until embedded then quarterly and will report to the 
HSAB at each HSAB meeting. 
 

 

Appendix 1.2 Prevention Sub-Group 

Role 

The Prevention Sub-Group co-ordinates initiatives to raise awareness - across 
organisations, community groups and the general public - of the need to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of adult.  It commissions task groups to 
address areas that present a risk both to the safety of and to operational 
effectiveness.   
 
Responsibilities 

• To improve partnership working in the borough;  

• To initiate multi-agency preventative work as directed by Serious Case 
Review recommendations and the work of the Quality Assurance Sub-
Group; 

• To devise and update a communications strategy for the HSAB; 

• To raise awareness of issues relating to the protection of adult among 
operational staff, community organisations and members of the public; 

Page 133



January 2008  Page 104 

• To co-ordinate preventative work in relation to agreed priority areas; 

• To raise the profile of the HSAB among operational staff, community 
organisations and members of the public; 

• To identify training needs as a consequence of multi-agency initiatives, 
linking with the Training sub-group. 

Linked Task Groups 

• Training and Serious Case Review subgroups  

• Champions Forum 

• Housing 

• MAPPA 

• Anti-Social Behaviour Action Team (ASBAT) 

• Safer Communities 

• Domestic Violence Team  

• Community Safety Unit 

Priority Workstreams 

• Mapping of voluntary agencies & community groups in conjunction with  
HAVCO; 

• Review of information currently provided on safeguarding adult processes; 

• Review publicity material which meets the needs of all the community; 

• Monitor effectiveness of campaign to raise awareness in ethnic minority 
communities and disability groups 

Membership 
Asst Director of Operations, PCT – Chair 
Service Manager, Adult Services 
Vulnerable Adult leads- PCT 
Vulnerable Adult Lead – Hospital 
Vulnerable Adult Lead – CMHT 
Vulnerable Adult lead – Housing 
Vulnerable Adult lead – Police 
Domestic Violence 
Communicatons 
Contracts 

Frequency of Meetings 

6 weekly initially and reviewed after 6 months 

Appendix 1.3  Training & Development Sub-Group 

Aims and Functions 
The HSAB is responsible for taking a strategic overview of the planning, delivery 
and evaluation of the inter-agency training that is required in order to promote 
effective practice to safeguard the welfare of adults.  

The HSAB Training Sub-Group is responsible for inter-agency training. The 
planning, design, delivery and evaluation of inter-agency training is managed 
through the HSAB Training Sub-Group. This training is provided to all 
professional staff who come into contact with vulnerable adults in order that they 

Page 134



January 2008  Page 105 

should know the predisposing factors and signs and indicators of adult abuse. 
This should also include information on inter-agency working particularly referral 
process to key agencies involved in the safeguarding of vulnerable adults. 

Terms of Reference: 

• The Sub-Committee is responsible for the strategy, development and co-
ordination of multi-agency safeguarding adults training provision. This will 
include the facilitation and commissioning of appropriate training resources 
and the regular review and evaluation of the training provision in line with 
the HSAB Business Plan 

• The Sub-Group will carry out tasks as delegated by main body of HSAB 
and inform the HSAB of current trends, issues and practices within inter-
agency training. 

• The subgroup will encourage feedback from single agency representatives 
of current trends, issues and practices within their agency that impact on 
training provision and will expect agency representatives to take back 
issues identified in training to their individual agencies. 

• The Sub-Group will devise a system for feedback from service managers 
about the effectiveness of training and adapt training programmes 
accordingly. 

• Annual report and work plan of the Sub-Group to be provided to the 
HSAB. 

• The Sub-Group will ensure quality assurance is carried out on both 
internal and external training. This will include ensuring that adequate 
training for trainers/facilitators is provided and attended by all HSAB adult 
safeguarding trainers, if and when needed as identified by individual 
members on a personal basis. 

• The Sub-Group should review the terms of reference at least annually. 
 
Quoracy:  
To establish quoracy, 3 representatives out of 4 key agencies must be present. 
Key agencies are as follows:- Health, Police, Adult Services and CMHT. Quoracy 
must not include presence of Chair. 

Membership 
The Chair is a member of the HSAB and therefore will not act as a representative 
of their agency, but will have the casting vote. 

- Combined Team, Learning Disabilities – Chair, ? Paul Knight 
- Private Provider, Sevacare  
- Training Consultant -  Adult Services 
- PCT 
- CMHT 
- Police 
- Voluntary Sector 

 An annual review of Chair and Membership will take place. The group will co-
 opt new members as necessary, to address specific areas of expertise 
 required 

Page 135



January 2008  Page 106 

 
Frequency of Meeting 
Frequency of meeting to occur no less than 6 weekly basis. 

 
 
 

Appendix 1.4 Operational Sub-Group (Champions Forum) 

 
Terms of Reference 
 
Role 
The Champions Forum is responsible for reviewing operational and practice 
issues.  It is responsible for challenging practices across all adult provider 
services, identifying good and bad practices and sharing these with the 
Safeguarding Adults Board. 
 
Responsibilities 

• To collate practice issues in individual service areas/agencies for 
discussion 

• Share experiences of good practice and outcomes 

• Learn of new developments locally and nationally 

• Disseminate learning and new developments in service areas/agencies 

• Identify training needs 

• Review systems and structures 

• Develop procedures and practice guidance 

• Identify gaps  

• Make recommendations through the Chair to the Safeguarding Board 
 
Links 

• Training 

• Quality Assurance 
 
Membership 

• Aimed at supervisory/first level management level. 

• Mental Health - Chair 

• Adult Services – Practice/Team Managers from each service area (Older 
People, Learning Disabilities, Physical Disabilities, Mental Health, DAT) 

• PCT – (acute and long stay units), ambulance, PALS 

• Voluntary Sector – HAVCO 

• Police– CSU/Sapphire Unit/ASBAT (can rotate) 

• Private Domiciliary Care Providers – Sevacare, London Care, Satellite 
Consortium 

• Private Residential/Nursing Care Provider 

• In-House Domiciliary Services 

• Day Care Services 

• Housing – sheltered, supported living, Vulnerable Adults Team 

• Supporting People 

• Direct Payment Scheme 

Page 136



January 2008  Page 107 

• Carers Forums 
 
Frequency 
It will meet quarterly and report to Safeguarding Board after each meeting. 
 
 

 
Appendix 1.5  Serious Case Review Sub Group 

 
The Haringey’s Safeguarding Adults Board (HSAB) should establish a Serious 
Case Review Sub-group to consider whether a case review should take place.  
The HSAB should always undertake a case review when an adult dies and abuse 
or neglect is known or suspected to be a factor in the adult’s death.  

 
The HSAB should always consider whether to undertake a case review where an 
adult has sustained a potentially life-threatening injury through abuse or neglect 
and the case gives rise to concerns about the way in which local professionals 
and services work together. 
 
Terms of Reference 

• Following notification to any HSAB agency of an adult death or serious 
injury the Serious Case Review Sub-group should meet urgently to decide 
if a case should be subject to the HSAB Case Review. All cases that fall 
into two or more categories of guidance should be notified. 

 

• The sub-group will ask involved agencies to conduct individual 
management reviews using the agreed proforma. The sub-group should 
hear/receive the outcome of these single agency reviews. 

 

• The sub-group, within one month of a case coming to the attention of the 
HSAB, is responsible for making a recommendation to the Chair of the 
HSAB as to whether the HSAB should conduct a Case Review. 

 

• For each case considered the sub-group should determine the scope of 
the case review, draw up clear terms of reference for the review and 
decide who should conduct it and who should be on the panel. 

 

• During a case review the sub-group should continue to meet to monitor the 
progress of the review, ensuring that timescales are being met. The 
Review should take no more than four months. If the original timescales 
cannot be met, the sub-group is responsible for agreeing new timescales 
and informing the HSAB of these. The Commission for Social Care 
Inspection is also notified. 

  

• Upon receiving an HSAB Case Review Report, the sub-group will ensure it 
meets the Terms of Reference originally agreed. 

 

• The sub-group and the Chair will provide copies of the composite 
report for consideration by the HSAB. 

Page 137



January 2008  Page 108 

 

• Agencies conducting management reviews and the Chair of the 
Serious Case Review Sub Group will provide copies of these reports 
together with a summary to the HSAB and it will meet to consider the 
case. 

 

• The sub-group is responsible for translating the recommendations of the 
report into an Action Plan which determines who will do what, by when and 
with what intended outcome. 

 

• The sub-group will monitor the progress of the Action Plan, ensuring that 
improvements are evaluated and reviewed. 

 

• The sub-group is responsible, at all times, for informing the HSAB of any 
difficulties it encounters at any stage of the review process. 

 

• The sub-group will provide advice to the HSAB about the report’s 
availability; its dissemination and the feedback to involved staff, family 
members and the media. 

 

• The sub-group is also responsible for conducting other case reviews at 
appropriate points. 

 
 
Membership 

• The Chair of the sub-group shall be nominated by the Chair of the HSAB 

• The sub-group is chaired by the Assistant Director of Adult Service, 
Culture and Community.  

• Members should include: 
PCT, CMHT, Adult, Culture and Community Services, Police, CSCI 

• The sub-group can co-opt other members on a short-term basis to address 
specific areas of expertise. 

• Quoracy: to be quorate, 3 representatives out of the 4 key agencies must 
be present. Key agencies are The Adult Culture and Community Services, 
CMHT, CSCI, PCT and the Police. 

 

Core Function 

• To consider cases for review 

•  Make decisions on the process for review  

• Facilitate and manage a panel to address the process. 

Frequency 

• The sub-group should meet as required to oversee and plan case reviews 
and in any event not less than 3 monthly. 

 
 
 

Page 138



January 2008  Page 109 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 139



January 2008  Page 110 

Appendix 1.5 
 

SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD FLOWCHART 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SAFGUARDING ADULTS BOARD 

(Executive Board) 

• Chair – Social Service Asst Director of Adult 

Services 

• Older People –Service Manager  

• Physical Disabilities – Service Manager 

• Mental Health - Asst Director 

• Head of Combined Learning Disabilities 

• CSCI – Locality Manager 

• Police – chief superintendent or detective 

inspector level 

• Head of Safer Communities 

• Adults Contracts – Service Manager 

• Adults Protection Manager 

• Voluntary Sector –  Age Concern 

• PCT – Asst/Deputy Director 

• Acute Trusts – Asst/Deputy Director, NMUH 

and Whittington Hospital 

HARINGEY STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 

WELL-BEING PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

DOMESTIC 

VIOLENCE 

PARTNERSHIP 

LOCAL 

SAFEGUARDING 

CHILDREN’S 

BOARD 

 
OPERATIONAL 

Subgroup 

(Champions’ Forum)  

SERIOUS 

CASE 

REVIEW 

Sub-group 

 

Quality 

Assurance 

Sub-group 

 

TRAINING 

Sub-group 

LOCAL DELIVERY PLAN FOR HEALTH 

SERVICES 

 

PREVENTION 

Subgroup 

Page 140



January 2008  Page 111 

Appendix 2 
 

Mental Capacity Act 2005 Key Messages 

 
At some point in our lives, we are all likely to be affected by a lack of capacity to 
make decisions, either personally, or because someone close to us is unable to 
make decisions for themselves.   
 
Millions of people lose their ability to make decisions that affect their lives through 
illness, disability or injury.  And some people are born with disabilities that affect 
their capacity to make decisions.   Millions of people also have caring 
responsibilities for people who lack capacity.   
 
The Mental Capacity Act will improve all of their lives.  We expect to implement 
the Act in April 2007. 
 
Did you know… 

• Did you know that there is no legal definition of next of kin and if your loved 
one is in hospital and unable to consent to treatment you have no legal right 
to give consent on their behalf or to be consulted about their treatment? 

• Did you know that if you lose capacity in the future there is no statutory 
mechanism whereby you can state your wishes for your future care with 
confidence that your wishes will be taken into account? 

 

The Act changes this by establishing a clear legal framework under which all 
decisions about people who lack capacity must be taken.  This will be 
underpinned by a Code of Practice to guide and assist everyone who needs to 
make decisions for people who lack capacity.   

 
The Act will: 

• Empower people who may lack capacity 

• Give them greater protection 

• Give people the choice to plan for a time when they might lose capacity  

Empowering  

• Very few people are incapable of making any decisions at all. The Act makes 
it absolutely clear that everyone should be assumed to be able to take all their 
own decisions until it is shown that they can’t.  

All practicable steps must be taken to help people who lack capacity to 
participate in the decision making process. This includes assisting people who 
have communication difficulties. 

Give protection 

• The Act offers better protection because for the first time it tells everyone what 
the law expects.  It makes it clear who can take decisions in which situations 
and how they should go about this.   

• Where someone can’t make a decision for themselves their best interests will 
be paramount when decisions are made on their behalf. 

Page 141



January 2008  Page 112 

• The Act sets out how people who lack capacity can lawfully be cared for or 
treated. 

• The Act provides for an Independent Mental Capacity Advocate (IMCA) 
 
Give people more choice 

• The Act offers people who have capacity new choices to decide how they are 
cared for in the future by introducing new ways for them to plan ahead for a 
time when they might lose capacity.   

• People can make a Lasting Power of Attorney (LPA) appointing someone they 
trust who can take financial, welfare or health decisions on their behalf. 

• It will also be possible to make an advance decision to refuse treatment, 
commonly known as a ‘living will’. If doctors are satisfied the advance decision 
is valid and applicable they must respect your decision; if they don’t think so 
doctors will be able to treat the person.  If in doubt a doctor must continue to 
treat whilst seeking advice from the court. 

 
 

Appendix 2.1 How the new law will benefit people 

For those who lack mental capacity: 

Will give vulnerable people the legal right: 

• to have as much control as possible of decisions that affect them; 

• to be involved in decisions about themselves; and 

• not simply to be labelled ‘mentally incapable’. 
 
Will extend the current limited decision making process for financial matters to 
health and welfare decisions.  
 
And people will have the chance to plan ahead for when they might lose capacity 
with confidence that their wishes would be respected.  
 

For families and carers: 

Will give families and carers of vulnerable people: 

• a right to be consulted about the best interests of the person they care for; 

• clarity about acts that they can legally do to, and on behalf of, the person they 
care for;  

• a right to be consulted about a person being involved in research and a right 
to say no; and 

• protection from liability for acts in connection with the care or treatment of  
that person, if he or she lacks capacity in relation to those acts, and they are 
in his or her best interests.  

 
For professionals 
Will give health and welfare professionals: 

• a clear legal framework so that there is common understanding of how to care 
for and treat patients who lack mental capacity;  

Page 142



January 2008  Page 113 

• clarity about the law on advance decisions to refuse treatment; and  

• clarity about research involving people who lack capacity.  
 
This means that vulnerable people will be protected from poor decision-making 
on important and sensitive issues. 
 
The new law will also provide:  

• a law to prosecute people who ill-treat or wilfully neglect people who lack 
capacity; 

• a means of tackling financial abuse, as Lasting Powers of Attorney will have 
to be registered before they are used;  

• for the appointment of a Public Guardian with responsibility for the registration 
of Lasting Powers of Attorney, to supervise deputies and to act as a signpost 
to other organisations; and  

• a new Court of Protection to deal with particularly difficult decisions or difficult 
disputes which cannot be resolved in any other way.  

 

Appendix 2.2 Creation of new public bodies 
 
A new Court of Protection 

• With the jurisdiction relating to the whole of the Act 

• Will be the final arbiter for capacity issues 

• Will deal with the end of life issues previously dealt with in the High Court 

• The Court will have its own procedures and judges. 
 
The Public Guardian Office (PGO) 

• To register Lasting Power of Attorneys (LPAs) 

• To maintain a register of LPAs and Deputies 

• To supervise deputies appointed by the Court 

• Responding to concerns regarding the way in which an attorney or deputy 
is operating 

• Work with other agencies when dealing with complaints 

 

Page 143



January 2008  Page 114 

Appendix 3 
 

Commissioning, Contracts and the Tender Process 
 
1 Tender Process: 
Whenever tender processes are undertaken for services involving vulnerable 
adults, specific sections must be included that require confirmation that the 
organisation submitting the tender has an effective Safeguarding Adults Policy 
and Procedure that complies with this procedure.  Tender specifications will 
stipulate that the Commissioners expect the provider to meet the requirements of 
Haringey’s multi-agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedure.   
 
Tender validations and service reviews must include validation of the provider’s 
Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedure prior to any service users being 
placed with the provider.   
 
 
2 Contracts: 
Contracts will specify that all external providers have their own Safeguarding 
Adults policy and robust procedures for dealing with such complaints.  Their 
policy and procedures should evidence links with the Multi-agency Safeguarding 
Adults Policy and Procedures.  All policies should require that any allegation or 
complaint about abuse that may have occurred within a service, subject to 
contract specifications, must be brought to the attention of the Safeguarding 
Adults Co-ordinator.   
 
Contracts must specify protocols surrounding reporting incidents, the sharing of 
information and confidentiality to comply with this policy.   
 
Contract Monitoring: 
 
The contract shall include a section on monitoring of services.   
 
The provider will be required to meet with the Contract Monitoring Officer at least 
annually.   
 
The contract must include a specific right for the relevant Contracts Monitoring 
Officer to audit any investigation of abuse undertaken by the external provider.  
Any such audits should be subject to a policy framework, including specific 
procedures and process forms.  Serious infringements by the provider discovered 
by the audit would be subject to the due course of law or would be dealt with 
under the decommissioning section of the contract.   
 
3    Contract Checklists to help prevent abuse of vulnerable adults: 
      All organisations that deliver Care and/or Support to vulnerable                  
      people on behalf of members of the Multi-agency partnership: 

a. Have their own Safeguarding Policy with robust procedures on how 
to deal with alleged or suspected cases of abuse, regarding both 
the person experiencing the abuse and the perpetrator.   

Page 144



January 2008  Page 115 

b. Include in their Safeguarding Policy an adherence to the Multi-
agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedure.   

c. Include in their Safeguarding Policy a specification that any 
incidence of alleged or suspected abuse must be reported to the 
Adults at Risk Team and the specific department responsible for the 
contract.   

d. Ensure that all members of staff cover Safeguarding Adults Code of 
Conduct and Professional Boundaries in their Induction 
Programme. 

e. Ensure that members of staff involved with care/support delivery 
are adequately trained in Safeguarding Adult and have a schedule 
for receiving on-going training on a regular basis.   

f. Have a Service User Handbook that includes a sections on Abuse, 
explaining the types of abuse and giving examples of what may 
constitute abuse, in an appropriate language and format for that 
particular client group.   

g. Ensure that all Service Users have an up-to-date Care/Support Plan 
that incorporates views and aspirations and specifies the tasks 
required to be delivery by the Care/Support Worker. 

h. Have a recruitment and Selection Policy and procedure that aims to 
eliminate discrimination and ensures fair treatment for all 
applicants.   

i. Have procedures for ensuring all members of staff have a CRB 
check or enhanced CRB check and a POVA register check before 
taking up a position working with vulnerable people.  

j. Have procedures for ensuring that references for all successful 
applicants are sought before acceptance into the post.   

k. Have a Code of Conduct for the guidance of staff and processes for 
eliminating personal gain through position.     

 
4 Prevention Care Planning 

 All organisations that deliver Care and/or support to vulnerable 
 people on behalf of member of the Multi-Agency partnership must: 

l. Have information on type of service they provide and their 
Statement of Purpose, available for all enquirers in a suitable 
format.   

m. Ensure that, for those Protection registered with CSCI, the latest 
report should be made available for al enquirers or at least a 
signposting to the website or other access point. 

n. Provide Service Users, or their legal representative, with a Service 
User Guide/Handbook that includes information on the 
organisation’s Policy and Procedures, especially Safeguarding 
Adults and complaints.   

o. Provide Service users, or their legal representative, with a copy of 
their Care/Support Plan. 

p. Care Plans should be as detailed as possible in the tasks required 
by the Care/Support worker.   

 
 

5 Early Detection of Abuse 

Page 145



January 2008  Page 116 

 All organisations that deliver Care and/or Support to vulnerable 
 people on behalf of members of the Multi-Agency Partnership  must: 

q. Have an up-to-date Policy and procedure on risk Assessments, 
both on a personal and environmental basis.  An Initial Risk 
Assessment should be completed prior to or as soon as possible 
after the Service User starts to receive the service.   

r. Have Risk Assessments that highlight any potential risks or areas of 
vulnerability, identify the expected frequency and level of danger, 
any current measures in place and further measures required to 
adequately manage the risks.   

s. Have procedures in place to review the Risk Assessments on a 
regular basis appropriate to the client group.  Risk Assessments 
must be reviewed and updated after each significant incident or 
change.   

t. Ensure that Staff, who have the responsibility for conducting Risk 
Assessments are adequately trained in Risk Assessment and have 
a schedule for receiving on-going training on a regular basis.  

u. Ensure that Care/Support Plans are reviewed and updated on a 
regular basis.  The delivery of Care/Support must be monitored on 
a regular basis by the contracting organisation.   

v. Ensure that staff are fully supported and receive regular 
supervision, in order to highlight any areas of stress or lack of 
training that may compromise the delivery of Care/Support.   

w. Have a Whistle-blowing Policy that enables Staff to address alleged 
or suspected cases of abuse without fear of reprisal or unfair 
treatment.   

 
6 Protection from abuse: Care Planning 

 All organisations that deliver Care and/or support to Vulnerable 
 people on behalf of members of the Multi-Agency Partnership  must: 

x. Ensure that Care/Support Plans include any assessed care/support 
needs identified in all areas of the individual’s lifestyle.  
Care/Support Plans should include reference to any complementary 
services, delivery of which may impact on the Care/Support Plan.   

y. Encourage networking between Providers of Care/Support involved 
with individual Service Users to ensure a Person Centred 
Approach.  The involvement of other Providers will help to minimise 
the potential for abuse.   

z. Ensure that Service Users are aware of the procedures for reporting 
alleged or suspected cases of abuse.  The Service User Handbook 
should contain the reporting procedure in a format appropriate to 
the client group.   

aa. Ensure that all alleged or suspected cases of abuse are 
documented on specifically designed forms.  All incidents should be 
recorded separately from all other types of complaint, and filled 
securely so as to protect confidentiality.  A note may be attached to 
a Service User’s personal file to highlight the presence of an 
incident but no specific details should be kept on an individual’s file.   

 
7 Debrief/Post Intervention 

Page 146



January 2008  Page 117 

 All organisations that deliver Care and/or Support to Vulnerable 
 people on behalf of members of the Multi-Agency partnership  must: 

bb. Have a Policy in place to review all alleged or suspected cases of 
abuse to ensure that the procedures for Staff to follow and the 
reporting process has been followed and is effective.  Policy 
reviews should be scheduled every five years or less.   

cc. Ensure that any improvements to procedures and processes are 
implemented as soon as practicable. 

dd. Ensure that all new legislation relevant to Safeguarding Adults is 
incorporated in to Policies and Procedures.   

ee. Ensure that all training and documentation takes in to account all 
changes resulting from the Policy review.   

 
8 Supporting People Service Providers will: 

ff. Meet at least minimum standards in the core objective 
“Safeguarding Adults” (including informing Service Users of the 
scope and nature of abuse, their right to be free from abuse and 
how to report abuse) 

gg. Report each incident or allegation of abuse to the Supporting 
People Team and maintain relevant records of each case.   

hh. Report each incident, which concerns a vulnerable adult to the 
Safeguarding Adults Co-ordinator.   

ii. Investigate each incident in accordance with their Safeguarding 
Adults Procedures (in line with Haringey’s Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures.) 

jj. Provide appropriate training in Safeguarding Adults to all relevant 
Staff.   

Page 147



January 2008  Page 118 

Appendix 4: 

 
Learning from Cornwall- CSCI Recommendations: 

 
A recent CSCI report in 2006 detailed the findings of a joint investigation in to 
services for people with Learning Disabilities at Cornwall Partnership NHS Trust:   
 
1 Some of the Key Issues highlighted from the Cornwall Investigation were: 

• The low awareness of what constitutes, including abuse by service users. 

• Isolation among the staff group and recognition that in Cornwall, the 
Learning disability Service was a ‘minority’ service within a large 
organisation.   

• A low understanding of the ‘Valuing People’ agenda among staff. 

• A lack of access to advocacy 

• The low expectations of service users.   

• A need for clear roles and responsibilities in partnership working 

• A lack of awareness by police of criminal nature of cases referred to them.  

• The lack of ability of the Local Authority to challenge the NHS Service. 

• Lack of effective scrutiny and lack of registration of ‘care services’. 

• People raising complaints were not effectively dealt with but were deemed 
‘vexatious’. 

 
2 National Recommendations made in the report are: 

• “Services for people with Learning Disabilities must be redesigned by the 
Local Health and Social Care organisations, taking in to account the 
individual needs assessments of every Learning Disability Service User.” 

• “All providers of personal care, including the NHS, must register those 
services with the CSCI in accordance with the Care Standards Act 2000”. 

• “Best practice in medical, nursing and therapeutic care must be provided 
throughout the Learning Disability Services” 

• “Regular reports on all matters relating to the protection of adults with 
learning disabilities must be provided to the Learning Disability Partnership 
Board and the strategic health authority to ensure that sufficient action is 
taken to address individual and systematic problems.” 

• “Interagency arrangements and planning for Learning disabled people 
must be clearly identified in the Local Development Plan” 

• “Nationally, the Department of Health should strengthen processes for 
protecting adults, in accordance with provisions of the Safeguarding 
Vulnerable Groups Bill before parliament.” 

• “All local authorities, in their role as lead agency for the Protection of 
Vulnerable Adults, must ensure that arrangements for investigating 
allegations of abuse are robust.” 

 
3 For the full CSCI report please click on to this hyperlink:  
http://www.healthcarecommission.org.uk/_db/_documents/cornwall_investi
gation_report.pdf  
 

Appendix 5 

Page 148



January 2008  Page 119 

 
 

 
HARINGEY MULTI-AGENCY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS WORKFLOW PROCESS 

ALERT: 

• Raise alert within 24hrs of allegation, suspicion or concern by telephone, 
visit or email 

• Complete Alert form 

• Refer to ICS team and copy Safeguarding Co-ordinator 

Refer to Police: 

If of criminal nature 

– sexual, physical 

causing injury and 

financial abuse 

Refer to ICS: 

All alerts and referrals 

copied to ICS and 

logged on monitoring 

database and signpost 

referrals 

Refer to Regulatory 

Bodies: 

• To CSCI if a social 

care registered 

provider 

• Health Commission 

if a health provider  

NOTIFY THE SAFEGUARDING CO-ORDINATOR: 

Send copy of Alert form to: olive.komba-kono@haringey.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

W  W 

I     O 

T    R 

H    K 

I      I 

N    N 

       G 

 

 

S      

A     D 

M    A 

E     Y 

MEDIUM RISK:  VISIT WITHIN 2 

DAYS 

LOW RISK: VISIT WITHIN 3 DAYS 

SAFEGUARDING ASSESSMENT 

Information gathered from involved agencies 

Ensure safety of staff as well as the vulnerable 

adult when conducting interviews 

HIGH RISK: VISIT ON SAME DAY 
DECISIONS: 

• Is this abuse? 

• If it is abuse 

• Is the person and or others 

in the household in danger 

• Are the Police involved 

• What is the level of risk 
Action  - Make Safe 

 

IF ABUSE 

Convene Strategy Meeting 

Within 4 working days if high risk and 5 

working days if medium and low risks 

SAFEGUARDING PLAN MEETING 

WITHIN 28 DAYS OF REFERRAL 

All allocated investigators give feedback. 

A Safeguarding Plan including a Monitoring 

System and frequency agreed 

REVIEW: 

If Safeguarding Plan is working well, 

review in 6months. 

The Safeguarding Plan can be reviewed 

at any time sooner if it breaks down or 

circumstances change. 

 

IF NOT ABUSE 

• Is there a need for Community Care 

Assessment 

• Is review or re-assessment needed 

• Inappropriate –refer to other 

agencies 

• Inappropriate – No Further Action 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 
Well-Being Strategic Partnership Board      
 
Date:   4 March 2008   
 
Report Title:  Development of a Tobacco Control Strategy for 

Haringey  
 
Report of:   Vicky Hobart, Head of Inequalities and Partnerships

  

 
Summary 
 
To update the Well-Being Partnership Theme Board on the Neighbourhood 
Renewal (NRF) funded project to support the development of an overarching 
Tobacco Control Strategy for Haringey. 
 

 
Recommendations 
 

That the Board:  
 

i. Note the specification and timescales for this project.   
 
ii. Identify key informants for the consultants delivering the project  

 

 
For more information contact: 
 
Name Vicky Hobart 
Title Head of inequalities and partnerships 
Tel: 020 8442 6668 
Email address Vicky.Hobart@haringey.nhs.uk 
 

 
 
Background 
 
The 2007/8 £100k NRF Tobacco Control project included resources to 
commission a review of tobacco control initiatives in the Borough with a view 
to developing an overarching Tobacco Control Strategy for Haringey that 
would focus on reducing inequalities in health. 
 
Tobacco is a major cause of ill health and premature mortality, and a 
significant contributor to health inequalities.  There is a significant gap in life 
expectancy between populations living in the East and West of the Borough, 
driven largely by differences in socio-economic conditions, deprivation and 
population mobility.  The Haringey Strategic Partnership adopted an action 

Agenda Item 8Page 151



 2 

plan to reduce this gap in life expectancy in March 2007, and Tobacco Control 
is a key part of this process. 
 
The partnership has already undertaken a range of work on Tobacco Control 
including: 
 

§ An established Quit smoking service 
§ LAA stretch target to increase the number of smoking quitters from N17 

(Tottenham)  
§ Enforcement of the ban on smoking in public places 
§ Health equity audit of utilisation of quit smoking services by BME 

communities 
§ Healthcare commission review  
§ Smokefree homes programme 
§ Life Expectancy Action Plan 
§ Infant Mortality Action Plan 
§ Children’s Plan and Well-Being Strategic Framework  

 
There is also new national guidance for quit smoking services that we would 
like to apply in a way that addresses health inequalities.  
 
This project will pull together and review these areas of work, building on 
learning from implementation of the ban on smoking in public places over the 
summer 2007, and make recommendations as to how Tobacco Control 
initiatives focusing on reducing health inequalities can be strengthened. 
 
Project specification 
 
Aim:  To develop an evidence-based strategy to reduce inequalities in health 
due to tobacco for Haringey. 
 
Objectives: 
 

1. Identify health inequalities due to tobacco in Haringey, and the 
population groups on which interventions should focus. 

 
2. Review the effectiveness and cost-effectiveness of interventions 

currently in place in reducing health inequalities including quit smoking 
services, enforcement, licensing, maternity and health promotion 
services.      

 
3. Review the literature to identify relevant guidance or good practice that 

could be applied in Haringey. 
 

4. Consider how tobacco-related performance management 
arrangements could be used to support work to reduce health 
inequalities. 

 
5. Produce: 

 
§ a report outlining the review findings and recommendations,  

Page 152



 3 

§ a draft tobacco control strategy for Haringey based on consultation 
with local stakeholders. 

 
Key informants 
 
The consultants will need to draw on a range of data and evidence sources to 
undertake this project.  Key informants will include stakeholders from: 
 

§ Voluntary and community organisations 
§ Haringey TPCT and Haringey Council service commissioners 
§ The quit smoking service 
§ Haringey Enforcement Service 
§ Local employers/businesses 
§ Local Acute Trusts (North Middlesex and Whittington) 
§ Local Mental Health Trust 
§ Independent contractors (GPs, dentists, pharmacists) 
§ Children’s service 
§ Public Health 

 
Members of the WBPB have been asked to identify the relevant stakeholders 
to meet with the consultants. 
 
Contract award 
 
Expressions of interest were invited before Christmas from appropriately 
experienced individuals or organisations to undertake this review.  One 
consultancy, Public Management Associates (PMA), responded and were 
invited to present their proposal to a panel comprising Vicky Hobart (head of 
inequalities and partnerships HTPCT, Keith Betts (enforcement service LBH) 
and Stephen Deitch (stop smoking service commissioner HTPCT). PMA 
developed a health inequalities toolkit for Birmingham, and have extensive 
experience in tobacco control including direct involvement in the Tobacco 
Control Collaborating Centre.  
 
A contract has been awarded to PMA to deliver the above specification.  The 
data collection and consultation aspects of the project should be completed by 
the end of March 2008.  PMA have been asked to present their findings to the 
next WBPB and other forums as agreed.   

  
 

Page 153



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Well-Being Partnership Theme Board      
 
Date:  4 March 2008  
 
Report Title: Update on the Development of the New Style Local Area 

Agreement 2008-2011  
 
Report of:  Mun Thong Phung, Director of Adult, Culture and 

Community   Services, Haringey Council 
  

 
Summary 
 
This report sets out the progress towards agreeing the 35 targets for the new 
Local Area Agreement (LAA) and describes the next steps for preparing for 
the negotiation and final agreement of the LAA with Government Office for 
London and other Government Departments. 
 

 
Recommendations 
 

• That the WBPB notes the suggested changes by Government Office 
for London (GOL). 

 

• That the WBPB reviews the suggested changes from GOL and finalise 
their selection by prioritising up to 35 improvement targets in total and 
a set of local indicators. 

 

• That the WBPB notes that the Performance Management Group 
continues to oversee the development of the new LAA including the 
‘story of place’ and supporting evidence. 

 

 
For more information contact: 
 
Name: Helena Pugh  
Title: Head of Policy and Strategy, 
Adult, Culture and Community 
Services, Haringey Council 
Tel: 020 8489 2943 
Email address: 
helena.pugh@haringey.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Name: Vicky Hobart 
Title: Head of Health Inequalities and 
Partnerships, Haringey Teaching 
Primary Care Trust 
Tel: 020 8442 6668 
Email address: 
Vicky.hobart@haringey.nhs.uk 
 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 155



 2 

 
1. Background and progress 
 
1.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

requires Local Strategic Partnerships to have in place new Local Area 
Agreements by June 2008.  These are to include up to 35 improvement 
targets negotiated with Government. 
 

1.2 Haringey Strategic Partnership is well on its way in selecting the 35 
targets.  A positive second meeting between the Performance 
Management Group and Government Office for London took place on 
25 January 2008 which confirmed that the HSP is on track to meet the 
June deadline and that the targets selected are on the whole the right 
ones for Haringey.  However, GOL have made a number of 
suggestions on the thematic partnerships proposed indicators. These 
are listed in Appendix 1.   

 
1.3 An early draft of the story of place was submitted to GOL and the 

Performance Management Group will oversee its completion. 
 
2. Issues for consideration 
 
2.1 On 11 February the HSP agreed that all thematic boards should 

consider the proposed changes and agree their final selections. For the 
WBPB this means the following comments need to be reviewed and 
recommendations made to the PMG immediately following this board: 

 
i. The WBCE proposed NI 128 user reported measure of respect and 
dignity in their treatment to be replaced with NI 119 Self-reported 
measure of people’s overall health and well-being. 
 
ii. GOL proposed consideration be given to replacing NI 39 alcohol-harm 
related hospital admission rates with NI 20 assault with injury crime 
rate. 
 

iii. GOL proposed consideration be given to moving NI 8 adult 
participation in sport to a local indicator 

 
iv.There was discussion at the HSP about which board should take the 
lead responsibility of the following two targets:  

 

• NI 187 Tackling fuel poverty - the Integrated Housing Board or 
the WBPB 

• NI 198 Children travelling to school - the Better Places 
Partnership Board or the Children’s and Young People’s 
Strategic Partnership  

 
It was decided that the decision on the leads for these and any other 
targets in a similar position would be made at the next meeting of the 
PMG. 

Page 156



 3 

 
2.2 In recognition that  many of the 35 targets are cross-cutting and will 

need input of more than one thematic partnership it was agreed that a 
table will be drawn up to show the links.   

 
2.3 It should be noted that there can only be a maximum of 35 

improvement targets, therefore any indicators added to the list of 35 
have to be balanced by the removal of others.  However there is no 
limit to the number of local indicators within the LAA as no targets or 
negotiated stretch will need to be agreed with central government for 
these. 

 
3. Next Steps 
 

Activity 
 

By When 

Thematic Board finalise their 
selection of indicators 
 

29 February 2008 

Workshops to agree action plans 
linked to new Performance 
Management Framework 
Being held 17 March 2008. 

28 March 2008 

Agreement with GOL of 35 indicators 
 

31 March 2008 

Boroughs notified of DCSF statutory 
targets 

April 2008 

Negotiation on indicators and targets 
between partnership and GOL 
 

April to June 2008 

Final Ministerial sign off of Local Area 
Agreement 
 

June 2008 

 
 
 

Page 157



 

 4 

Appendix 1 LAA Indicators, suggestions by thematic partnership and Well-being Strategic Framework outcomes  
 

Better Places  Suggested Changes WBSF 
Outcomes 

1. NI 192 Household waste recycled and 
composted 

2. NI 186 per capita CO2 emissions in the LAA 
area – domestic housing 

3. NI 195 Improved street and environmental 
cleanliness (levels of graffiti, litter, detritus and 
fly-posting) 

§ Number of Green Flag parks – Local Indicator 
§ NI 175 Access to services and facilities by 

public transport (and other specified models) 
– Local indicator 

 Improved 
quality of life 
 
Increased 
choice and 
control 

Safer Communities  Suggested Changes WBSF 
Outcomes 

4. NI 35 Building resilience to violent extremism 
5. NI 40 Drug Users in effective treatment 
6. NI 15 Serious violent crime rate 
7. NI 16 Serious acquisitive crime rate 
8. NI 111 First time entrants to the Youth Justice 

System aged 10-17 
9. NI 21 Dealing with local concerns about anti-

social behaviour and crime by the local 
council and police 

 
 

PMG proposed NI 32 repeat incidents of domestic 
violence be considered as a local indicator 
 

The inclusion of re-offending measures were suggested 
by GOL: 
NI 18 adult re-offending rates for those under probation 
supervision 
NI 19 rate of proven re-offending by young offenders 
NI 38 drug-related (class A) offending rate  
NI 43 young people within the youth justice system 
receiving a conviction in court who are sentenced to 
custody. 
GOL proposed consideration be given to replacing NI 39 
alcohol-harm related hospital admission rates with NI 20 
assault with injury crime rate. 
 

Improved 
quality of life 

P
a
g

e
 1

5
8



 

 5 

Children and Young People  Suggested Changes WBSF 
Outcomes 

10. NI 51 Effectiveness of CAMHS services 
11. NI 54 Services for disabled children 
12. NI 112 Under 18 conception rate 
13. NI 198 Children travelling to school l- mode of 

transport usually used 
14. NI 113 Prevalence of Chlamydia in under 20 

years olds 
15. NI 126 Early access for women to maternity 

services 
§ NI 60 Core assessments children’s social care 

that were carried out within 35 working days 
of their commencement – Local Indicator 

§ NI 53 Prevalence of breastfeeding at 6-8 
weeks from birth – Local Indicator 

§ Increase the % of children immunised by the 
2nd birthday – Local Indicator 

§ Victim support services for children and young 
people – Local Indicator  

GOL proposed NI 198 children travelling to school – 
mode of transport be moved to a local indicator and NI 
56 obesity among primary school age children in Year 6 
become the main indicator sitting above it 
 
GOL suggested NI 116 proportion of children in poverty 
be considered as a one of the 35 improvement targets 
 

 

Improved 
health and 
emotional well-
being 
 
 
Improved 
quality of life 
 
 
Increased 
choice and 
control 

Integrated Housing Board  Suggested Changes WBSF 
Outcomes 

16. NI 154 Net additional homes provided 
17. NI 158 % of decent Council homes 
18. NI 156 Number of households living in 

temporary accommodation 
§ NI 155 Number of affordable homes delivered 

(gross) – Local Indicator  

GOL proposed NI 158 % of decent council homes could 
be a local indicator 

 

Economic well-
being 

 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
9



 

 6 

 

Wellbeing  Suggested Changes WBSF 
Outcomes 

19. NI 8 Adult participation in sport 
20. NI 123 16+ current smoking rate prevalence 
21. NI 187 Tackling fuel poverty – people 

receiving income based benefits living in 
homes with a low energy efficiency rating 

22. NI 39 Alcohol-harm related hospital admission 
rates 

23. NI 121 Mortality rate from all circulatory 
diseases at ages under 75 

24. NI 149 Adults in secondary mental health 
services in settled accommodation 

25. NI 135 Carers receiving needs assessment or 
review and a specific carer’s services, or 
advice and information  

26. NI 141 Number of vulnerable people 
achieving independent living 

27. NI 125 Achieving independence for older 
people through rehabilitation/intermediate 
care 

§ NI 128 User reported measure of respect and 
dignity in their treatment – Local Indicator 

§ NI 127 Self reported measure of respect and 
dignity in their treatment – Local Indicator 

% of HIV infected patients with CD4 count <200 
cells per mm3 at diagnosis – Local Indicator 
 
 
 
 

LA proposed NI 128 user reported measure of respect 
and dignity in their treatment to be replaced with NI 119 
Self-reported measure of people’s overall health and 
well-being 
 

GOL proposed consideration be given to replacing NI 39 
alcohol-harm related hospital admission rates with NI 20 
assault with injury crime rate. 

 
GOL proposed consideration be given to moving NI 8 
adult participation in sport to a local indicator 
 
 

Improved 
health and 
emotional well-
being 
 
Improved 
quality of life 
 
Increased 
choice and 
control 
 
Maintaining 
personal 
dignity and 
respect  

Enterprise  Suggested Changes WBSF 

P
a
g

e
 1

6
0



 

 7 

Outcomes 

28. NI 153 Working age people claiming out of 
work benefits in the worst performing 
neighbourhoods 

29. NI 117 16 to 18 year olds who are not in 
education, training or employment (NEET) 

30. NI 79 Achievement of level 2 qualifications by 
aged 19 

31. NI 171 VAT registration rate 
§ The number of in-work families claiming 

working families tax credit and child tax credit 
– Local Indicator 

 

GOL proposed NI 180 changes in housing 
benefit/council tax benefit new claims and change 
events be considered as an  improvement target 
 

Economic 
well-being  

HSP  Suggested Changes WBSF 
Outcomes 

32. NI 4 % of people who feel that they can 
influence decisions in their locality 

33. NI 140 Fair treatment by local services 
34. NI 6 Participation in regular volunteering 
35. NI 1 % of people who believe people from 

different backgrounds get on well together in 
their local area 

HAVCO proposed NI 7 environment for a thriving third 
sector to be included as one of the 35 improvement 
target 
 

Making a 
positive 
contribution 
 
Freedom form 
discrimination 
and 
harassment 
 
 
Increased 
choice and 
control 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
1



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Well-Being Strategic Partnership Board      
 
Date:   4 March 2008   
 
Report Title:  Families into Work in Northumberland Park  
 
Report of:   Martin Tucker, Regeneration Manager (Employment 

and Skills).  
 

 
Summary 
 
The vision for the Families into Work (FIW) project is to improve the life 
chances of people in Northumberland Park by working with families to identify 
and provide the services they need for parents to become employed and for 
children to achieve success in education and develop the skills and desire to 
obtain work with career prospects. 
 
Families into Work will be an innovative pilot project focussing on families in a 
specific neighbourhood which will test out an approach that is replicable and 
scaleable based on better use and co-ordination of neighbourhood features - 
schools, children’s centres, community resources. 
 
Families into Work will be a special project of the Haringey Guarantee - a 
special family focussed dimension to the Guarantee. 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
That the Board:  
 
i. Note the specification and timescales for this project.   

 
ii. Identify key informants for the consultants delivering the project  

 

 
For more information contact: 
 
Name: Martin Tucker 
Title: Regeneration Manager (Employment and Skills) 
Tel: 020 8489 2932 
Email address: martin.tucker@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 12Page 163



 
Background 
 
Approach 
 
Although there are numerous services and projects delivering services in 
Northumberland Park these are not working well enough to achieve real 
change for families and a new approach needs to be developed to tackle long 
term Worklessness in the neighbourhood. 
 
Families into Work will be a multi-agency approach in Northumberland Park to 
address wider social exclusion issues by working intensively with families to 
improve the life chances of all family members.   
 
It will be a 3 year pilot with embedded evaluation. It is proposed that a team 
of 4 is set up to work closely with some 100 families in Northumberland 
Park who have multiple barriers to taking up employment and training. 
 
It is proposed that the team work with 100 families, 50 recruited in year 1 
and 50 in year 2, with each family being supported over a 2 year period.  
 
It is not proposed that new services should be provided but that existing 
service and projects should be co-ordinated and targeted to the families on 
the project. Thus FIW will not duplicate existing services but seek to facilitate 
better use of them. 
 
Project Design 
 
The Families into Work project was designed as a way to work closely with 
whole families. 
 
Thus the project team would work with families: 

• to identify barriers to work for parents and older children 

• to identify barriers to educational achievement for younger children 

• to identify a family action plan, including a combination of services and 
projects, including ones already  provided to the family, which would 
provide a rounded approach geared to that family’s needs and barriers 
to work. 

• to contact service providers to negotiate and agree access to the 
appropriate projects and services and shared action plans for the 
family which will support them into work. 

• to ensure services are provided in a sensible way for the family 

• to provide support to reduce drop out when things get tough and 
troubleshoot any problems which arise with service provision 

• to monitor progress against each family action plan 
 
Although the project focuses primarily on reducing Worklessness, it will need to 
help families deal with other issues in their lives which although not directly 
related to work, create problems for family members and become barriers to 
work. 

Page 164



 
The project is about co-ordination and partnership working and family 
support, rather than the provision of additional services. 
 
Participation in the FIW scheme would be voluntary and require the family 
to be prepared for services to share information about them in order to identify 
the best package of services for that family’s needs. 
 
Possible indicators and targets will need to be agreed by the team and the 
steering group. However some ideas for monitoring data for each family are 
suggested here: 
 

• Benefits received & for how long 

• Qualifications / key stage school attainment for each family members 

• Current employment / training status / whether previously held a job 

• Barriers to training / employment for adults 

• Barriers to educational attainment for children 

• Family members NEET 

• School attendance 

• Whether registered with GP 

• Household income 
 
Targets would be for all families on the programme and cover such things as: 
 

• Percentage / number on IB / SDA 

• Percentage / number on JSA 

• Percentage / number economically active 

• Percentage / number NEET 

• Percentage / number in permanent employment 

• Percentage / number in temporary employment 

• Percentage / number with job related qualifications 

• Percentage / number with at least floor target level key stage 
attainment 

• Average household income 

• Percentage of days off school 

• Percentage registered with GP 
 
The steering and executive groups receive a quarterly report on progress and 
any issues which need resolution at a higher level. 
 
Budget  
 
3 years staff costs @ £165K pa    £495,000 
(Co-ordinator PO6 £55K pa incl. on-costs 
2 Support Workers PO3 £92K pa  
0.5 SO2 Admin. £18K pa) 
 
Office Costs       £  50,000 
 

Page 165



Leverage/added value projects    £400,000  
(£75K yr1, £150K yr 2,£75K yr 3) 
(Childcare, training, placement expenses,  
added value small projects) 
 
Evaluation       £   55,000 
 
TOTAL       £1,000,000 
 
Piloting the Approach 
 
Northumberland Park Community School currently delivers a successful 
Tackling Worklessness project under the Haringey Guarantee.  This project is 
aimed at increasing the scope of vocational subjects and retention rates for 
those year 11 (15/16 year olds) students who are most in danger of becoming 
workless.  The aim is for 250 students to be engaged on the programme with 
213 gaining an NVQ level 2 qualification (85 per cent pass rate), 192 
progressing to further education and 40 (assessed as most at risk of 
becoming NEET) to be engaged on an enhanced information advice and 
guidance (IAG) programme leading to an NVQ qualification and the 
completion of a vocational training scheme. 
 
Haringey Council have commissioned an extension of the project from 
January – April 2008 that will pilot the  ‘Families into Work’ approach 
focussing on the employability skills needs  of long term unemployed parents 
of primary and secondary school pupils. This project targets unemployed 
adults that are already attending seal classes at the school including parents 
of students supported through the current Guarantee intervention. The aim is 
to provide participants with quality training including employability skills, work 
placements and ultimately jobs.  The aspiration is to provide at least 50% of 
the cohort the opportunity of sustainable employment within the Federation of 
the 3 secondary schools in Tottenham.   The project will engage with 20 
families, deliver employability skills training and work placements to 20 people 
with a minimum of 10 sustainable job outcomes. Currently there are 26 adults 
undertaking employability skills training. 
 
Progress and Next Steps 
 
The final Business Case was drafted and sent to Steering Group members on 
19 December 2007 and agreed at the Steering Group meeting on 9 January 
2008. 
 
An allocation of Working Neighbourhoods Fund has been identified to fund 
the project in 2008/09 but this needs to be confirmed by the Enterprise Board 
on 5 March 2008. 
 
In anticipation of Enterprise Board agreement work is progressing on drafting 
staff Job Descriptions and a draft delivery plan for the lifetime of the project. 
 

Page 166



It is planned that with agreement of the Partnership the project will go live by 
May/June to coincide with the start of the new LAA. 
 
 
The 2007/8 £100k NRF Tobacco Control project included resources to 
commission a review of tobacco control initiatives in the Borough with a view 
to developing an overarching Tobacco Control Strategy for Haringey that 
would focus on reducing inequalities in health. 
 

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Well-Being Partnership Theme Board      
 
Date:   4 March 2008  
 
Report Title:  Well-Being Balanced Scorecard December 2007  
 
Report of:  Eve Pelekanos, Corporate Head of Performance and 

Policy.  
 
 

 
Summary 
 
To present the balanced scorecard developed against the strategic objectives 
of the Well-Being Partnership Theme Board. 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
That the Well-Being Partnership note progress and key issues on 
performance as illustrated by the balanced scorecard. 

 
 

For more information contact: 
 
Margaret Gallagher/ Fiona Breen 
LBH Performance Manager/ Performance analyst  
Tel: 020 8489 2553/2508 
margaret.gallagher@haringey.gov.uk/  
fiona.breen@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 

Agenda Item 14Page 169



Development of a balanced scorecard  

1.1 The Well-Being scorecard has been updated and aligned with the 
requirements of the new performance framework. It reflects the 
development of Haringey’s Well-Being strategic framework and key 
priorities as identified in our Local Area Agreement. It is based around 
the seven outcomes in the Government’s White Paper “Our Health, 
Our Care, Our Say” and includes a number of cross-cutting shared 
measures. These reflect the Choosing Health agenda and incorporate 
a range of joint priorities including the Health Care Commission’s core 
standards and indicators. 

 
1.2 The scorecard is designed to give an overview of performance and 

progress against key projects which contribute to health and Well-
Being outcomes. It ensures that people who use social care services 
are at the heart of the work we do and monitors progress against the 
outcomes as set out in our well-being strategic framework. 

 
1.3 The front page of the scorecard shows progress against each of the 

seven objectives in pie chart format. It illustrates the proportion of 
measures that are on target (green), close to target (amber) and not 
achieving target or below the expected level of performance (red). This 
approach relies on both the regular availability of data and targets 
having been set so as to enable the allocation of a traffic light.  
Progress on indicators continues to be tracked on a monthly and year 
to date position against the 2007/08 target using a traffic light 
annotation where: 

•  green: =  target achieved / performance better than planned 

•  amber: = just below target (normally a 5% tolerance) 

•  red: = target not achieved / below expectation 

1.3.1 In addition, trend arrows depict progress since the last financial year, 
so whilst an indicator may receive a red traffic light for not achieving 
target, it will show an upward trend arrow if performance had improved 
on the previous year’s outturn. Between them, the lights and arrows 
indicate current progress and predict the likely annual position.  

1.4 The report is based on Quarter 2 data from Health and Quarter 3 data 
from the Council. Performance data from Health will be available at the 
end of the month and will be updated into this report when made 
available. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



 
 
 
 
2. Objective 1- Improved Health and Emotional Well Being 
 
2.1 Sixteen out of 17 (94%) of the measures are on or close to target 

Performance on our LAA stretch target of smoking quitters in N17 has 
exceed  the targets for Quarters 1 and 2, currently 97 smoking quitters 
have been achieved against a target of 67.  270 quitters are required 
for year 1.  Quarter three figures will be available by the end of 
February 2008. 
 
It is expected that there will be a higher number of smoking quitters in 
the last quarter of the year as the various projects progress. The 
assumption is that there will be 68 smoking quitters in Quarter 3 and an 
additional 135 in Quarter 4. There is an obvious risk attached to this 
assumption although the HTPCT are confident that this target will be 
met.  Actions for 2007/08 include the recruitment of a stop smoking 
advisor and community advisors for the N17 area as well as increasing 
access to clinics and targeted marketing. 
 

2.2 Quarter three shows good progress is being made on the Swim & Gym 
usage particularly in Park Road  and The Health Walks Programme 
with 93 participants completing a 12 week programme and 162 
referrals have been made to the Watch It programme (Childhood 
Obesity Programme) 
The number of drug users sustained in treatment is making good 
progress with 24 over the LDP target and the Number of Delayed 
Transfer of Care has also exceeded the target.  

 
2.3 The percentage of mothers known to be smoking has risen in quarter 2 

and remains above the target of 5% 
  
2.4 Performance has improved on mortality rates from cardiovascular 

disease from 116.5 per 100,000 in 2006/07 to 89.5 as at September 
’07 and puts us on track to achieve our 2007/08 target.   
The Reduction of obesity - mean body mass index of population 
(recorded as having a BMI of 30 or greater) September figure of 9% is 
a good improvement on last year’s figure of 14%.  
  

2.5 Data is still not available for the breast cancer screening indicator due 
to the service being reinstated and dealing with a backlog of patients.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 171



 
3. Objective 2- Improved Quality of Life 
 
3.1 All 16 of the measures are on or close to target.  

The number of physical visits to libraries increased in the 3rd quarter to 
over 9 visits per head of population and continues to better the target. 
Summer enrolments has improved performance for the Silver Surfers 
(60+ educational take up) and the Adult Education take up indicators, if 
performance continues they will exceed their targets. 
 

3.2 Third quarter figures show significant improvements on a number of 
social care indicators compared to last year – Number of people with 
learning disabilities helped to live at home has improved from 1.58 to 
1.84 exceeding Haringey’s target of 1.7. Adults with mental health 
problems, older people helped to live at home, Community equipment 
delivered within 7 days and Services for Carers have all improved 
considerably, placing these in the top PAF banding. 

 
3.3 Performance has declined in quarter three on the number of physical 

disabled people helped to live at home remaining below the target of 5 
per 1,000.  
 

4. Objective 3- Make a Positive Contribution 
 

4.1 Both measures are on target. Performance on the Out and About 
Project  which measures volunteer hours secured for work with older 
people exceeded on last years year to date performance. 2,028 
volunteer hours were recorded in the period April to December ‘07 
compared to 1,832 hours for the previous period (April to December 
06), a 10% increase. 

 
5. Objective 4- Increased Choice and Control 
 
5.1. All ten (100%) of the traffic lighted measures are on or close to target. 
 Five indicators have made significant progress on last years 

performance and two have moved up on the Paf banding rating in this 
quarter 

 
5.2      People receiving a statement of their needs improved from 89% in 

06/07 to 97% in December, moving the indicator up to Paf banding 4. 
Adults and older people receiving direct payments improved from 138 
per 100,000 in 06/07 to 153 in December, moving the indicator into the 
top Paf banding 
 

5.3 Performance on Older people aged 65 or over admitted to residential 
or nursing care has moved from 85 per 10,000 in 2006/07 to 61.9 for 
the 3rd quarter of 2007/08: although good performance is generally low 
there may be a danger that a very low figure could suggest people in 
need of residential care are not receiving it. Current performance is 
within a reasonable range of our <67 target. 

Page 172



5.4   Excellent performance has been maintained on waiting times for     
assessment. This indicator is the average of new older clients receiving 
an assessment where time from initial contact to first contact with the 
client is less than or equal to 48 hours (part a) and the percentage 
where time from first contact to completion of assessment is less than 
or equal to 4 weeks (part b). The average of the two is 96.5% and 
remains within the top banding continuing to exceed our 90% target. 
(BV195/PAFD55) 

6. Objective 5- Freedom from Discrimination or Harassment 
 
6.1 Four of the five (80%) of the measures are on or close to target.  

Good progress has been made on the numbers of incidents of 
domestic violence which result in sanction detections.  There have 
been 635 sanctioned detections (51.8%) in the year to December 
which scaled up equates to 847 in a year and would put us well on 
track to achieve the agreed stretch target.  Performance is significantly 
better than 06/07 which had 652 detections in the whole year equating 
to a rate of 36.2%. 

 
6.2 For the reduction of repeat domestic violence victimisation incidents,                                                                

some progress has been made since 2005/06 with annual equivalent 
reports reducing from 339 in 05/06 to 230 as at January 2008. The 
target for 2007/08 is 191 which is at risk of not being met.  Looking at 
the year three target of 523 (cumulative) it appears that this is 
extremely challenging: Key actions are being put in place which will 
help mitigate against this.  

  
 
7. Objective 6- Economic Well-being 
 
7.1 11 of the 13 (84%) of the indicators included under this objective have 

been assessed as on or close to target. 
 
7.2 Progress continues to be good on putting in place energy efficiency 

homes measures.  890 energy efficiency measures have put in place in 
the year to date which is almost double that done the whole of last 
year.  

 
7.3 The proportion of households accepted as homeless who have been 

previously accepted as homeless in the last two years has remained at 
0% exceeding our 2.5% target for 2007/08. 
The number of households for whom advice/intervention resolved their 
situation is a predicted 572 or 6% and places us in the top quartile 
nationally.  
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 173



8. Objective 7- Maintaining personal dignity and respect 
 
8.1 All 3 (100%) measures are on target. 

Good performance maintained on the availability of single rooms 
continuing to meet its 100% target 

 
9. Position on all objectives 
 
9.1 Overall 94% of the measures are on or close to target. 48 of the 66 

indicators traffic lighted achieved green status with an additional 14 
achieving amber status. Only 4 of the 66 measures fell short of the 
target. 

 
 

 

 

Page 174



W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 S

c
o

re
c
a
rd

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7

R
e

d
W

e
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 t
a

rg
e

t

A
m

b
e

r
W

o
rs

e
 t

h
a

n
, 

b
u

t 
w

it
h

in
 5

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 

G
re

e
n

O
n

 o
r 

b
e

tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
a

rg
e

t

N
e

w
/A

n
n

u
a

l

B
la

n
k

1
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 E

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
W

e
ll

-B
e

in
g

5

2
9

%

1 6
%

1
1

6
5

%

2
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

L
if

e

1
4

8
7

%1

 6
%

2

 1
3

%

3
 -

 M
a

k
e

 a
 p

o
s

it
iv

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 

1

 5
0

%

1

 5
0

%

4
 -

 I
n

c
re

a
s

e
d

 C
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

o
l

3

3
0

%

7

7
0

%

5
 -

 F
re

e
d

o
m

 f
ro

m
 D

is
c

ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 

H
a

ra
s

s
m

e
n

t

3

 6
0

%

1

2
0

% 1

 2
0

%

 6
 -

 E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 W

e
ll

-b
e

in
g

3

 2
3

%

2

1
5

%

8

 6
2

%

7
. 

M
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

D
ig

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
p

e
c

t

3

1
0

0
%

A
ll

 o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

4
8

7
3

%

1
4

2
1

%

4 6
%

\\
L
b
o
h
\l
b
o
h
-s

h
a
re

d
-d

a
ta

\O
D

\I
&

P
M

\B
u
n
F

\A
llF

\P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
\J

o
in

t 
H

&
S

C
 R

e
p
o
rt

\P
e
rf

 &
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
\r

e
v
is

e
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
 m

a
r 

0
8

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 J

o
in

t 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 P
e
rf

ro
m

a
n
c
e
 g

ro
u
p
. 
2
1
/0

2
/2

0
0
8

Page 175



W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g
 S

c
o

re
c
a
rd

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 N

a
m

e
T

ra
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
t 

c
o

u
n

t

R
e

d
A

m
b

e
r

G
re

e
n

A
n

n
u

a
l

o
r

N
e

w
B

la
n

k
T

o
ta

l

1
2

3
6

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 1
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 E

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
W

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

T
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

1
5

1
1

0
0

1
7

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 2
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
L

if
e

T
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

le
is

u
re

, 
s
o

c
ia

lis
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
if
e

 l
o

n
g

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 g

e
t 

o
u

t 
a

n
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
a

n
d

 f
e

e
l 
s
a

fe
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

t 

in
s
id

e
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e

ir
 h

o
m

e
s

0
2

1
4

0
0

1
6

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 3
 -

 M
a

k
e

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

T
o

 e
n

c
o

ra
g

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
v
e

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 g

e
tt

in
g

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
, 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g

0
0

2
0

0
2

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 4
 -

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l

T
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 e

x
e

rc
is

in
g

 c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir
 

liv
e

s

0
3

7
0

0
1
0

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 5
 -

 F
re

e
d

o
m

 f
ro

m
 D

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
H

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n

t

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

q
u

it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
re

e
d

o
m

 f
ro

m
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 

h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n

t

1
2

2
0

0
5

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

6
 -

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

W
e

ll-
b

e
in

g

T
o

 c
re

a
te

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
ir
 

in
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

re
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e

ts
 t

h
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s

2
2

9
0

0
1
3

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 7
 -

 M
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

ig
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t:

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 g

o
o

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
, 

c
u

lt
u

ra
lly

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

a
b

u
s
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 o

c
c
u

rr
in

g
 w

h
e

re
v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 i
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 a
n

d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
f 

it
 d

o
e

s
 o

c
c
u

r

0
0

3
0

0
3

T
o
ta

l
4

1
4

4
8

0
0

6
6

6
.1

%
2
1
.2

%
7
2
.7

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
1
0
0
.0

%

R
e
d

W
e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
a
rg

e
t

A
m

b
e
r

W
o
rs

e
 t
h
a
n
, 
b
u
t 
w

it
h
in

 5
%

 o
f 
ta

rg
e
t 

G
re

e
n

O
n
 o

r 
b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Page 176



D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

Y
T

D
 

T
re

n
d

 

A
rr

o
w

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
ta

 S
o

u
rc

e
/

C
o

n
ta

c
t

1
F

o
u
r 

w
e
e
k
 q

u
it
te

rs
M

o
n
th

ly
1
9
9
8

1
4

1
1
0

2
8
6

3
4
5

4
6
9

8
1
6

1
9
9
8

(9
2
.5

%
)

2
1
9
0

q
u

it
te

rs
.

P
la

n
: 

Q
1
-

2
7
4
, 

Q
2
-

2
7
4
, 

Q
3
-

5
4
7
, 

Q
4
-

1
,0

9
5
.

N
e
w

 d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
d
v
is

o
rs

. 
R

e
v
is

e
d
 p

la
n
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 N

H
S

L
's

 

q
u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
ts

.

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

ro
w

n
 

(H
e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p
o
rt

)

G
e
rr

y
 T

a
y
lo

r

g
e
rr

y
.t

a
y
lo

r@
h
a
ri

n
g
e
y
.n

h
s
.u

k

2
S

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
: 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

q
u
it
te

rs
 l
iv

in
g
  
in

 N
1
7

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

2
4
0

4
8

(T
a
rg

e
t

3
3
)

4
9

(T
a
rg

e
t

3
4
)

9
7

2
4
0
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 

2
7
0

P
ro

fi
le

s
 f

o
r 

Q
3
 a

n
d
 Q

4
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 o
f 

6
8

 

a
n
d

 1
3
5
 q

u
it
te

rs
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
A

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 

th
e

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 m

e
t 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 

a
 r

is
k
 a

s
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 d

o
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
tw

o
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

y
e
a

r.

C
a
ro

lin
e
 H

u
le

tt
 

(C
a
ro

lin
e
.H

u
le

tt
@

h
a
ri
n
g
e
y
.n

h
s
.u

k
)

3
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
ru

g
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
in

  
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t

M
o
n
th

ly
1
4
3
5

8
2
2

8
7
2

9
2
2

9
5
8

9
8
3

1
0
1
7

1
0
5
1

1
0
5
1

L
D

P
 t

a
rg

e
t 

1
1
8
2

(s
tr

e
tc

h
e
d

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

ta
rg

e
t 

1
4
7
5
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 2

4
 o

v
e
r 

L
D

P
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d

 1
7
2
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

ta
rg

e
t 

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 N

T
A

's
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

ra
je

c
to

ry
. 

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

ro
w

n
 

(H
e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p
o
rt

)

A
d
ri
a
n
 H

o
s
k
e
n

 P
C

T

4
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

b
le

m
 d

ru
g
 m

is
u
s
e
rs

 

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

6
8
.0

0
%

7
2
%

7
7
%

 
 

7
7
%

 (
c
o
v
e
rs

 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 

A
u
g
 0

6
 t

o
 

J
u
ly

 0
7
 -

 t
h
e
 

la
te

s
t 

1
2
 

m
o
n
th

p
e
ri
o
d

w
h
e
re

 d
a
ta

 

7
5
%

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
ta

in
e
d
 >

1
2
 

w
e
e
k
s
 (

lo
c
a
l 

tg
t.

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

is
 8

2
%

)

2
0
0

7
/8

 t
a
rg

e
t 

is
 7

5
%

. 
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 7

0
%

.

A
d
ri
a
n
 H

o
s
k
e
n

 P
C

T

5
M

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 f
ro

m
 C

a
n
c
e
r 

in
 p

e
o
p
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

7
5
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
1
1
.5

1
0
8
.0

3
1
0
5
.9

1
0
9
.2

1
0
9
.2

1
1
7
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 

2
0
0
6
 (

a
g
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e

d
)

s
p
e
a
rh

e
a
d

tg
t

la
te

s
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
.

G
ra

e
m

e
 W

a
ls

h

P
C

T

6
C

a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
d
is

e
a
s
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

9
2
.3

1
1
6
.5

8
9
.5

8
9
.5

9
4
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 

2
0
0
7
 (

a
g
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e

d
)

s
p
e
a
rh

e
a
d

tg
t

la
te

s
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
.

G
ra

e
m

e
 W

a
ls

h

P
C

T

7

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
b
e
s
it
y
- 

m
e
a
n
 b

o
d
y
 m

a
s
s
 

in
d
e
x
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 

B
M

I 
o
f 
3
0
 o

r 
g
re

a
te

r)

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
1
4
%

9
.5

0
%

9
.5

0
%

1
4
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7

V
a
n
e
s
s
a

B
o
g
le

/C
a
th

e
ri
n
e

B
ro

w
n
e

P
C

T

8

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 1
6
+

 t
a
k
in

g
 3

0
 m

in
s
 

m
o
d
e
ra

te
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

n
 t
h
re

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

d
a
y
s
 a

 w
e
e
k

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

7
2

7
6

9
3

9
3

H
e
a

lt
h
 W

a
lk

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

9
3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

 1
2
-w

e
e

k
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

A
c
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

L
if
e
 (

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 

S
c
h

e
m

e
)

1
6
2

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

W
a

tc
h
 I

t!
 (

C
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
)

9
f

ili
ll

d
th

V
a
n
e
s
s
a
 B

o
g
le

P
C

T

9

S
w

im
 u

s
u
a
g
e
 a

s
%

 o
f 
to

ta
l 
u
s
a
g
e
 i
n
 

T
o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 G
re

e
n

G
y
m

 u
s
u
a
g
e
 a

s
%

 o
f 
to

ta
l 
u
s
a
g
e
 I
n
 

T
o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 G
re

e
n

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

3
0
%

1
3
%

2
9
%

5
%

2
5
%

6
%

2
5
%

5
%

3
4
%

6
%

3
5
%

4
%

2
6
%

4
%

2
2
%

4
%

2
0
%

4
%

1
5
%

4
%

2
6
%

5
%

–

2
0
0
6
/0

7

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

%

3
0
%

1
3
%

M
a
rg

a
re

t 
B

a
rz

e
y
 

L
B

H

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 E
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g

T
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a
lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n

g
e
y
 

Page 177



D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

Y
T

D
 

T
re

n
d

 

A
rr

o
w

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
ta

 S
o

u
rc

e
/

C
o

n
ta

c
t

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 E
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g

T
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a
lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n

g
e
y
 

1
0

S
w

im
 u

s
u
a
g
e
 a

s
 a

 %
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
u
s
u
a
g
e
 i
n
 

P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d

G
y
m

 u
s
u
a
g
e
 a

s
 a

 %
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
u
s
u
a
g
e
 i
n
 P

a
rk

 

R
o
a
d

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

6
6
%

1
1
%

7
1
%

6
%

6
9
%

6
%

7
1
%

5
%

6
8
%

7
%

6
6
%

9
%

7
0
%

1
2
%

6
7
%

1
3
%

6
0
%

9
%

7
0
%

9
%

 
 

 
7
0
%

8
%

–
2
0
0
6
/0

7

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

%

6
6
%

1
1
%

M
a
rg

a
re

t 
B

a
rz

e
y
 

L
B

H

1
1

C
P

A
 s

e
v
e
n
 d

a
y
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

9
0
.6

0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

J
a
n
ic

e
 W

o
o
d
ru

ff

P
C

T

1
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 (
a
g
e
d
 5

0
+

) 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
e
a
ti
n
g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

N
o
e
l 
P

a
rk

, 
B

ru
c
e
 G

ro
v
e
 a

n
d
 

N
o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

4
 M

o
n
th

ly
2
2
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

J
a
n
-M

a
r 

 0
7

 
3
2

3
2

R
o
u

n
d
 4

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 b

e
lo

w
:

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
o
th

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

o
-d

a
te

 =
 3

2

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
tt

e
n
d
in

g
 S

h
a
p
e

-

U
p
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
-d

a
te

 =
  

6
5
.

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
tt

e
n
d
in

g
 C

o
o
k
 &

 

E
a
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
-d

a
te

 =
 9

3

W
ilk

in
s
 D

e
b
b
ie

 

[D
e
b
b
ie

.W
ilk

in
s

@
h
a
ri
n
g
e
y
.n

h
s
.u

k
]

1
3

In
fa

n
t 
M

o
rt

a
lit

y
: 
S

m
o
k
in

g
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
:%

 o
f 
m

o
th

e
rs

 k
n
o
w

n
 t
o
 b

e
 

s
m

o
k
e
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
2
.4

1
%

6
.7

3
%

9
.1

0
%

9
.1

0
%

4
.9

9
%

V
a
n
e
s
s
a

B
o
g
le

/C
a
th

e
ri
n
e

B
ro

w
n
e

P
C

T

1
4

B
re

a
s
t 
C

a
n
c
e
r 

S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 a

g
e
d
 

5
0
-7

0
 y

e
a
rs

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
3
6
.0

0
%

–
7
0
%

 o
f 

w
o
m

e
n

b
e
w

e
e
n
 5

0
-

7
0

D
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
in

s
ta

te
d
 a

n
d
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 

o
f 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

s
c
re

e
n
e
d
. 

W
e
 a

re
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

c
a
tc

h
 u

p
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r,

 b
u
t 

e
x
p
e
c
t 

th
a
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

n
e
x
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

V
a
n
e
s
s
a

B
o
g
le

/C
a
th

e
ri
n
e

B
ro

w
n
e

P
C

T

1
5

P
a
f

D
4
0

A
d
u
lt
s
 &

 O
ld

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

s
 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e

M
o
n
th

ly
6
3
%

1
3
3
%

1
2
5
%

1
1
3
%

1
0
3
%

9
7
%

9
0
%

8
0
.0

0
%

7
8
.6

0
%

7
4
.6

0
%

7
5
%

–
8
0
%

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 6

0
>

9
0
%

 (
3
 b

lo
b
s
)

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

 B
lo

b
s

P
a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

1
6

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 C

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 R

a
te

s
 (

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
9
8
-2

0
0
5
)

A
n
n
u
a
l

6
2
.5

–

4
1
.3

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
/

1
0
0
0
 1

5
-1

7
 

y
e
a
r 

o
ld

 

fe
m

a
le

s
 i
n
 

c
a
le

n
d
a
r

y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
6

V
a
n
e
s
s
a

B
o
g
le

/C
a
th

e
ri
n
e

B
ro

w
n
e

P
C

T

1
7

P
a
f

D
4
1

N
o
 o

f 
D

e
la

y
e
d
 T

ra
n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
C

a
re

- 
A

d
u
lt
s
 &

 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
  
(S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

M
o
n
th

ly
6
5
.5

4
4

5
0

4
9
.9

1
4
2
.9

0
3
9
.9

3
3
5
.0

5
3
2
.6

7
3
3
.0

1
3
6
.0

7
3
6
.0

7
3
9
.7

8

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 0

<
2
0
.1

2

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 4

 B
lo

b
s

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 f

ig
u
re

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
a
n
is

a
 P

a
te

l

L
B

H

Page 178



D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
2

0
0

6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a

y
J

u
n

J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e

p
O

c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a

n
F

e
b

M
a

r
Y

T
D

 
T

re
n

d
 

A
rr

o
w

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
ta

 S
o

u
rc

e
/

C
o

n
ta

c
t

1
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

9
,5

8
5

9
0

5
7

8
,7

3
3

9
,1

7
1

9
0

0
3

8
6

0
0

S
ti
ll 

fe
e

lin
g

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

H
o

rn
s
e

y
 a

n
d

 S
tr

o
u

d
 

G
re

e
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 C
lo

s
u

re
s

E
ri
c
a

 W
o

rt
h

L
B

H

2
6

0
+

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
ta

k
e

 u
p

 
4

 M
o

n
th

ly
3

6
3

9
6

2
4

5
3

4
1

3
6

3
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 d
a

ta
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

e
rm

 t
im

e
s

G
e

o
rg

e
 S

z
e

rv
a

n
s
z
k
y

L
B

H

3
A

d
u

lt
 (

1
9

+
)e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e

 u
p

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 t

e
rm

 t
im

e
4

 M
o

n
th

ly
3

1
4

9
6

9
0

2
1

7
3

2
8

6
3

3
1

4
9

 (
7

8
7

 

q
tr

)

G
e

o
rg

e
 S

z
e

rv
a

n
s
z
k
y

L
B

H

4
B

V
1

1
9

 -
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

g
re

e
n

 

fl
a

g
s
 a

w
a

rd
 p

a
rk

s
 &

 p
u

b
lic

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
A

n
n

u
a

l

7
 F

la
g

s
 

2

P
e

n
n

a
n

t

s

8
 F

la
g

s

5

B
V

1
1

9
e

 %
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 p
a

rk
s
 a

n
d

 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

7
2

%

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d

7
2

%

(B
V

P
I)

6
4

%
(W

a
v
e

 2
 

tr
a

c
k
)

6
5

%
(r

e
s

id
e

n
ts

s
u

rv
e

y
)

6
5

%
–

7
2

%
L

a
te

s
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 s

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o

w
  

+
8

%
 r

a
ti
n

g
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

s
 g

o
o

d
/e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 

6

B
V

1
1

9
a

 %
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
A

n
n

u
a

l
4

8
.7

0
%

7

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 -

 A
re

a
s
 o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 %

  
o

f 
s
a

m
p

le
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
in

g
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

it
h

 c
ri
m

e
 

A
n

n
u

a
l

5
4

%
4

6
%

4
6

%

L
a

te
s
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 s

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o

w
 a

 7
%

 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
s
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn

8

P
a

f

C
2

9

Y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 h
e

lp
e

d
 t

o
 

liv
e

 a
t 

h
o

m
e

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 

1
8

-6
4

.

M
o

n
th

ly
4

.6
4

.7
4

.8
4

.8
4

.7
4

.6
4

.6
4

.4
9

4
.4

9
–

5

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 5
+

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

  
4

 B
lo

b
s

P
a

u
l 
D

ry
d

e
n

L
B

H

9

P
a

f

C
3

0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 a

d
u

lt
s
 i
n

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

8
-6

4
.

M
o

n
th

ly
1

.5
8

1
.5

7
1

.5
6

1
.5

7
1

.5
4

1
.5

4
1

.5
6

1
.5

5
1

.6
5

1
.8

4
1

.8
4

1
.7

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 3
+

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 2
 B

lo
b

s
P

a
u

l 
D

ry
d

e
n

L
B

H

1
0

P
a

f

C
3

1

A
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 

h
e

lp
e

d
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
M

o
n

th
ly

0
.2

2
.8

3
2

.8
2

2
.8

5
2

.8
4

2
.8

5
2

.8
5

2
.9

3
4

.0
9

4
.1

6
4

.1
6

3

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 2
.3

+

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 5
 B

lo
b

s
P

a
u

l 
D

ry
d

e
n

L
B

H

1
1

P
a

f

C
3

2

O
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 a
g

e
d

 1
8

-6
4

M
o

n
th

ly
9

4
.0

0
8

9
.0

0
8

9
.0

0
8

8
.0

0
8

8
.0

0
8

7
.0

0
9

3
.0

0
1

0
4

.6
4

1
0

3
.3

0
1

0
1

.5
6

1
0

1
.5

6
1

0
1

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 1
0

0
+

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 4
 B

lo
b

s
P

a
u

l 
D

ry
d

e
n

L
B

H

1
2

P
A

F

D
5

4

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t-
 s

o
c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

it
e

m
s
 o

f 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 7
 d

a
y
s

M
o

n
th

ly
8

8
%

9
4

.6
%

9
8

.0
%

9
3

.0
%

9
5

.0
%

9
6

.0
%

9
9

.0
%

9
9

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
9

9
.8

0
%

9
7

.2
0

%
8

8
%

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 8
5

<
1

0
0

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 5
 B

lo
b

s
P

a
u

l 
D

ry
d

e
n

L
B

H

1
3

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t-
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
te

m
s
 o

f 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 7
 d

a
y
s

M
o

n
th

ly
9

6
%

9
9

%
9

9
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

C
a

th
e

ri
n

e
 B

ro
w

n
 -

 H
e

a
lt
h

 

R
e

p
o

rt

1
4

P
a

f

C
6

2

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 
M

o
n

th
ly

9
.0

0
%

9
.0

0
%

8
.0

0
%

8
.8

0
%

9
.4

0
%

9
.7

0
%

1
0

.1
0

%
1

3
.5

%
1

2
.1

0
%

1
2

.1
%

1
2

.1
0

%
9

%

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 1
2

+

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 5
 B

lo
b

s
P

a
u

l 
D

ry
d

e
n

L
B

H

1
5

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 e
th

n
ic

 c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 b
re

a
k
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 -

D
IS

 2
.1

 C
S

0
6

4

A
n

n
u

a
l

6
8

3
6

0
0

M
a

n
is

h
a

 P
a

te
l 

L
B

H

1
6

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
e

 c
a

rd
 u

s
e

rs
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

2
3

9
9

2
6

0
7

4
6

6
2

6
1

5
0

0
8

9
7

9
4

9
7

8
1

8
7

8
5

9
0

5
6

8
9

3
6

8
3

1
6

8
2

3
7

6
5

2
6

4
 (

m
o

n
th

)
M

a
rg

a
re

t 
B

a
rz

e
y
 

L
B

H

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 2

 -
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 Q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

L
if

e

T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

le
is

u
re

, 
s
o
c
ia

lis
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 l
o
n
g
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 g

e
t 
o
u
t 
a
n
d
 a

b
o

u
t 
a
n
d
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
in

s
id

e
 a

n
d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s

Page 179



D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
2

0
0

6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a

y
J

u
n

J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e

p
O

c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a

n
F

e
b

M
a

r
Y

T
D

 
T

re
n

d
 

A
rr

o
w

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
ta

 S
o

u
rc

e
/

C
o

n
ta

c
t

1

O
u

t 
a

n
d

 A
b

o
u

t 
P

ro
je

c
t

(V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
h

o
u

rs
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
) 

V
is

it
s
 a

n
d

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

M
o

n
th

ly
2

4
2

0
1

8
3

1
8

7
1

9
1

1
9

9
2

3
5

2
4

1
2

6
1

2
6

6
2

6
5

2
6

9
2

2
9

7
0

6
/0

7

2
4

2
0

A
s
h

ra
f 

C
h

o
u

d
h

u
ry

 -
 A

g
e

 C
o

n
c
e

rn

2

P
a

f

3
0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 

to
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

8
-6

4
M

o
n

th
ly

1
.6

1
.5

7
1

.5
6

1
.5

7
1

.5
1

.5
4

1
.5

6
1

.5
5

1
.6

5
1

.8
4

1
.8

4
1

.7

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 3
+

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 2
 B

lo
b

s

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
d

e
d

 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 

re
m

a
in

s
in

B
a

n
d

2
.

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 3

 -
 M

a
k
e
 a

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

T
o
 e

n
c
o
ra

g
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

a
c
ti
v
e
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 g

e
tt
in

g
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
, 
in

fl
u
e
n
c
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

Page 180



D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
2
0
0

6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

Y
T

D
T

re
n

d
 A

rY
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
0
7

/0
8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
ta

 S
o

u
rc

e
/

C
o

n
ta

c
t

1 P
a

f

D
3

9

%
 o

f 
p

e
o
p
le

 r
e

c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t

M
o
n
th

ly
8

9
%

8
9
%

9
0
%

9
3
%

9
3
%

9
3
%

9
5
%

9
4
%

9
7

.3
%

9
7
%

9
7

.0
%

9
8
%

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 1

0
0
+

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 4

 

B
lo

b
s

P
a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

2 P
a

f

C
5

1

A
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g

 d
ir
e
c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

M
o
n
th

ly
1

3
8

1
3

1
1
3
1

1
3
6

1
3
7

1
4
0

1
3
7

1
3
6

1
4
9

1
5
3

1
5
3

1
3
9

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 1

5
0
+

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 5

 

B
lo

b
s

P
a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

3 P
a

f

D
5

5

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 w
h

ic
h
 

b
e

g
in

 w
it
h
in

 4
8

 h
o
u

rs
 o

f 
fi
rs

t 
c
o
n

ta
c
t

M
o
n
th

ly
6

0
%

9
7
%

9
5
%

9
6
.5

0
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
6

.9
%

9
7
%

9
7

.3
%

9
0
%

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 9

0
<

1
0
0

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 5

 

b
lo

b
s

P
a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

4 P
a

f

D
5

5
b

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

w
it
h
in

 4
 w

e
e
k
s

M
o
n
th

ly
7

3
%

9
5
%

9
4
%

9
5
.1

0
%

9
5
.0

0
%

9
5
.2

0
%

9
5
.3

0
%

9
5
.9

0
%

9
5
.5

0
%

9
5
.7

0
%

9
5

.7
0
%

9
0
%

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 9

0
<

1
0
0

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 5

 

b
lo

b
s

P
a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

5 P
a

f

D
5

6

S
o

c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 4
 w

e
e
k
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t

M
o
n
th

ly
9

4
%

8
2
%

8
5
.9

0
%

8
5
.3

0
%

8
6
%

9
1
%

9
1
%

9
1
.2

0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

8
9
.9

0
%

8
9

.9
%

–
9

3
%

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 9

0
<

1
0
0

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 4

 

b
lo

b
s

P
a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

6 P
a

f

D
7

1

%
 o

f 
re

s
p
o

n
d
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 "

 D
o
 y

o
u
r 

c
a

re
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 d
o
 t
h

e
 t

h
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
 w

a
n
t 

d
o

n
e
" 

a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 "

th
e

y
 a

lw
a
y
s
 d

o
 t
h
e
 

th
in

g
s
 I

 w
a

n
t 
d

o
n
e

A
n
n
u

a
l

N
e
w

–
P

a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

7

P
a

f

C
7

2

(F
o
rm

e
rl
y

C
2

6
)

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

g
e
d

 6
5
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

a
d

m
it
te

d
 

o
n

 a
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
b
a

s
is

 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
o
r 

n
u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

M
o
n
th

ly
8
5

7
3

7
6

7
2

6
3

7
5

6
9

6
6
.6

6
8

.9
6
1
.9

6
1
.9

L
o

c
a
l

T
a

rg
e
t

<
6
7

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 0

<
9
0

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 5

 

B
lo

b
s

P
a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

8

P
a

f

C
7

3

(F
o
rm

e
rl
y

C
2

7
)

A
d

u
lt
s
 a

g
e

d
 1

8
-6

4
 a

d
m

it
te

d
 o

n
 a

 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n
t 

b
a
s
is

 i
n

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
o
r 

n
u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

M
o
n
th

ly
5

.2
2
.3

2
.3

2
.6

2
.1

1
.2

1
.0

1
.0

1
.4

1
.2

1
.2

1

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 0

<
1
.5

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 5

 

B
lo

b
s

P
a
u
l 
D

ry
d
e
n

L
B

H

9

P
a

f

E
8
2

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 

le
a

d
in

g
 t
o
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e

M
o
n
th

ly
6
7

.0
0

7
1
.0

0
7

2
.0

0
7
2
.0

0
7
2
.0

0
7

0
.0

0
7
1
.0

0
6
9
.5

0
6
7

.6
0

6
7
.9

0
6
7

.9
0

–
7
0

P
a
f 

T
o
p
 B

a
n
d
in

g
 6

8
<

7
7

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 4

 

B
lo

b
s

1
0

K
P

I

S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o

 a
re

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
n

d
e
p
e
n
d

e
n
t 

liv
in

g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

9
7

.9
0
%

9
8
.5

5
%

9
8
.0

0
%

9
8

.0
0
%

9
8
%

3
rd

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
F

e
b
 

C
a
rl
o
s
 B

a
ile

y

L
B

H

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 4

 -
 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 e

x
e
rc

is
in

g
 c

h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s

Page 181



D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
2

0
0

6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a

y
J

u
n

J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e

p
O

c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a

n
F

e
b

M
a

r
Y

T
D

 
T

re
n

d
 

A
rr

o
w

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
a

ta

S
o

u
rc

e
/

C
o

n
ta

c
t

1

D
IS

2
2

1
6

5
.3

L
D

1
6

6

R
a

ti
o

 o
f 

th
e

 %
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
d

u
lt
s
 

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 f

ro
m

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 %

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 

fr
o

m
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s

A
n

n
u

a
l

1
.1

3
–

1
.0

0

2

P
a

f

E
4

7

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 o

f 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 a

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

1
.2

3
1

.5
6

1
.4

9
1

.4
5

1
.5

2
1

.4
6

1
.4

6
–

1
.3

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

1
<

2
 (

3
 B

lo
b

s
)

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 3
 B

lo
b

s

P
a

u
l

D
ry

d
e

n

L
B

H

3

P
a

f

E
4

8

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 o

f 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

1
.0

3
0

.9
4

0
.9

9
0

.9
8

0
.9

6
1

.0
1

1
.0

1
1

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 0
.9

<
1

.1
 (

3
 B

lo
b

s
)

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 3
 B

lo
b

s
P

a
u

l

D
ry

d
e

n

L
B

H

4

A
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

s
a

n
c
ti
o

n
e

d
 d

e
te

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

M
o

n
th

ly
4

8
7

2
2

3
 o

r 

5
3

%
6

9
 o

r 
4

8
%

6
9

 o
r 

5
1

.9
%

2
3

8
 o

r 

5
4

.2
%

6
1

 o
r 

5
0

.4
%

6
4

 o
r 

5
8

%
7

5
 o

r 

4
6
%

5
1

.8
1

2
9

 o
r 

3
2

%
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 3

4
%

T
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 d
a

te
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 5

1
.8

%
 a

n
d

 w
e

 

a
re

 o
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t

o
 e

x
c
e

e
d

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
1

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 

7
7

0
 s

a
n

c
ti
o

n
 d

e
te

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 

is
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

P
re

v
io

u
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 G
O

L
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 m
id

-

y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 n
o

w
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

th
re

e
 t

a
rg

e
t.

5
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

p
e

a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
M

o
n

th
ly

2
0

1
2

2
8

 
 

2
0

5
2

1
1

2
0

9
2

1
6

2
3

0
2

3
0

1
9

1

In
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 a
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 

p
e
rp

e
tr

a
to

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
e
t 

u
p

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 h

e
ld

 a
n

 A
th

e
n

a
 D

a
y
 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
rr

e
s
ti
n

g
 D

V
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
 i
n

 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

, 
9

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
e
re

 a
rr

e
s
te

d
. 

 T
w

o
 

m
o

re
 A

th
e
n

a
 d

a
y
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
. 

 I
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a
d

e
 

s
in

c
e
 2

0
0

5
/0

6

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
 5

 -
 F

re
e

d
o

m
 f

ro
m

 D
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

H
a

ra
s

s
m

e
n

t

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

q
u

it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
re

e
d

o
m

 f
ro

m
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n

t

Page 182



D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
2

0
0

6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a

y
J

u
n

J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e

p
O

c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a

n
F

e
b

M
a

r
Y

T
D

 
T

re
n

d
 

A
rr

o
w

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
a

ta

S
o

u
rc

e
/

C
o

n
ta

c
t

1

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 w
o

rk
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
/ 

p
e

o
p

le
 

e
n

te
ri
n

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
- 

d
a

ta
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

b
y
 w

a
rd

A
n

n
u

a
l

6
6

.2
%

(2

0
0

5
/0

6
)

E
n

g
la

n
d

 A
v
g

7
4

.8
%

A
m

b
ro

s
e

Q
u

a
s
h

ie

L
B

H
 -

F
lo

o
r 

T
a

r g
e

ts

2
E

th
n

ic
 M

in
o

ri
ty

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
- 

d
a

ta
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 w

a
rd

A
n

n
u

a
l

4
5

.3
%

(2
0

0
4

/0
5

)

E
n

g
la

n
d

 A
v
g

5
8

.9
%

A
m

b
ro

s
e

Q
u

a
s
h

ie

L
B

H
 -

 F
lo

o
r 

T
a

rg
e

ts

3
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
L

D
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 1
8

-6
4

 i
n

 

p
a

id
 w

o
rk

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 (

D
IS

 6
.4

 L
D

1
6

8
)

A
n

n
u

a
l

4
5

–
6

0

S
io

b
h

a
n

H
a

rp
e

r/
C

h
lo

e

R
a

w
lin

s
o

n

L
B

H

4

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 w

it
h

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 v

ia
 J

o
b

c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 

"W
o

rk
s
te

p
" 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d

4
 M

o
n

th
ly

7
7

9
9

0
6

/0
7

7

 7
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
. 

O
n

ly
 2

 n
e

w
 s

ig
n

 u
p

s
; 

b
o

th
 j
o

b
 

s
e

e
k
e

rs
.

B
ill

 S
la

d
e

 

L
B

H

5

N
e

w

fo
r

2
0

0
6

/

0
7

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 w

it
h

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 

fu
e

l 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
 i
n

 N
o

e
l 
P

a
rk

, 
B

ru
c
e

 G
ro

v
e

 

&
 N

o
rt

h
u

m
b

e
rl
a

n
d

 P
a

rk

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
3

5
2

3
5

2
0

0
6

/0
7

L
y
n

n

S
e

lla
rs

 L
B

H

6

N
e

w

fo
r

2
0

0
6

/

0
7

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 

e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

4
6

1
3

0
7

4
2

9
1

5
4

8
9

0
4

6
1

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 g

o
o

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

x
y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 o

f 
p

u
tt

in
g

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
.

8
9

0
 e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 2
1

8
 

d
e

c
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 h

a
v
e

 p
u

t 
in

 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 d
a

te
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

lm
o

s
t 

d
o

u
b

le
 t

h
a

t 
d

o
n

e
 i
s
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 o
f 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 

L
A

A

m
e

a
s
u

re

7

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

s
 

h
o

m
e

le
s
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 

y
e

a
rs

(B
V

2
1

4
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

2
.5

0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
%

2
.5

%
G

re
g

 C
a

rt
e

r

L
B

H

8

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 

a
d

v
ic

e
/i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 

s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 (

B
V

 2
1

3
)

M
o

n
th

ly
3

8
0

1
5

3
7

7
0

5
6

6
9

2
8

7
7

4
4

3
3

5
7

2
5

0
0

T
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 d
a

te
 o

f 
5

7
2

 i
s
 a

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
 o

f 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 b

y
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 m

o
n

th
ly

 

fi
g

u
re

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 m
u

lt
ip

ly
in

g
 b

y
 

1
2

. 
T

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 f

ig
u

re
 f

o
r 

th
is

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 

c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 b

y
 d

iv
id

in
g

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

c
a

s
e

s
 b

y
 o

n
e

 t
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

th
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

(9
8

).
 T

h
e

re
fo

re
 5

9
4

/9
8

 =
 6

.0
6

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.

G
re

g
 C

a
rt

e
r

L
B

H

9
D

e
la

y
e

d
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a

re
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
o

 a
 

m
in

im
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
b

y
 2

0
0

6
 (

H
e

a
lt
h

)
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

2
.6

4
%

2
.3

9
%

0
.7

5
%

1
.5

7
%

(c
u

rr

e
n

t

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n

c
e
)

L
o

c
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 

2
%

A
le

x

M
c
T

e
a

re

P
C

T

1
0

P
a

f

E
4

7

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 o

f 
O

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
M

o
n

th
ly

1
.2

3
1

.3
1

1
.4

2
1

.5
6

1
.5

1
1

.5
1

.4
9

1
.4

5
1

.5
3

1
.4

6
1

.4
6

–
1

.3

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

1
<

2
 (

3
 B

lo
b

s
)

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 3
 B

lo
b

s

P
a

u
l

B
ry

d
e

n

L
B

H

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 6

 -
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g

T
o
 c

re
a
te

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
ir

 n
e
e
d
s

Page 183



O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 6

 -
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g

T
o
 c

re
a
te

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
ir

 n
e
e
d
s

1
1

P
a

f

E
4

8

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 o

f 
O

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
M

o
n

th
ly

1
.0

3
0

.8
0

.8
4

0
.9

4
0

.9
5

0
.9

5
0

.9
7

0
.9

9
0

.9
6

1
.0

1
1

.0
1

1

P
a

f 
T

o
p

 B
a

n
d

in
g

 0
.9

<
1

.1
 (

3
 B

lo
b

s
)

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 3
 B

lo
b

s

P
a

u
l

B
ry

d
e

n

L
B

H

1
2

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fi
re

 s
a

fe
ty

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 

b
y
 f

ir
e

 b
ri
g

a
d

e
A

n
n

u
a

l
2

3
4

5
4

6
9

2
3

2
4

2
0

1
9

0
1

2
 f

e
w

e
r 

fi
re

s
 

o
v
e

r 
3

 y
e

a
rs

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

c
c
id

e
n

ta
l 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
 f

ir
e

s
 

w
a

s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

in
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 t
h

a
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 b

u
t 

fe
ll 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
 t

o
 6

7
, 

s
c
a

le
d

 u
p

 

fo
r 

0
7

/0
8

 w
ill

 b
e

 2
5

3
, 

th
is

 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
3

 

ta
rg

e
t
o

f
2

3
0

.

L
A

A

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t

1
3

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

la
rm

s
M

o
n

th
ly

3
4

2
2

9
2

2
3

8
4

4
2

2
3

5
4

2
3

4
2

1
2

6
6

0
6

/0
7

3
4

2
 (

2
8

 a
v
g

 

p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
)

Y
v
e

tt
e

H
u

s
b

a
n

d
s
/

M
a

u
re

e
n

S
m

it
h

L
B

H

Page 184



D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
re

n
d

A
rr

o
w

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
a
ta

S
o

u
rc

e
/

C
o

n
ta

c
t

1

P
a
f

D
3
7

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
in

g
le

 r
o
o
m

s
M

o
n
th

ly
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

A
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
 1

0
0
%

P
a
u
l

D
ry

d
e
n

L
B

H

2

T
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
im

e
ly

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 

a
n
d
/o

r 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
h
a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 

N
o
n
-r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
in

te
rm

e
d
ia

te
 c

a
re

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s

D
IS

 1
.2

 O
P

0
0
5

A
n
n
u
a
l

9
5

1
1
5

P
a
u
l

D
ry

d
e
n

L
B

H

3

T
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
im

e
ly

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 

a
n
d
/o

r 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
h
a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 -

 D
IS

 1
.2

 

O
P

0
0
7

A
n
n
u
a
l

6
2
9

5
2
9

P
a
u
l

D
ry

d
e
n

L
B

H

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 7

 -
 M

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

ig
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t:

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 g
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
, 
c
u
lt
u
ra

lly
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
a
b
u
s
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
c
c
u
rr

in
g
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 i
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
f 
it
 d

o
e
s
 o

c
c
u
r

Page 185



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 2

0
0
7
/0

8

(3
1
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
)

Achieve

Economic Wb

Be Healthy

Positive 

Contribution

Be 

Independent

Stay Safe

Issues

Resources

Budget

Timescale

Overall Status

T
o
ta

l 
B

u
d
g
e
t

0
7
/0

8

S
p
e
n
d

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 T

o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft

 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro

je
c
t 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
/T

a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8
Y

e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 o
f 
1
5
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 b
y
 a
n
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
£
1
0
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k

1
0

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 1
5
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 i
n
to
 p
a
id
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.

1
0

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 A
d
u
lt
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

fo
r 
B
 T
e
c
h
 A
w
a
rd
 (
C
ru
c
ia
l 

S
te
p
s
)

If
y
 A
d
e
n
u
g
a

�
G

G
G

G
G

£
1
5
,9
2
6

£
1
3
,1
4
4

£
2
,7

8
2

R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
ta
rg
e
t 
- 
5
0
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

2
5
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
ra
in
in
g

4
0

2
0

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 M
in
d
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
. 
A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
tr
a
in
e
e
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
o
n
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 
b
y
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
m
p
ti
n
g
 C
ru
c
ia
l 
S
te
p
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 s
e
m
in
a
r 
p
ro
je
c
t.
 A
s
 m
a
n
y
 a
s
 t
h
re
e
 t
o
 f
o
u
r 
e
x
-t
ra
in
e
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
to
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
la
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
h
a
v
e
 j
o
in
e
d
 C
ru
c
ia
ls
te
p
s
' m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
o
o
s
t 
th
e
 

o
rg
a
n
s
a
ti
o
n
's
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
. 
C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 

w
o
rk
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
6
 t
ra
in
e
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
 l
e
g
a
l 
fi
rm
s
.

N
o
 o
f 
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 1
0
0
  

1
0
3

N
o
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
  
2
8
0

5
5
9

N
o
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 t
ra
in
 i
s
 4

1

P
la
n
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
1
2
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

9

2
5
0
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 g
ro
u
p
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

4
2
9

O
n
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e

1

7
5
 C
a
re
rs
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 t
h
e
ra
p
y
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
in
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p

1
2

5
0
 C
a
re
rs
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
ra
p
y
 v
o
u
c
h
e
rs

5
0

1
5
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 c
a
s
e
 w
o
rk
 s
u
p
p
o
rt

1
3
0

In
fo
rm
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 1
5
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 a
p
p
ly
in
g
 

fo
r 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

1
1
9

C
y
c
lin
g
 C
lu
b

B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T
a
rk
a

�
�

G
G

G
G

G
£
1
0
,0
0
0

£
1
0
,4
0
4

£
0

2
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
, 
p
lu
s
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
, 
fr
ie
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

in
 c
y
c
lin
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
.

1
3
3

C
y
c
le
 c
lu
b
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 o
n
 2
2
n
d
 M
a
y
 0
7
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 L
o
rd
s
h
ip
 R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 L
o
rd
s
h
ip
 

U
s
e
rs
 F
o
ru
m
 a
t 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 
F
a
rm
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 1
5
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 

th
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
d
 i
n
 c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
p
o
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 c
y
c
lin
g
 c
lu
b
 i
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 M
o
n
-F
ri
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 m
e
n
ta
l 
w
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
 a
im
 i
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
lu
b
 t
o
 b
e
 r
u
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
.

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
5
0
 a
d
u
lt
s
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 5
0
+

7
9

T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 f
ro
m
 N
o
e
l 
P
a
rk
, 
B
ru
c
e
 

G
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 N
o
rt
h
u
m
b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
 f
o
r 
3
0
 

a
d
u
lt
s

1
8

F
ly
e
rs
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
e
t/
ra
d
io
/l
ib
ra
ry
/l
o
c
a
l 
s
u
p
e
rm
a
rk
e
t/
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
w
s
p
a
p
e
rs
. 
T
u
to
rs
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 e
a
ti
n
g
, 
lif
e
 s
k
ill
s
, 
o
n
e
-t
o
-o
n
e
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
. 
S
e
s
s
io
n
s
 h
e
ld
 t
o
 d
a
te
 i
n
 S
e
lf
 E
s
te
e
m
 &
 

Y
o
g
a
. 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 A
) 
M
o
n
e
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
) 
S
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 o
f 
u
ti
lit
y
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r,
 C
) 
L
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 s
h
e
lf
 l
if
e
 o
f 
it
e
m
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
e
rm
a
rk
e
t 
b
e
fo
re
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
  
D
) 

T
e
a
c
h
in
g
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 a
 s
k
ill
 t
o
 d
o
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 h
a
n
d
s
 s
o
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 e
a
rn
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
£
1
0
 a
 w
e
e
k
 

e
x
tr
a
, 
E
) 
O
n
e
-t
o
-o
n
e
 a
n
d
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
, 
F
) 
Y
o
g
a
 &
 S
lo
w
 m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 G
) 
B
a
c
k
 t
o
 

w
o
rk
 s
k
ill
s
.

G
£
1
8
,0
0
0

H
a
p
p
y
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

(P
H
A
S
C
A
)

�
G

£
1
2
,5
4
5

£
5
,4

5
5

G
G

G

£
3
2
,0
0
0

£
2
2
,6
7
2

F
a
iz
a
 R
iz
v
i

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 (
B
M
E
 

C
a
re
rs
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
)

G
G

G
G

�
L
e
n
a
 H
a
rt
le
y

£
9
,3

2
8

A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 1
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
te
d
 f
ro
m
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
y
 a
n
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
£
1
0
, 
th
is
 r
a
n
g
e
s
 f
ro
m
 c
lie
n
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 S
u
re
 S
ta
rt
 M
a
te
rn
it
y
 G
ra
n
t,
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

p
re
m
iu
m
, 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t,
 C
a
re
rs
 a
llo
w
a
n
c
e
, 
M
ilk
 a
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 f
o
o
d
 

to
k
e
n
s
, 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
re
 g
ra
n
t,
 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 e
tc

�
G

�
F
a
iz
a
 R
iz
v
i

B
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 M
in
o
ri
ty
 E
th
n
ic
 

C
a
re
rs
 R
e
s
p
it
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
�

�
G

G
G

G

A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
5
th
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
. 
M
u
n
 T
h
o
n
g
 P
h
u
n
g
, 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 C
u
lt
u
re
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
B
o
b
 H
a
rr
is
 f
o
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

a
n
d
 W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
. 
P
la
n
 t
o
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 T
h
e
ra
p
y
 V
o
u
c
h
e
rs
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

0
7
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 B
M
E
 C
a
re
rs
 t
o
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 e
a
c
h
 o
th
e
rs
 d
e
ta
ils
 a
n
d
 a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
th
e
r.
 

A
ls
o
 B
M
E
 C
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 

s
y
s
te
m
s
, 
B
re
a
s
t 
C
a
n
c
e
r 
C
a
re
, 
C
a
re
rs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 h
a
ri
n
g
e
y
, 
C
h
ild
re
n
 &
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 .
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 T
h
e
ra
p
y
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
ro
m
 J
a
n
-M
a
rc
h
 0
8
.

£
4
,6

4
0

£
1
5
,3
6
0

£
2
0
,0
0
0

�
Im
e
ld
a
 M
u
lli
n
s

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 (
A
g
e
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
)

C
o
m
p
lim

e
n
ta
ry
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 M
a
rk
e
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 E
n
a
b
le
 a
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 w
e
lf
a
re
 r
ig
h
ts
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 

to
w
a
rd
 t
h
o
s
e
 h
a
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
a
c
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
  
 

G
G

G
G

G
£
1
2
,3

3
1

£
3
4
,7
6
5

£
4
7
,0
9
6

�
B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T
a
rk
a

A
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

th
ro
u
g
h
 I
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

B
u
d
g
e
ts

T
h
is
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 J
o
b
 c
o
a
c
h
 v
is
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 p
la
c
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
1
0
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs
 i
n
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 c
a
rr
y
in
g
 o
u
t 
J
o
b
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
o
o
k
in
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
im
e
. 
1
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
to
 p
a
id
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 5
 p
e
rs
o
n
 i
n
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

w
ill
 b
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 p
a
id
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
 

£
3
4
2

£
1
6
,2
6
3

£
1
6
,6
0
5

G
G

G
G

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

N
R

F
 P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in

a
n
c
e
s

W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

G

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\3
\1
\9
\A
I0
0
0
1
0
9
1
3
\N
R
F
U
p
d
a
te
0
.x
ls
N
R
F
 H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/0
2
/0
8
 1
6
:2
0

1
 o
f 
6

Agenda Item 15Page 187



 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 2

0
0
7
/0

8

(3
1
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
)

Achieve

Economic Wb

Be Healthy

Positive 

Contribution

Be 

Independent

Stay Safe

Issues

Resources

Budget

Timescale

Overall Status

T
o
ta

l 
B

u
d
g
e
t

0
7
/0

8

S
p
e
n
d

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 T

o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft

 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro

je
c
t 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
/T

a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8
Y

e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

N
R

F
 P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in

a
n
c
e
s

W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

1
0
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
;

9

S
u
s
ta
in
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
(e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
r 

0
7
) 
le
v
e
ls
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 a
t 
5
5
0

7
3
0

3
 N
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs

3

P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
S
c
h
e
m
e
, 
(2
0
0
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
)

2
0
0

T
h
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 2
0
0
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 d
a
te
 (
3
8
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
lo
n
e
).
 7
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 o
n
 a
 w
e
e
k
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
T
h
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 w
e
ll 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 G
P
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 w
h
o
 s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 f
e
e
l 
th
a
t 
th
is
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 w
ill
 a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
m
 i
n
 h
e
lp
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
b
e
s
it
y
, 
ty
p
e
 I
I 
d
ia
b
e
te
s
, 

h
ig
h
 b
lo
o
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
, 
e
tc
. 
R
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 o
n
 a
 w
e
e
k
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 

T
h
ir
te
e
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 
s
e
v
e
n
te
e
n
 e
lig
ib
le
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
ig
n
e
d
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
re
 m
a
k
in
g
 

re
g
u
la
r 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
.

5
 w
e
e
k
ly
 H
e
a
lt
h
 W
a
lk
s
 -
 3
0
 m
in
 m
o
d
e
ra
te
 

in
te
n
s
it
y
 w
a
lk
s
 (
3
0
0
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
)

9
7

P
re
d
ic
ti
n
g
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 a
s
 G
P
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
w
a
rd
s
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 

th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 e
n
tr
y
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
S
c
h
e
m
e
, 
p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
 H
e
a
lt
h
 W
a
lk
s
 a
s
 

a
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
m
. I
S
S
U
E
: 
Y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 l
o
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
.

S
h
a
p
e
-U
p
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 -
 T
a
rg
e
ts
: 
1
4
0
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r

8
1

C
o
o
k
 a
n
d
 E
a
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 -
 T
a
rg
e
t:
 6
0
-9
0
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r

9
9

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 T
h
e
ra
p
e
u
ti
c
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 G
ro
u
p
s
, 
1
4
6
 

n
e
w
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
.

6
5

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 G
ro
u
p
s
: 
9
0
 n
e
w
 

c
o
n
ta
c
ts

1
4
5

H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 M
in
d
 L
ib
ra
ry
 W
o
rk
, 
G
ra
d
u
a
te
 

w
o
rk
e
rs
: 
1
5
0
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts

8
7

O
ff
e
r 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 t
o
 1
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
h
a
o
ti
c
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s

1
2
5

T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
to
 c
h
a
o
ti
c
 d
ri
n
k
e
rs
 o
r 
th
o
s
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

b
y
 c
h
a
o
ti
c
 d
ri
n
k
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
v
e
ra
g
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
e
ig
h
t 
n
e
w
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
 m
o
n
th
. 

T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 b
o
o
s
te
d
 b
y
 u
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
r 
lin
k
s
 w
it
h
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 J
o
in
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
, 
fo
rm
e
rl
y
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 A
d
u
lt
s
 T
e
a
m
. 
 T
h
e
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 s
e
e
n
 1
2
5
 c
lie
n
ts
 s
in
c
e
 A
p
ti
l.
 T
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
s
o
 f
a
r 

if
 w
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
v
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
fi
v
e
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
 f
ro
m
 A
p
e
x
 H
o
u
s
e
 s
in
c
e
 M
a
y
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 2
3
2
 c
lie
n
ts
.

R
e
d
u
c
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f
o
r 
1
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

h
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
/o
r 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t

1
0
0
+

T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
o
n
e
 i
n
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
, 
th
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
e
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 c
h
a
o
ti
c
 s
tr
e
e
t 
d
ri
n
k
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
. 
C
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
d
 t
h
is
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 B
ru
c
e
 G
ro
v
e
, 
S
e
v
e
n
 S
is
te
rs
 a
n
d
 

S
t.
 A
n
n
’s
 w
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
is
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
w
a
rd
s
 m
o
s
t 
n
o
ta
b
ly
 N
o
rt
h
u
m
b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
 i
n
 

th
e
 n
e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r.
 O
f 
th
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 2
3
2
 c
lie
n
ts
, 
a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
re
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 m
a
d
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
o
r 

b
e
tt
e
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 d
ri
n
k
in
g
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 M
in
d
 (
H
T
P
C
T
)

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 E
a
ti
n
g

H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 M
in
d
 (
H
T
P
C
T
)

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h

D
e
b
b
ie
 W
ilk
in
s

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 E
a
ti
n
g

�
�

H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 M
in
d
 (
H
T
P
C
T
)

P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y

£
1
4
,8

4
6

M
a
n
u
e
la
 

T
o
p
o
ro
w
s
k
a

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 F
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
  
A
g
e
 C
o
n
c
e
rn
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y

G
G

G
G

G
�

£
4
1
,3
2
4

£
5
6
,1
7
0

N
e
w
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 e
le
c
te
d
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 h
o
n
o
ra
ry
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
h
a
d
o
w
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 t
o
 

s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 
M
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
's
 i
n
v
o
lv
m
e
n
t 
in
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
. 
5
th
 A
G
M
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 1
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
0
7
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 1
4
0
 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
w
it
h
 l
iv
e
ly
 d
e
b
a
te
 r
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
L
e
is
u
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
F
o
ru
m
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
. 
M
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
's
 i
n
v
o
lv
m
e
n
t 
in
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

ra
is
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
fo
o
tc
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
F
o
ru
m
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
. 
M
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
's
 i
n
v
o
lv
m
e
n
t 
in
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fo
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
a
is
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
fo
o
tc
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

W
o
rk
e
d
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 F
e
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
' 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 T
o
ile
ts
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 a
t 
B
e
tt
e
r 
P
la
c
e
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
.

V
a
n
e
s
s
a
 B
o
g
le

P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y

�
�

A
G

G
G

G
£
8
8
,9
8
4

£
5
9
,6
4
9

£
2
9
,3

3
5

A
G

G
G

G
£
1
4
8
,3
0
6

A
G

G
G

G

D
o
ri
a
n
 C
o
le

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

(H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

T
h
e
ra
p
e
u
ti
c
 

N
e
tw
o
rk
)

�
�

£
1
3
3
,4
7
5

£
1
2
2
,1
5
7

£
1
1
,3

1
8

T
h
e
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 L
ib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 T
h
e
ra
p
e
u
ti
c
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 h
a
s
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 

a
n
d
 n
o
w
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
h
re
e
 N
R
F
 a
re
a
s
 B
ru
c
e
 G
ro
v
e
, 
N
o
e
l 
P
a
rk
 a
n
d
 

N
o
rt
h
u
m
b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
. 
Q
u
a
n
ta
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l,
 a
g
e
, 

g
e
n
d
e
r,
 e
th
n
ic
it
y
, 
ty
p
e
 o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
.

1
. 
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
/W
e
llb
e
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 3
1
7
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
e
n
 -
 6
5
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts

2
. 
E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t/
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 G
ro
u
p
s
 -
 3
6
3
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
e
n
 -
 1
4
5
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 

3
. 
H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 M
in
d
 L
ib
ra
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 8
2
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
e
e
n
 -
 8
7
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
  
- 
2
7
4
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
n
ta
c
ts

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 r
e
g
is
te
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
h
a
o
e
 u
p
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
is
 m
o
n
th
’s
 s
ta
tu
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 a
n
 A
M
B
E
R
 s
ig
n
. 
 T
h
is
 s
lig
h
t 

s
lip
p
a
g
e
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ra
b
le
, 
m
a
in
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 l
ie
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
g
is
te
ri
n
g
 r
a
th
e
r 
a
s
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
re
p
o
rt
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
 i
t 
h
a
s
 s
ti
ll 
n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 g
e
t 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
R
o
u
n
d
 6
 h
a
s
 

n
o
w
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
.

£
1
2
9
,6
1
1

£
1
8
,6

9
5

D
a
m
o
n
 K
n
ig
h
t

�
G

G
G

G

H
o
m
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
e
rs
 &
 

O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
D
ri
n
k
e
rs
 

(H
A
G
A
)

�
�

G
£
7
8
,4
0
0

£
5
5
,6
6
3

£
2
2
,7

3
7

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\3
\1
\9
\A
I0
0
0
1
0
9
1
3
\N
R
F
U
p
d
a
te
0
.x
ls
N
R
F
 H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/0
2
/0
8
 1
6
:2
0

2
 o
f 
6

Page 188



 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 2

0
0
7
/0

8

(3
1
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
)

Achieve

Economic Wb

Be Healthy

Positive 

Contribution

Be 

Independent

Stay Safe

Issues

Resources

Budget

Timescale

Overall Status

T
o
ta

l 
B

u
d
g
e
t

0
7
/0

8

S
p
e
n
d

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 T

o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft

 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro

je
c
t 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
/T

a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8
Y

e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

N
R

F
 P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in

a
n
c
e
s

W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

In
c
o
m
e
 M
a
x
im
is
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y

D
a
v
id
 H
e
n
n
in
g
s

�
G

G
G

G
G

£
3
0
,0
0
0

£
2
7
,2
0
0

£
2
,8

0
0

T
h
e
 "
fi
n
a
l 
fi
n
a
l"
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
' r
e
p
o
rt
 w
a
s
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 o
n
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
7
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 h
a
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

In
c
o
m
e
 M
a
x
im
is
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
; 
c
ir
c
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
n
 i
n
it
ia
l 
fi
rs
t 
d
ra
ft
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
tt
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
la
y
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
w
ill
 f
o
llo
w
 a
t 
a
 d
a
te
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
e
c
id
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
's
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
t 
L
B
H
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 l
a
te
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
7
.

Project Completed

U
rb
a
n
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 n
o
w
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 V
it
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

P
ro
s
p
e
ri
ty
 S
h
a
re
d
 b
y
 A
ll,
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

m
a
x
im
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 t
o
: 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
to
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
 t
a
k
e
-u
p
 o
f 
in
-w
o
rk
 t
a
x
 c
re
d
it
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
ta
k
e
-u
p
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 w
o
rk
. 
 A
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
c
k
e
d
 

u
p
 b
y
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
1
0
 c
o
re
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 m
a
x
im
is
a
ti
o
n
, 
b
u
ilt
 o
n
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
th
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G
u
a
ra
n
te
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
ry
 t
o
 h
it
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 e
g
. 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
it
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

th
e
m
e
 o
f 
Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
a
re
, 
a
n
d
 d
ri
v
in
g
 u
p
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 o
f 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 L
iv
in
g
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 

w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 a
d
u
lt
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
.

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 o
b
e
s
it
y
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 d
ie
t 
a
n
d
 

n
u
tr
it
io
n
 -
 D
ie
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 n
u
tr
it
io
n
a
l 
a
d
v
is
o
ry
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 =
 3
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s

8
9
0

S
tr
o
u
d
 G
re
e
n
 a
n
 e
v
e
n
t 
fo
c
u
s
in
g
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 o
n
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
 e
a
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 9
th
 A
u
g
u
s
t,
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
n
g
 2
4
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 n
u
tr
it
io
n
a
l 
v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fr
u
it
s
 a
n
d
 v
e
g
e
ta
b
le
s
, 
a
n
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

n
u
tr
it
io
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 q
u
ic
k
 a
n
d
 s
im
p
le
 r
e
c
ip
e
s
 f
o
r 
k
id
s
. 
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 w
it
h
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
C
T
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
e
a
m
 w
h
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 W
a
tc
h
 I
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
ro
m
 M
a
rc
u
s
 

G
a
rv
e
y
 L
ib
ra
ry
.

L
ib
ra
ry
 W
a
lk
e
r’
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 =
 4
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
w
a
lk
s

5
0
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k
 (
a
v
g
)

T
h
e
 L
ib
ra
ry
 W
a
lk
e
rs
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 r
u
n
 w
e
e
k
ly
 f
ro
m
 f
iv
e
 o
f 
o
u
r 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 

tr
a
in
e
r-
le
d
 w
a
lk
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
d
a
y
s
 o
f 
th
e
 w
e
e
k
. 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 a
g
a
in
 

a
s
 t
h
e
 w
e
t 
w
e
a
th
e
r 
re
c
e
d
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 w
e
 a
re
 n
o
w
 a
v
e
ra
g
in
g
 9
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
, 
p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
. 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
a
lk
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 m
o
n
th
s
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
 b
o
o
s
t.
  
F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
a
lk
 w
h
ic
h
 o
v
e
r 
3
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
, 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 r
e
m
a
in
e
d
 a
t 
a
 c
o
n
s
ta
n
t 
o
f 
1
0
 p
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
.

O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 1
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 m
o
b
ile
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
 b
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 
J
u
ly

2
4

In
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 M
o
b
ile
 L
ib
ra
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
w
e
 a
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
 o
r 
w
h
o
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

lib
ra
ry
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
. 
U
n
fo
rt
u
n
a
te
ly
, 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
o
n
 h
o
ld
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

le
a
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 w
o
rk
.

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
m
o
k
e
, 
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
-c
h
e
c
k
s
 t
o
 5
0
 p
e
o
p
le
.

7
2
0

T
h
e
s
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 m
o
n
th
ly
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
, 
in
v
o
lv
in
g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
-c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
n
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
. 
 1
0
5
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 
- 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
, 
 t
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
o
s
tl
y
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

th
e
 o
ld
e
r 
a
d
u
lt
. 
S
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 ,
 b
io
lo
g
ic
a
l 
lu
n
g
 a
g
e
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 c
h
ro
n
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 

a
g
e
 ,
 b
lo
o
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 ,
 c
a
rd
io
v
a
s
c
u
la
r 
h
e
a
rt
 r
a
te
  
(w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
),
 l
o
w
e
r 
b
a
c
k
 

fl
e
x
ib
ili
ty
 e
tc
. 
  

S
m
o
k
in
g
 c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 2
0
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
 

p
e
r 
c
la
s
s

2
5
 p

e
r 

c
la

s
s
 (
a
v
g
)

W
e
 a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 r
u
n
 o
u
r 
s
m
o
k
in
g
 c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 c
la
s
s
e
s
, 
o
p
e
n
 t
o
 b
o
th
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
u
b
lic
, 
h
e
ld
 w
it
h
in
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 N
H
S
. 
A
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
2
5
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
e
r 
c
la
s
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
.

C
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m
ild
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
th
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 (
3
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
,1
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
),
 h
e
lp
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 g
a
in
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

(5
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
, 
p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
).

3
1
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 d
ru
g
 

is
s
u
e
s
 -
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 o
n
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 d
ru
g
 r
e
la
te
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 (
M
o
n
th
ly
 

a
d
v
is
o
ry
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
, 
5
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
, 
p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
)

1
1
 p

e
r 

s
e
s
s
io

n
 

(a
v
g
)

G
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 
L
if
e

D
ia
n
a
 E
d
m
o
n
d
s

£
5
2
,7

9
6

£
1
4
5
,2
0
4

£
1
9
8
,0
0
0

G
G

G
G

�
�

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
u
it
e
 o
p
e
ra
te
s
 f
ro
m
 W
o
o
d
 G
re
e
n
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
L
ib
ra
ry
, 
fr
o
m
 w
h
ic
h
 2
 t
ra
in
e
d
 

c
o
u
n
s
e
llo
rs
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m
ild
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
th
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ri
ty
 o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
, 
w
it
h
 e
a
c
h
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
n
o
w
 s
e
e
in
g
 a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
1
5
 

p
e
o
p
le
 p
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
, 
p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
a
s
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 M
a
rc
u
s
 G
a
rv
e
y
 

a
n
d
 n
o
w
 a
tt
ra
c
ts
 1
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
. 
 S
in
c
e
 P
C
T
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 v
ia
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
, 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 m
a
d
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 o
v
e
r 
7
5
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 

to
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
.

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\3
\1
\9
\A
I0
0
0
1
0
9
1
3
\N
R
F
U
p
d
a
te
0
.x
ls
N
R
F
 H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/0
2
/0
8
 1
6
:2
0

3
 o
f 
6

Page 189



 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 2

0
0
7
/0

8

(3
1
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
)

Achieve

Economic Wb

Be Healthy

Positive 

Contribution

Be 

Independent

Stay Safe

Issues

Resources

Budget

Timescale

Overall Status

T
o
ta

l 
B

u
d
g
e
t

0
7
/0

8

S
p
e
n
d

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 T

o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft

 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro

je
c
t 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
/T

a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8
Y

e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

N
R

F
 P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in

a
n
c
e
s

W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

2
0
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 (
2
4
0
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r)

2
3
9

8
0
 (
9
6
0
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r)
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

b
e
fr
ie
n
d
e
d
/h
o
m
e
 v
is
it
s
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
; 

7
8
1

5
0
 (
6
0
0
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r)
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 p
e
r 

m
o
n
th
.

1
2
1
9

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 s
m
o
k
in
g
 

p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e

E
lis
a
 T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n

�
G

G
A

G
G

£
1
0
0
,0
0
0

£
3
1
,4
0
0

£
6
8
,6

0
0

1
0
0
%
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 o
f 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
-

s
m
o
k
in
g
 p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 o
ff
e
re
d
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
-b
a
s
e
d
 s
m
o
k
in
g
 

c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7

On Target

 S
to
p
 S
m
o
k
in
g
 W
o
rk
 P
la
c
e
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
, 
a
ll 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 L
A
 l
is
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 

v
ia
 e
it
h
e
r 
le
tt
e
r,
 e
 m
a
il 
o
r 
in
 p
e
rs
o
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 s
to
p
 s
m
o
k
in
g
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
ie
r 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
. 
A
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 f
ro
m
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 o
f 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
. 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 ‘
p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
 f
ro
m
 e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 t
o
 s
m
o
k
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h
o
m
e
’ 
p
ro
je
c
t,
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ri
n
te
d
, 
a
n
d
 a
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

A
ll 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 v
is
it
e
d
. 
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 

m
o
n
th
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 L
e
a
fl
e
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 o
n
e
 l
a
rg
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 i
n
it
ia
lly
 t
o
 g
a
u
g
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

S
a
ls
a
 C
lu
b
 (
S
c
o
rp
io
n
 

S
a
ls
a
 G
ro
u
p
)

N
a
ta
lia
 B
la
z
in
a

�
G

G
G

G
G

£
9
,2
0
0

£
9
,2
0
0

£
0

In
c
re
a
s
e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
2
0
0
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 2
-3
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 a
 w
e
e
k

1
9
5

R
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 t
h
e
ra
p
e
u
ti
c
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 W
o
o
d
 G
re
e
n
 w
h
o
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 
P
ro
je
c
t 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 g
e
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
ra
c
t 
w
it
h
 o
th
e
rs
 i
n
 f
u
n
, 
re
la
x
in
g
 a
tm
o
s
p
h
e
re
. 
 

T
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 p
ro
o
f 
th
a
t 
7
5
%
 o
f 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 a
re
 m
o
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
in
c
e
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
a
rt
. 
8
0
%
 b
e
c
a
m
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
to
 g
e
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

to
 t
h
e
m
 (
a
rt
, 
y
o
g
a
…
).
 F
it
n
e
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
in
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
to
 m
e
a
s
u
re
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 c
o
m
p
a
re
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
fi
tn
e
s
s
 f
ro
m
 w
h
e
n
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ta
re
d
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 

s
a
ls
a
 c
la
s
s
e
s
. 
F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
.

O
u
t 
a
n
d
 A
b
o
u
t:
 

B
e
fr
ie
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

A
s
h
ra
f 
C
h
o
u
d
ry

�
�

�
G

G
G

G
G

£
9
8
,0
0
0

G
G

G
G

£
1
8
,0

6
8

£
7
9
,9
3
2

£
3
6
,7
5
0

£
2
9
,1
0
2

£
7
,6

4
8

B
e
rn
a
d
e
tt
e
 

R
ig
a
n
ti

R
e
a
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

4
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
/o
r 
d
e
b
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 o
n
 

g
o
in
g
 c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt

4
1
4

�
G

In
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
, 
w
e
 c
e
le
b
ra
te
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
1
0
0
th
 a
c
ti
v
e
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
r.
 I
n
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
, 
w
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 a
 'F
ri
e
n
d
s
 m
e
e
t 
B
e
fr
ie
n
d
e
rs
' 
e
v
e
n
t.
 W
e
 t
o
o
k
 i
s
o
la
te
d
 o
ld
e
r 

c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 b
e
fr
ie
n
d
in
g
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 t
o
 s
e
e
 a
 f
ilm

 a
t 
a
 c
in
e
m
a
 h
a
ll 
fo
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 l
u
n
c
h
. 
 I
n
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
, 
h
o
s
te
d
 a
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 f
e
s
ti
v
e
 g
e
t-
to
g
e
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
y
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 

a
n
d
 v
e
ry
 e
n
jo
y
a
b
le
. 
In
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
, 
w
e
 h
o
s
te
d
 a
n
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
1
8
 n
e
w
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 f
o
r 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 A
g
e
 C
o
n
c
e
rn
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 

R
e
a
p
in
g
 T
h
e
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 w
a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 o
u
r 
d
e
b
t 
a
n
d
 

w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
p
o
s
ts
. 
R
e
g
u
la
r 
w
e
e
k
ly
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 i
n
 6
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 N
o
e
l 
P
a
rk
, 
N
o
rt
h
u
m
b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
 a
n
d
 B
ru
c
e
 G
ro
v
e
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 o
v
e
r 
4
0
0
0
 

c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 m
a
d
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 d
o
o
r 
to
 d
o
o
r 
le
a
fl
e
t 
d
ro
p
s
, 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

F
IN
A
N
C
IA
L
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
S
: 
 T
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
m
o
n
e
y
 g
a
in
s
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 t
o
 d
a
te
 i
s
 £
1
9
0
,8
6
7
 (
u
p
 

£
4
1
,0
5
7
 t
h
is
 m
o
n
th
),
 w
h
ic
h
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
s
 o
u
t 
a
t 
ju
s
t 
o
v
e
r 
£
1
0
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 g
a
in
 p
e
r 
c
lie
n
t 
- 
th
e
 

L
A
A
 W
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g
 f
ro
m
 m
o
re
 m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
o
c
k
e
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
e
d
 d
e
b
t 
re
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t.

T
O
T
A
L
: 
 4
1
4
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
in
c
e
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
7
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 
c
lie
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
. 
 M
o
s
t 
c
lie
n
ts
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
re
p
e
a
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 a
s
s
is
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
w
it
h
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
ty
p
e
s
 o
f 

e
n
q
u
ir
y
 (
ta
x
 i
s
s
u
e
s
/b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
/d
e
b
t)
. 

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\3
\1
\9
\A
I0
0
0
1
0
9
1
3
\N
R
F
U
p
d
a
te
0
.x
ls
N
R
F
 H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/0
2
/0
8
 1
6
:2
0

4
 o
f 
6

Page 190



 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 2

0
0
7
/0

8

(3
1
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
)

Achieve

Economic Wb

Be Healthy

Positive 

Contribution

Be 

Independent

Stay Safe

Issues

Resources

Budget

Timescale

Overall Status

T
o
ta

l 
B

u
d
g
e
t

0
7
/0

8

S
p
e
n
d

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 T

o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft

 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro

je
c
t 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
/T

a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8
Y

e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

N
R

F
 P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in

a
n
c
e
s

W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

1
0
0
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 e
n
e
rg
y
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
u
rv
e
y
. 

3
0
0
0

O
u
t 
o
f 
3
0
0
0
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 s
e
n
t 
o
u
t 
2
9
5
 w
e
re
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
in
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 

a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
a
k
in
g
 s
te
p
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
rb
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t.
 B
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
6
 a
n
d
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7
 

it
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 h
a
s
 m
a
d
e
 a
 3
.6
%
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 e
n
e
rg
y
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
. 

2
5
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 l
o
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

le
a
s
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
h
e
a
t 
to
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

2
5
0

2
5
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 l
o
s
in
g
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv
e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 o
f 
h
e
a
t 
to
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

2
5
0

5
0
0
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 h
e
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
/o
r 

in
s
u
la
ti
o
n
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 W
a
rm
 F
ro
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m
e
. 

5
0
0

5
0
0
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 h
e
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
/o
r 

in
s
u
la
ti
o
n
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
. 

5
0
0

5
0
0
 e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
lig
h
t 
b
u
lb
s
 t
o
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 

o
u
t 
a
t 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts
. 

5
0
0
+

A
 h
u
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 s
a
v
in
g
 l
ig
h
t 
b
u
lb
s
, 
th
e
rm
o
m
e
te
r 
c
a
rd
s
, 
w
a
te
r 
h
ip
p
o
s
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 b
o
o
k
le
ts
 w
e
re
 g
iv
e
n
 a
w
a
y
 a
t 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts
.

2
5
0
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
v
e
n
t.
 

3
5
0
+

T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
E
n
e
rg
y
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 R
o
a
d
s
h
o
w
 o
f 
2
0
0
7
 /
 2
0
0
8
 w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 a
t 
th
e
 C
h
e
s
tn
u
ts
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 o
n
 1
4
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 
O
v
e
r 
4
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
e
rs
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
ta
ll 
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 
T
h
e
 

M
e
tr
o
p
o
lit
a
n
 P
o
lic
e
, 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
E
A
G
A
, 
A
g
e
 C
o
n
c
e
rn
, 
T
h
e
 E
n
e
rg
y
 

S
a
v
in
g
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 H
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
.

1
0
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
.

T
B

C
S
u
rv
e
y
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
re
a
d
y
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 o
u
t

 5
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
. 

2
4

O
v
e
r 
2
0
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
ls
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 a
d
v
ic
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 

c
la
im
. 
M
a
n
y
 m
o
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
.

2
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
e
n
tr
a
l 
h
e
a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
h
e
a
ti
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
s
ta
lle
d

T
B

C
P
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
F
e
b
/M
a
rc
h
 0
8

2
5
0
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 i
n
 a
 y
e
a
r.
 9
0
%
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
7
5
%
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
/c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
 i
n
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

c
o
lle
g
e
 o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
 

2
7
0

W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 N
H
S
 "
H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 m
in
d
" 
w
a
lk
s
 w
it
h
 a
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 f
it
n
e
s
s
 

in
s
tr
u
c
to
r 
a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
S
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
 e
"F
it
 f
o
r 
lif
e
" 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
w
a
rn
e
s
s
. 
S
ta
ff
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
ls
o
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
s
 "
s
m
o
k
in
g
 c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
" 
in
s
tr
u
c
to
rs
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 u
p
 s
m
o
k
in
g
. 
In
  
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
L
e
a
g
u
e
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 m
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
m
e
n
s
 f
o
o
tb
a
ll 
te
a
m
 t
h
a
t 
tr
a
in
 t
w
ic
e
 a
 w
e
e
k
 a
n
d
 p
la
y
 m
a
tc
h
e
s
 

e
v
e
ry
 m
o
n
th
 t
h
u
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
ly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
s
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 

a
e
o
ro
b
ic
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
to
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 b
i 
w
e
e
k
ly
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
a
e
ro
b
ic
s
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
w
o
m
e
n
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 w
e
ll-

b
e
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 d
ie
t,
 s
m
o
k
in
g
, 
s
e
x
u
a
l 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
, 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
n
d
 f
it
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 g
u
e
s
t 
s
p
e
a
k
e
rs
 c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
a
lk
 a
t 
th
e
s
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

a
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 g
ro
u
p
 e
v
e
ry
 w
e
e
k
 t
h
a
t 
fo
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 s
o
u
n
d
in
g
 o
u
t 

g
ro
u
p
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
ir
 m
e
n
ta
l 
d
is
tr
e
s
s
. 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 f
u
e
l 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
n
 1
0
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s

3
7

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
h
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 e
v
e
ry
 m
o
n
th
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
t 
a
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 p
a
id
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t.
  
7
5
%
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

w
h
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 d
a
ily
 a
re
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
n
 e
x
tr
a
 £
1
0
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 t
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
w
o
rk
 o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 (
e
g
 

c
a
te
ri
n
g
, 
c
le
a
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
u
ti
n
g
) 
v
ia
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
 T
h
is
 h
e
lp
s
 b
u
ild
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 e
n
a
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 p
a
id
 o
r 
u
n
p
a
id
 w
o
rk

�
�

P
a
u
l 
K
n
ig
h
t

£
1
3
,7

5
4

£
6
5
,0
6
9

£
7
8
,8
2
3

T
h
e
 s
ix
8
fo
u
r 
C
e
n
tr
e

N
N

N
N

N

W
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
T
a
x
a
ti
o
n
 a
 l
is
t 
w
a
s
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 o
f 
a
ll 
th
o
s
e
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 q
u
a
lif
y
 f
o
r 
a
 W
a
rm
 F
ro
n
t 
G
ra
n
t.
 T
h
e
 l
is
t 
w
a
s
 t
h
e
n
 

s
u
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 E
A
G
A
 (
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
to
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 W
a
rm
 F
ro
n
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
w
h
o
 s
e
n
t 
o
u
t 

le
tt
e
rs
 i
n
v
it
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
. 
E
A
G
A
 g
e
n
e
ro
u
s
ly
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 8
0
0
0
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 w
h
o
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n
o
t 
e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
 W
a
rm
 F
ro
n
t 
g
ra
n
t 
c
o
u
ld
 a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

‘h
e
re
 t
o
 H
E
L
P
’ 
s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
T
h
e
 m
a
ili
n
g
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 o
v
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 q
u
a
lif
y
in
g
 W
a
rm
 F
ro
n
t 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
th
re
e
 w
e
e
k
s
 o
f 
O
c
to
b
e
r,
 m
a
k
in
g
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 

re
fe
rr
in
g
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
. 
E
v
e
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 m
a
ili
n
g
, 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
d
a
y
 t
o
 d
a
y
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 r
e
fe
rr
in
g
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
a
ll 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
a
ili
n
g

£
5
,9

8
1

£
4
9
,0
1
9

£
5
5
,0
0
0

G
G

G
G

G
T
a
c
k
lin
g
 F
u
e
l 
P
o
v
e
rt
y

�
�

J
o
h
n
 M
a
th
e
rs

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\3
\1
\9
\A
I0
0
0
1
0
9
1
3
\N
R
F
U
p
d
a
te
0
.x
ls
N
R
F
 H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/0
2
/0
8
 1
6
:2
0

5
 o
f 
6

Page 191



 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 2

0
0
7
/0

8

(3
1
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
)

Achieve

Economic Wb

Be Healthy

Positive 

Contribution

Be 

Independent

Stay Safe

Issues

Resources

Budget

Timescale

Overall Status

T
o
ta

l 
B

u
d
g
e
t

0
7
/0

8

S
p
e
n
d

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 T

o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft

 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro

je
c
t 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
/T

a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8
Y

e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

N
R

F
 P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in

a
n
c
e
s

W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

W
e
lf
a
re
 t
o
 W
o
rk

B
ill
 S
la
d
e

�
G

G
G

G
G

£
4
0
,8
9
8

£
4
0
,8
9
8

£
0

D
e
liv
e
r 
4
0
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 j
o
b
s

4
0
+

A
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 2
3
3
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
re
la
te
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
m
o
s
t 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
. 
C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 2
6
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 2
3
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ro
s
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
W
e
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
3
 s
o
c
ia
l 
fi
rm
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

in
v
o
lv
in
g
 2
5
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t.
 W
e
 p
la
n
 t
o
 l
in
k
 t
h
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
fi
rm
s
 t
o
 

m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 e
ff
o
rt
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 

th
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
in
te
re
s
t 
b
a
s
e
. 
W
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 d
a
y
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
b
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
re
la
te
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
,i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 j
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
 P
lu
s
 S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
In
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 

P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
A
d
v
is
e
rs
, 
a
s
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 O
D
P
M
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
"M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 

E
x
c
lu
s
io
n
".

T
o
ta

l 
£
1
,3

1
1
,6

3
3

£
1
,0

1
0
,5

8
0

£
3
0
1
,4

5
7

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\3
\1
\9
\A
I0
0
0
1
0
9
1
3
\N
R
F
U
p
d
a
te
0
.x
ls
N
R
F
 H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/0
2
/0
8
 1
6
:2
0

6
 o
f 
6

Page 192



C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r
 H
e
a
lt
h
 F
u
n
d
 0
7
/
0
8
 (
C
fH
)
 -
 P
r
o
je
c
t 
a
s
 e
n
d
 o
f 
3
1
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 2
0
0
8

Issues

Resources

Budget

Timescale

Overall Status

T
o
ta
l 

B
u
d
g
e
t

0
7
/0
8

S
p
e
n
d
 T
o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 

L
e
ft
 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro
je
c
t 
O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/T
a
rg
e
t 
0
7
/0
8

Y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te

1
 x
 5
 m
in
u
te
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
-s
ty
le
 f
ilm
 a
b
o
u
t 
C
h
la
m
y
d
ia
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
S
P

C
o
m
p
le
te
d

4
 x
 6
0
- 
9
0
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
s
, 
b
o
th
 t
h
e
 f
ilm
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 t
o
 

Y
o
u
T
u
b
e
, 
M
y
S
p
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
 s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 c
re
a
te
d
 w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
th
e
 f
ilm
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
b
ile
 p
h
o
n
e
s

2
 a
d
v
e
rt
s
 i
n
 

fi
n
a
l 
s
ta
g
e
s

A
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 t
o
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ilm
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
s
 t
o
, 
th
e
 s
it
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 l
in
k
 t
o
 

th
e
 E
n
fi
e
ld
 a
n
d
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
S
P
 w
e
b
s
it
e

C
o
m
p
le
te
d

A
 f
lie
r 
a
n
d
 p
o
s
te
r 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n

C
o
m
p
le
te
d

4
 x
 3
0
-6
0
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 r
a
d
io
 a
d
v
e
rt
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
la
y
e
d
 o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
a
d
io
 s
ta
ti
o
n
s

1

1
 x
 8
 p
a
g
e
 U
n
d
e
r 
E
x
p
o
s
u
re
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
in
 E
x
p
o
s
u
re

In

p
ro
g
re
s
s

C
h
la
m
y
d
ia
 S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 F
o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
g
e
d
 1
5
-2
4
 

y
e
a
rs

E
th
io
p
ia
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 

U
n
it
e
d
 K
in
g
d
o
m

T
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
C
h
la
m
y
d
ia
 a
m
o
n
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
B
M
E
 m
a
le
s
 a
g
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
5
 -
 2
4
 

y
e
a
rs
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
ir
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 b
y
 t
a
k
in
g
 a
 t
e
s
t.
  
O
th
e
r 

a
im
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
e
x
u
a
lly
 

T
ra
n
s
m
it
te
d
 I
n
fe
c
ti
o
n
s
 (
S
T
I)
 i
n
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
n
e
 t
o
 o
n
e
, 
p
e
e
r 
a
n
d
 s
m
a
ll 
g
ro
u
p
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
it
ia
te
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
ra
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
e
x
u
a
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
a
la
ri
e
s
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 t
ra
v
e
l 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
, 
p
u
b
lic
it
y
, 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 e
tc
.

A
le
m
 G
e
b
re
h
iw
o
t

A
G

G
A

A
£
3
3
,5
0
0

£
1
6
,7
5
0

£
1
6
,7
5
0

T
a
rg
e
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
te
s
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 r
e
a
c
h
in
g
 4
,8
0
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 B
M
E
 m
e
n
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
e
s
te
d
 f
o
r 

C
h
la
m
y
d
ia
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
/2
0
0
8
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
m
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
 t
h
e
ir
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 I
t 

w
ill
 a
ls
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
lo
c
a
l 
fo
o
tb
a
ll 
te
a
m
s
, 
b
a
s
k
e
t 
b
a
ll 
te
a
m
s
, 
a
th
le
ti
c
 t
e
a
m
s
, 
fi
tn
e
s
s
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
p
o
rt
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
a
s
e
d
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

(C
B
O
s
).

1
1
1

T
im
e
b
a
n
k
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 T
im
e
b
a
n
k

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 t
im
e
 b
a
n
k
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 i
n
 L
B
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 

G
ro
u
n
d
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 e
m
p
lo
y
 a
 t
im
e
 b
ro
k
e
r 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

lo
c
a
lly
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 t
im
e
 b
a
n
k
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
T
h
e
 t
im
e
 

b
ro
k
e
r 
w
ill
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 t
im
e
 b
a
n
k
 w
ill
 

in
v
o
lv
e
 s
o
c
ia
lly
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 f
ro
m
 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
 

s
a
la
ri
e
s
, 
p
u
b
lic
it
y
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
e
v
e
n
ts
, 
tr
a
v
e
l 

c
o
s
ts
, 
u
ti
lit
ie
s
, 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
, 
C
R
B
 c
h
e
c
k
 e
tc

S
a
n
d
ra
 H
o
is
z

G
G

G
G

G
£
3
0
,3
3
2

£
1
6
,0
0
1

£
1
4
,3
3
1

5
0
 n
e
w
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
im
e
 b
a
n
k
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 

th
e
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 h
e
lp
/s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
im
e
 b
a
n
k
 

4
0

T
o
ta
l 

T
o
ta
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

£
1
0
0
,0
0
0

£
9
5
,0
2
6

£
5
7
,5
2
5

£
3
7
,5
0
1

G

F
in
a
n
c
e
s

C
fH
 P
ro
je
c
ts

P
ro
je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

R
A
G
 S
ta
tu
s

P
ro
je
c
t 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

£
6
,4
2
0

£
2
4
,7
7
4

£
3
1
,1
9
4

G
G

G

C
h
la
m
y
d
ia
 S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 M
e
d
ia
 

C
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 

E
x
p
o
s
u
re

A
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 m
e
d
ia
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
d
 

ra
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
la
m
y
d
ia
 

S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
C
S
P
).
 T
h
e
 m
e
d
ia
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 w
ill
 u
ti
lis
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
m
e
d
ia
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 

k
e
y
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
g
ro
u
p
. 
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

s
a
la
ri
e
s
, 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
 &
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
, 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 &
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
, 
ra
d
io
 a
d
v
e
rt
s
, 
fl
ie
rs
 a
n
d
 

p
o
s
te
rs
 e
tc
.

A
y
s
h
a
 T
e
g
a
lly

G

E
:\

m
o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It

e
m

D
o
c
s
\4

\2
\0

\A
I0

0
0
1
1
0
2
4
\C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
H

e
a
lt
h
U

p
d
a
te

0
.x

ls
 C

fH
 H

ig
h
le

v
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

1
 o

f 
2

Agenda Item 16Page 193



C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r
 H
e
a
lt
h
 F
u
n
d
 0
7
/
0
8
 (
C
fH
)
 -
 P
r
o
je
c
t 
a
s
 e
n
d
 o
f 
3
1
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 2
0
0
8

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
/U
p
d
a
te
s

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 a
s
 l
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 S
ix
th
 F
o
rm
 C
o
lle
g
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 
F
ro
m
 t
im
e
 t
o
 t
im
e
, 
m
o
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 

g
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 u
ri
n
e
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
te
s
ts
. 
 I
S
S
U
E
S
: 
T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

s
ta
rt
e
d
 l
a
te
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 t
im
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
, 

• 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 l
a
te
 -
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
, 
3
 m
o
n
th
s
 a
n
d
 

m
o
s
t 
ti
m
e
 w
a
s
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n

• 
S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 k
it
s
 w
e
re
 d
e
la
y
e
d

• 
Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
re
a
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
e
a
s
y

• 
T
h
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 m
e
t 
in
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
. 
T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
: 
H
a
v
c
o
, 
L
B
H
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 S
a
fe
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 T
e
a
m
, 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
a
re
rs
, 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
, 
a
 w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r,
 S
o
m
e
rf
o
rd
 G
ro
v
e
 A
d
v
e
n
tu
re
 

P
la
y
g
ro
u
n
d
. 

• 
W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 V
a
le
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

• 
W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 

s
tu
d
e
n
ts
. 

• 
T
h
e
 T
im
e
 B
a
n
k
 i
s
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
h
o
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
It
 i
s
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
w
e
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
p
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
t 
e
v
e
ry
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 

o
u
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 

o
f 
e
a
c
h
 c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
. 

• 
O
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m
a
in
 a
re
a
s
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 

n
e
e
d
 h
e
lp
 i
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
it
e
 c
a
re
. 
E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 i
n
 

M
a
rc
h
. 

T
h
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
o
ff
ic
ia
lly
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 f
ir
s
t 
w
e
e
k
 o
f 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
 T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 

w
e
ll 
u
n
d
e
r 
w
a
y
, 
th
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
s
 

th
e
 m
y
s
p
a
c
e
 p
a
g
e
. 
 T
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

re
a
d
y
 t
o
 b
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
. 
 2
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ilm
e
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
s
 a
re
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 

s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
e
d
it
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
re
 d
u
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
is
 w
e
e
k
. 
 

W
o
rk
 h
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 2
n
d
 p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
fi
lm
e
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
s
. 
 T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ra
d
io
 

a
d
v
e
rt
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 b
ro
a
d
c
a
s
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
a
d
io
 

s
ta
ti
o
n
s
, 
th
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
 i
s
 d
u
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
o
n
th
. 
D
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 r
e
c
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

U
n
d
e
re
x
p
o
s
u
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
n
th
 r
e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 

d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 F
e
b
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
E
x
p
o
s
u
re
.

E
:\

m
o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It

e
m

D
o
c
s
\4

\2
\0

\A
I0

0
0
1
1
0
2
4
\C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
H

e
a
lt
h
U

p
d
a
te

0
.x

ls
 C

fH
 H

ig
h
le

v
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

2
 o

f 
2

Page 194


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Primary Care Strategy Next Steps
	7 Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults Policy and Procedures
	Safeguarding Adults Policy -Procedure (Tom Brown)

	8 Development of Tobacco Control Strategy for Haringey
	9 Update on the Development of the New Style Local Area Agreement
	12 Northumberland Park Update
	14 Well Being Scorecard
	Scorecard Annex (Margerat Gallgher)

	15 Neighbourhood Renewal Funding Update
	16 Communities Funding Update

